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| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2007.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the revenue of the Group
from continuing operations was HK$670,706,000, an increase of 33%
compared to the previous year of HK$503,740,000. The increase
mainly came from property development. The discontinuance of the
cement operations which were disposed of during the year also
accounted for revenue of HK$192,482,000 and HK$385,562,000 in
2007 and 2006 respectively. The profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (including continuing and discontinued operations)
was HK$702,976,000 (2006: HK$51,496,000), representing a 12.7
times increase over the previous year. Had we excluded the provision
for additional PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"”) made in 2006 of
HK$297,409,000 before minority interests, the profit attributable to
the equity holders would have increased by 110%. The profit is in
line with our expectation.

The increase in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year was the result of:

(1) gain on disposal of non-core assets,

(2) increase in rental income of 23%, and

(3) lack of provision for additional LAT this year as compared to the
previous year.

Earnings per share amounted to HK54.55 cents (2006: HK4.39 cents),
representing an increase of 11.4 times over the preceding year. Had
we excluded the additional provision for LAT in 2006, earnings per
share would have increased by 91%.

iz & B[R~ a Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Managing Director’s Statement

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10 cents per
share of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2007
(2006: HK2.5 cents) payable to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, 23rd May, 2008. The final dividend is
subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2008 Annual
General Meeting to be held on Friday, 23rd May, 2008, and is expected
to be paid to the Shareholders by post on or around Tuesday, 15th
July, 2008.

The final dividend will be paid in the form of scrip, with the
Shareholders being given an option to elect cash (the “Scrip Dividend
Scheme”) in respect of part or all of such dividend. The price at
which the shares of the Company will be issued under the scrip
dividend proposal will be the average of the closing prices of the
shares of the Company for the five consecutive trading days ending
Friday, 23rd May, 2008. The proposed scrip dividend is conditional
upon The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of,
and permission to deal in, the new shares of the Company to be
issued. The Scrip Dividend Scheme, if approved, may affect the price
of the warrants of the Company. Accordingly, such adjustment will
be announced in due course.

A circular giving full details of the scrip dividend proposal and a form
of election will be sent to the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS AND
WARRANTHOLDERS

The register of members and the register of warrantholders of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 20th May, 2008 to Friday,
23rd May, 2008 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares or warrants of the Company will be registered. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates or in the case of warrantholders, all
subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant certificates
and exercise money, must be lodged with the Company’s registrars,
Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Monday, 19th May, 2008.

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged principally in the development of high-end

apartments, villas, office buildings and commercial properties, property

investment, property management and hotel operation in China.

The 2007 results are in line with the Group's stated objectives of:

(1

continuing to dispose of non-core assets,

increasing recurrent income,

maximising development profit,

increasing landbank in major cities,

streamlining operating processes, and

continuing to strengthen the professional management team.

Pursuant to these stated objectives and utilising them as a framework

for discussion, an analysis of the Group’s achievements in 2007 is

outlined below:

(1) Continuing to dispose of non-core assets

As mentioned in the 2006 Annual Report, in order to maximise
our investment return on Shanghai Allied Cement Limited
("SAC"), we took advantage of the buoyant Hong Kong share
market to place out our entire interest in SAC. The disposal
generated a profit of approximately HK$137,738,000 and net
proceeds of approximately HK$277,538,000.

We also took advantage of the strong demand for PRC properties
to dispose of two subsidiaries holding non-core development
properties, namely our Xinhui and Nanjing Moling town projects,
generating a profit of approximately HK$197,099,000 and net
proceeds of approximately HK$419,256,000.

We also entered into an agreement on 3rd December, 2007 to
dispose in stages our Zhaoqing golf course property development,
on which the profit should be recognised in 2008.

Tian An China Investments Company Limited



(2)

RMERELEETERLBERTR
HFATERES  URBRBREABES
BN ZWE R R -

BmEEERA

BARIEMEEERA - AEE—HHRN
REREELZHRMEUFERE - M
MRS b F 9 245 A48 N & AR
VAR EREAEE - HEERY
EhRERE PEEEZARGEHME
EMEMREzSERENELARY
2 EXEWmKBEL LmRE
AR EERPELEFELR - &
PRERE - RBODERRLEZSE
MEELAE  RASRBWEANSAK
SEXBEREAER  BHEMEANS
EESRETHBERZRARKNEHE

BERMBULENEEBERREME R
BB ERKE - AR ARFE
RMETIRIESHERIZAAGE -
HEEEAREMENTEEHGE -

ERFNEIEREVEW LEBRRZ P
O RERZEBRAE - @RRXRER
REFRILERRZSZEELHEBRIER
T HEBRABREF EF23% - #FIFE
HHE WAL R REHZRTHELD
BEERFELT - REENESKRAZ

REBR HACKBER LBRZHL
WERE - A - NEBEEKBT
REHL - IR EBERERAEER

525,306 F 5 K Z KBS 2 50%HE
HEWEZHBERHEIO -

EBREZEEFEIEB SR E [ R
CHEREESTARE - FHEZMRE
LR TEEREE 2R B ARKE
B —HzIRBRRHPERAFESEN
FEMGA - MEABRIREKALES
EHEZ—  BPIBRBRGERTRES
HHEEBREBERREYE -

(2)

We will continue to dispose of certain non-core assets so as to
free up working capital for investment in properties or landbank
which we consider to have greater potential.

Increasing recurrent income

In regard to increasing recurrent income, the Group has retained
more development properties for investment where we believe
these properties will provide increasing rental streams and
corresponding increases in capital value. The rationale behind
this initiative includes a tough PRC tax regime which adversely
impacts the high profit margins on property sales, the difficulty
in acquiring quality land in major cities, and ultimately, with the
continuing growth in Mainland China, we believe that it is
commercially sound policy to retain a substantial portion of our
properties for their capital growth rather than dispose of them
and incur the costs and difficulties of replacing the land.

At the time when we transfer these properties into our investment
portfolio, we record a significant gain because all properties for
development are stated at cost under the accounting standards
and as such are not revalued until transferred to our investment
portfolio.

For our main investment properties such as Shanghai Tian An
Centre, Dalian Tian An International Tower, Nanjing Tian An
International Building and Beijing Park Apartments, leasing has
been pleasing with rental income increasing by 23% as compared
with last year. We expect rental income to increase in the
foreseeable future as and when leases are renewed. Pursuant to
our stated objective of increasing our rental income, we bought
back two floors of Shanghai Tian An Centre. The Group has also
acquired 50% of Novel Plaza with total GFA of 25,306 m? and
located in close proximity with Tian An Centre in Nanjing Road
West, Shanghai. The occupancy rate is approximately 90%.

The Shanghai Sunshine Peninsula project, or the “Flour Mill”
development, is progressing satisfactorily. We are in the final
stages of negotiation for the removal of the last remaining homes
and factories from the site. Construction of Phase 1 of the
development is expected to commence by the 4th quarter of
this year. This project on completion will be a significant landmark
in Shanghai and we currently intend to retain it as an investment
property after completion of the development.
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(4)

Maximising development profit

We do not utilise a stated GFA sale target as some other
companies may do. Our focus is on profit and profit margins,
not on GFA sold. With the strong PRC property market in 2007,
the Group sold approximately 102,400 m?, compared to
approximately 79,100 m? in 2006, and if the demand for PRC
property remains strong, the Group will continue to sell more,
with profit margins always firmly an overriding consideration.

A total GFA of approximately 87,900 m? (2006: 83,800 m?) of
residential/commercial properties was completed during the year,
representing an increase of 5% over last year. By the end of
2007, a total GFA of approximately 363,000 m? (2006: 282,300
m2) was under construction, representing a 29% increase from
the preceding year, including Shanghai Tian An Villa (Phase 2),
Wuxi Manhattan (Phase 1), Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1),
Shenzhen Tian An Golf Garden (Phase 3), Shenzhen Longgang
Cyber Park (Phase 1), Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 3),
Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 4), Foshan Tian An Cyber Park
(Phase 1) and Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (Phase 4).

Sometimes, in order to take advantage of the buoyant property
market, it may not be necessary to completely develop a property.
In order to maximise development profit, it may be better to
dispose of a project in its entirety. In this regard, as mentioned
previously in section (1) above, we disposed of Xinhui and Nanjing
Moling town projects at a profit of approximately
HK$197,099,000.

Increasing landbank in major cities

The Group currently has a landbank of total GFA of approximately
7,154,000 m? (total GFA attributable to the Group is
approximately 5,167,000 m?, consisting of 276,000 m? of
completed investment properties and 4,891,000 m? of properties
for development).
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We have continued to increase our landbank where we perceive
good capital growth prospects. In this regard, we have acquired
a 1,000 mu piece of land in Nanjing and are in the process to
acquire a 32,000 m? office building in Dalian previously used by
the local government as offices. For the project in Nanjing, we
intend to build an integrated business park, which will include
industrial, commercial, office and residential components. For
the project in Dalian, we intend to develop the project into a
residential property for sale with a potential GFA of 110,000 m2.
We are also in the process of negotiating with local authorities
to increase our landbank in Wuxi (600 mu) and Changshu (1,000
mu), where we intend to build integrated business parks.

Our joint venture company, Shenzhen Tian An Cyberpark Co.,
Ltd. (“Tian An Cybepark”) has also been actively increasing its
landbank in 2007. The acquisition of Taicang (500 mu with option
to increase by also 500 mu), Changzhou (434 mu) and Wuhan
(530 mu) together will add approximately 2,110,000 m? GFA to
its landbank. Tian An Cyberpark has also been negotiating with
local authorities to increase the plot ratios applicable to certain
projects. If successful, this should increase profit margins as and
when the properties are developed.

Streamlining operating processes

We have continued to streamline our operating processes both
at an operational and at a business level.

At the operational level, we have continued to centralise financial
controls, tender processes, and administrative functions. We have
taken advantage of our strong financial position to negotiate
better terms with bankers where possible. Plans are being made
to close relevant dormant companies so as to lower operating
costs. In order to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the
operation, the group internal audit department has reviewed
certain areas of the daily operations and has made suitable
recommendations for modifications and improvements.
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On the business level, we have been taking advantage of the
market uncertainties created by the revival of the LAT to negotiate
with our minority joint venture partners to acquire their stakes.
This is intended to enable us to exercise better management and
cost control. In this regard, the Group acquired an additional
8% of an associated company, Jack Rock Development Limited
("Jack Rock”), which holds a sizeable landbank in Fuzhou. Jack
Rock has become a subsidiary after the acquisition.

Continuing to strengthen the professional
management team

We have based additional key management personnel in Shanghai
to reduce response time. We have recruited professionals
including engineers and interior designers so as to enable us to
deliver better quality products to our customers. We are also
strengthening our back-office with new recruitments in contracts,
legal and accounts departments to be based in the respective
areas of operation.

We have strengthened our sourcing division with the view to
improving the pricing, consistency and quality of our building
materials.

ORIX Corporation (“ORIX"), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, has seconded several senior staff to help strengthen
our financial planning. They have been exploring new projects
with us with a view to co-investing with us should appropriate
opportunities arise. The introduction of ORIX and several other
institutional investors such as Penta Investment Advisers Limited,
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and York Capital Management
have strengthened our shareholder profile.
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Managing Director’s Statement

OUTLOOK

We have enjoyed a successful year in 2007. However, we are
concerned with the deteriorating operating environment in 2008.
The government’s move to tighten credit intended to rein in inflation
and to restrict investment in property by controlling fund inflows is
having a negative effect on the sentiment of both local and overseas
investors. This together with a weaker IPO market, a US recession
and sub-prime worries suggest tough times may be ahead. However,
we are confident of the longer term prospects of the property market
in China.

The management is cognizant of the impact of such adverse short
term fluctuations and has prepared the Group for such challenges.
The Group is in a strong position and expects to be able to carry out
its stated strategies and objectives for the benefit of all Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and
the staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the
past year, to the Shareholders for their understanding and support,
and to the customers for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW
1. INCOME SOURCES

Income derived from operations in property development, property
investment and joint venture investments in the PRC constituted the
most significant source of revenue to the Group. An analysis is as
follows:

(1) Property development

Revenue derived from property development increased from
HK$345,975,000 to HK$478,089,000 compared with 2006. Projects
offered for sale during the year mainly consisted of Nantong Tian An
Garden (Phases 2 and 3), Changzhou New City Garden (Phase 5),
Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 1), Wuxi Redhill Peninsula (Phase 3),
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden (Phase 2B) and Changchun Tian An
City One.

(2) Property investments

During the year, Shanghai Tian An Centre, Dalian Tian An International
Tower and Beijing Park Apartments had satisfactory leasing result
and led to rental income increase from HK$95,903,000 to
HK$117,739,000, soaring by 23%. The rental income is expected to
grow in 2008.

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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(3) Joint venture investments

Contribution to profit (loss):
Share of profit (loss) of associates
— Profit (loss) after tax before

additional PRC Land Appreciation Tax

(llLATH)
— Additional LAT attributable
to sales in previous years

Share of profit of jointly controlled entities

— Profit after tax before additional LAT
— Additional LAT attributable

to sales in previous years
— Additional LAT attributable

to sales in current year

2007 2006
FTET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
72,166 (4,081)
- (1,923)
176,114 71,617
- (101,639)

- (12,430)
248,280 (48,456)

Contribution from joint venture investments to profit for 2007 was

not affected by the provision of additional LAT.

RKEZH & EBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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2. MAIJOR SALES

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group’s sales activities
were concentrated principally on the following projects:

HEEHER
GFA sold
Project A%  Use EHK m?
Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech
Ecological Park (Phases 2, 3 and 4) [ES Commercial 31,822
Nanhai Tian An Hung Kai Garden f%  Residential 6,811
Foshan Nanhai Tian An
Cyber Park (Phase 1) ¥ Commercial 8,081
Changzhou New City Garden (Phase 5)  F = Residential 9,810
Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 1) FFE Residential 10,773
Nantong Tian An Garden (Phases 2 and 3) {¥% Residential 11,818
Wuxi Redhill Peninsula (Phase 3) F= Residential 7,078
Changchun Tian An City One f%=  Residential 5,806
Dalian Tian An Seaview
Garden (Phase 2B) F=x Residential 1,822
Other projects #H%,/ Commerciall
FF Residential 8,579
Total 102,400

3. LAND PORTFOLIO

The Group currently has a landbank of total GFA of approximately
7,154,000 m? (total GFA attributable to the Group is approximately
5,167,000 m?, consisting of approximately 276,000 m? of completed
investment properties and approximately 4,891,000 m? of properties
for development), located mainly in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing,
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Foshan, Nantong, Wuxi, Changzhou, Nanjing,
Fuzhou, Changchun, Dalian, Wuhan, Zhaoging and Jiangmen.

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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As at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s land portfolio principally consisted of the

following:

(1) Properties for development

Region
Northern China
Eastern China

Southern China

Total

[EES
Commercial

F 75K m?

T=E
Residential

FHK m?

rEEERS
HEEHER
GFA
attributable
to the Group

F 5K m?

(2) Completed investment properties

Region
Northern China
Eastern China

Southern China

Total

Tian An China Investments Company Limited

- 374,000 374,000

912,000 1,310,000 2,222,000
586,000 1,709,000 2,295,000
1,498,000 3,393,000 4,891,000
rEBEEM

BREER

GFA

[ZES = attributable
Commercial Residential  to the Group

FFHK m?

FH K m?

FH K m?

68,000 17,000 85,000
143,000 - 143,000
48,000 - 48,000
259,000 17,000 276,000
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4. EMPLOYEE AND TRAINING

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group, including its subsidiaries but
excluding associates and jointly controlled entities, employed 1,870
(2006: 2,560) persons. The decrease is mainly due to the disposal of
Shanghai Allied Cement Limited. The Group maintains a policy of
paying competitive remuneration packages and employees are also
rewarded on performance related basis including salary and bonus.

The profile of the Group’s management staff as at 31st December,
2007 is listed below:

HE RAUBEAL REEXE 25-358% 3BEmU L
Region Qualified Professionals  University Graduates Age 25-35 Age Over 35
BB 14 (70%) 12 (60%) 3(15%) 17 (85%)
Hong Kong

=31 24 (69%) 32 (91%) 10 (29%) 25 (71%)
Northern China

e 71 (62%) 82 (72%) 27 (24%) 87 (76%)
Eastern China

R 16 (67%) 20 (83%) 9 (38%) 15 (63%)

Southern China

EREBEEINASETARXRZERLE
E - RERNSBABEIRE RO
BEINMEBEEREHETIHRNAERH -
ZERABNMESTFRGE M BEHRRME
15~ 16F149 - KR A BRI EIE N FE 167
Z168H °

Quality staff has always been the Group’s indispensable intangible
asset. Training programmes were organised during the year to ensure
that both the market sensitivity of the front line people and the cost
consciousness of the back office staff were well maintained. The
emoluments of key management personnel can be seen by reference
to notes 15, 16 and 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in
pages 167 to 168.

KEZPRHIKER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
1. Liquidity and Financing

During the year, the Company raised approximately HK$1,148 million
of net proceeds through the subscription of 130 million new shares,
and obtained HK$1,497 million of net proceeds in the open offer of
252 million new shares. These funds have been used to finance certain
property development projects, to reduce borrowings and for general
working capital.

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group maintained its liquidity at a
healthy level with a balanced portfolio of financial resources. The
total bank balances and cash reserves of the Group were approximately
HK$3,163 million, providing sufficient working capital for the daily
operations of the Group.

As at 31st December, 2007, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,904 million (2006: HK$2,195
million), including current liabilities of HK$774 million (2006: HK$870
million) and non-current liabilities of HK$1,130 million (2006:
HK$1,325 million). The Group had enough cash to settle total
borrowings as at the end of 2007. The gearing ratio (net debt over
total equity) of the Group as at 31st December, 2007 was a negative
of 14% (2006: positive of 24%). The borrowings were mainly used
to finance the landbank and properties under construction. Increase
in finance costs is mainly due to the increase in market interest rates
and a relatively small amount of costs were capitalised.

Approximately 51% of the Group’s outstanding debts will expire
within 2 years. Since the investments and operation of the Group are
carried out in the PRC, most of the bank borrowings are denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") which will be repaid in the same currency.
Around 80% of the Group’s borrowings bear interest at fixed rates
while the remaining is at floating rates.

iz & B[R~ a Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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2. Pledge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group's interest in a subsidiary with
carrying value of HK$402,236,000 was pledged against an other
loan facility granted to the Group and inventories of completed
properties and investment properties indirectly held by that subsidiary
with carrying values of HK$16,780,000 and HK$631,494,000
respectively were pledged against a banking facility granted to the
Group. Additionally, bank deposits of HK$89,912,000, aggregate
carrying values of property, plant and equipment, development
properties and investment properties of approximately HK$47,893,000,
HK$1,197,396,000 and HK$1,461,163,000 respectively, were pledged
for other loans and banking facilities granted to the Group, mortgage
loans granted to property purchasers and against a trade creditor.
Details of the pledge on assets are shown in note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements.

3. Contingent Liabilities

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the PRC government
has reinforced the compliance of regulations on idle land confiscation
which was issued by the Ministry of Land Resources of the PRC on
26th April, 1999. As at 31st December, 2007, a property for
development with carrying value of HK$115,055,000 was identified
as idle land, which delayed development was due to the legal action
taken by a minority shareholder against the subsidiary. This legal case
has been settled and the Group intends to continue the development
of this property. Another property for development with carrying
value of HK$179,161,000 may be potentially classified as idle land.
The Group is currently working diligently to prevent the possible
classification, including negotiating the feasibility of development plans
with local authorities. Based on legal advice, the Directors have
assessed the issue and consider that the idle land confiscation may
not materialise.
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3. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

As at 31st December, 2007, guarantees given to banks by the Group
in respect of banking facilities granted to a jointly controlled entity
and related companies were approximately HK$139,133,000 and
HK$98,500,000 respectively. Guarantees given to banks in respect of
mortgage loans granted to property purchasers amounted to
approximately HK$225,324,000. All the guarantees provided by the
Group were requested by banks and under normal commercial terms.
Legal actions were taken against the Group resulting in possible
contingent liabilities of approximately HK$205,372,000. The Group
has assessed the claims and obtained legal advice, and considers that
either it is too early to assess the range of possible liability at this
stage or no additional provision is required to be made. Details of the
contingent liabilities are shown in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AEZHR & EFR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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1. MAIJOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Southern China

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

Located at the heart of Shenzhen and adjacent to Shenzhen Golf
Club, this large-scale project occupies a site area of approximately
273,500 m? with a total GFA of approximately 787,700 m2. The
Cyber Park consists of industrial/office buildings, cyber technology
buildings, deluxe residential apartments and multi-function clubhouse.

The lettable commercial GFA is 49,225 m?, including remaining areas
of Cyber Times Building and Tian An New Technology Plaza (Phases 1
and 2) and Tian An Hi-Tech Venture Park.

Tian An Golf Garden Phase 3 (“Long Yuan”) with a total GFA of
109,000 m? comprises high-rise luxurious residential buildings. The
project is expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2008.

A new project situated right at the new city central area — Nancheng
District of Dongguan and covers land area of 1,000,000 m? with gross
floor area of 2,200,000 m? is under negotiation with the local
government.

Shenzhen Longgang Cyber Park (50%)

Located in the core area of Longgang in Shenzhen, this project has a
site area of approximately 118,850 m? and GFA of approximately
356,500 m2. The model of Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park will be used
to develop this project. Phase 1 has been commenced, with GFA of
approximately 51,800 m? and expected to be completed in 2008.

Shenzhen Buji Land Site (50%)

This project was acquired in 2007 with site area of approximately
5,241 m? and GFA of approximately 95,600 m?. Located in Buji of
Shenzhen, the project is planned to be developed into a commercial/
residential building.
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Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (49%)

Located in the central district of Panyu in Guangzhou, this large
scale project has a site area of 517,153 m? and a total GFA of
approximately 712,500 m?. Phase 4 with GFA of approximately 101,400 m?
is under construction and expected to be completed in 2008. The
park development consists of industrial/office buildings, science and
technology buildings, high-class residential buildings and multi-function
clubhouse.

Foshan Nanhai Tian An Cyber Park (45%)

Located in Guicheng of Nanhai with site area of approximately 103,100 m?
and GFA of approximately 257,800 m?. This project is planned to be
developed with the similar concept as Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park.
Phase | was commenced in 2007, with GFA of approximately 60,500
m? and expected to be completed in 2008.

Nanhai Tian An Hung Kai Garden (30%)

Located in the Nan Guo Peach Garden resort area of Nanhai in Foshan,
the 800 mu-site is being developed by phases into a low-density
residential complex with vacation amenities. Phases 1 and 2 consist
of a total GFA of 91,600 m?. By the end of 2007, 98% were sold.

Huizhou Danshui Site (100%)

Located in Danshui of Huizhou and lying by both sides of Dan Shui
River, this project has a site area of approximately 392,000 m? and
GFA of approximately 783,000 m2. The project is planned to be
developed into a comprehensive commercial/residential composite.

Jiangmen Tian An Garden (60%)

The project comprising residential buildings, shopping mall, clubhouse
and underground car park is located at the centre of Jiangmen city.
Having a site area of 42,388 m? and total GFA is 127,200 m?, the
project is suspended for master plan improvement.
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Eastern China

Shanghai Tian An Place (75.05%)

This project is situated at the Golden Honggiao District where the
oriental and international residents like to reside and adjacent to the
entrance of the transit station of Subway No. 9. The project will be
developed to a deluxe residential district with a site area of
approximately 362,300 m? and a total GFA of approximately 470,000 m?.
Phase 1 of the project has a GFA of approximately 44,500 m? has
been commenced in 2007.

Shanghai Tian An Villa (85%)

This project is located near the Shanghai Sheshan National Travel and
Resort Area. The project combines the art of western architecture
and eastern architectural style, integrating island living, water facing,
garden and greenery. Construction work for the Phase 1 low density
high-class villas with GFA of approximately 32,200 m? was completed.
Phase 2 Part 1 villas with GFA of approximately 16,250 m? are under
construction and expected to be completed by the end of 2009.

Shanghai Elegant Garden (60% share of profit of the remaining
site)

Situated by the side of the well-known Shanghai Xijiao Hotel, this
development is one of the best-selling luxurious villa projects in the
Honggiao District. The Group participates mainly in the development
of the remaining site. The last phase with a GFA of approximately
13,400 m? is expected to be completed in mid-2009.

Shanghai Tian An Sunshine Peninsula (100%)

Located in the Putuo District of Shanghai, this project is to be built
along the 1,100 m bank of Suzhou River with a site area of
approximately 82,752 m?2. This project has been re-planned as a
commercial and entertainment complex. Construction work of Phase 1
is expected to commence by the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Wuxi The Manhattan (100%)

This project is situated to the southwest of Wuxi city centre on a site
of 59,480 m? to be developed into a total construction area of
approximately 146,200 m?. Phase 1 of approximately 70,100 m? is
under construction and expected to be completed in the second
quarter of 2009.

Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Changzhou Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone,
with a site area of approximately 289,496 m? and a total GFA of
approximately 545,200 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into comprehensive science and technology buildings, commercial
and residential composite.

Changzhou New City Garden (100%)

The project is one of the top grade residential areas in Changzhou
City. The project has been completed with a total GFA of
approximately 214,300 m? as a whole. The shop areas of
approximately 7,140 m? are retained for leasing purpose.

Changzhou Tian An Villa (100%)

This project is located in the Wu Jin District, the planning and
development focus of the Changzhou government. With a favourable
location, it is the largest deluxe villa district in Changzhou. The project
occupies a site of 473,335 m?. Construction work for Phase 1 with a
total GFA of 39,400 m? has been completed. Phase 2 is under planning
stage.

Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Nanjing Baixia Hi-Technology Industrial
Development Area with a site area of approximately 666,670 m?
and a total GFA of approximately 833,338 m?. The project is planned
to be developed into comprehensive science and technology
buildings, commercial and residential composite.
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Clubhouse of Changzhou Tian An Villa
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MBEXZIEE (100%)

ZEEMNREBEFHREZOME (i
203,800 F 5K - A HEMEIE230,000F 7
K- REBE—ARREREAENDE B
AT E A4 164,400F K - ERET2E
HEEEA10,900F 7K - BEARZZEZENF

EFE-FET-
EiE
REXZBRTEE (60%)

WEBERMNAELELMFEMHERAN
BHEE - CHEE—SHLAE _HLEAMA
FE4)84,100F K » BBE=EAE IR EIRET

REXRZFE—# (100%)

ZEBETEBEEMRRET M EMEZRER
A {HH4)389,200F K - TiR4@E
EHIEAA62,000F 5K - o HIEE - B
MEE— - —HRIEEEEL110,400F 5
K BZHH48,100F S RER T+ F
NARBREE -

2. TEYERE
EBRZH D (98%)

ZRELZEREETERAABKARESF L
BESsE o A — - —SRgthEAD - 2
—E-tESHNRREERE - QIEE@E
B48,910F 5K - BEEH24,940F 5K » B
1 ME1,620F 5K » 828 TH# 22,350 75
KX - BEAKEVE BAFRPZABRKXD
% o

LK &S (50%)
FA - SERBHBORZHO - LR EER

AR AEEEEE25,306F 5K 2 kHES
Z50%HEm  EMEZHBEERLYAEI0% °

Nantong Tian An Garden (100%)

Situated on a site of 203,800 m? with a total GFA of 230,000 m? at
the heart of the New City Zone of Nantong, this is the first massive
ecological residential project in Nantong. Development for a GFA of
approximately 164,400 m? was completed. Construction work for a
GFA of approximately 10,900 m? is expected to be completed in the
second quarter of 2009.

Northern China

Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden (60%)

This project for high-class residential development is located in the
Dalian Economic & Technology Development Zone. Phases 1 and 2
with a total GFA of approximately 84,100 m? have been completed.
Phase 3 is under planning and design stage.

Changchun Tian An City One (100%)

This prestigious residential project is situated within the Changchun
High-technology Industrial Development Area. Erected on a site of
approximately 389,200 m?, the project with a total construction area
of approximately 462,000 m? is being developed by stages. Phases 1
and 2 with a total GFA of approximately 110,400 m? have been
completed. Phase 3 consisting of a total GFA of approximately 48,100 m?
has been pre-sale in August 2007.

2. MAJOR PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

Shanghai Tian An Centre (98%)

The office building is situated at the hub of Shanghai central business
district of Nanjing Road, West and People’s Square, adjacent to the
entrances to the transit platforms of Subway Nos. 1 and 2. It is a
30-storey Grade A commercial building with a GFA of 48,910 m?.
24,940 m? were sold, 1,620 m? were self occupied and the remaining
GFA were 22,350 m?, have been transferred to property investment.
Most of the tenants are multinational companies.

Shanghai Novel Plaza (50%)

During the year, the Group has acquired 50% of Novel Plaza with
total GFA of 25,306 m? and located in close proximity with Tian An
Centre in Nanjing Road West, Shanghai. The occupancy rate is
approximately 90%.
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FARRRZEMAE (100%)

ZERAMNRERTHRLOHED  EEATR
FEMNEYER - B EE  BSERR
TE#)58,560F HAE 2 HBHAL —FREEA
B BEFBEMMEBLY1,500F 5K B26&
235 F K - BT 411,265F 5K » Erp
5,940 KB AR EME -

EMNRXZHTES (100%)

ZTUERERERMEYES  ShEF
BMBER —BHNREHERIE  BEEEE
48,400 5Kk - EN AN BRIETEME
24,400F 5Kk - AP @S HHIEEEE
24,080F KRBT ©

RERZEBKE (100%)

PRGN RET R ILEFR LB
2 EmEBHES  @EREE67,200F 5
K- EEE RRELZSMNIERMHER
Y o BE& 114,550 75K - B AEE1,320
FHK - AT HI51,330F K - HP49,960
FHARKEERIEEE -

ERREKE (40%)

BE# it mERJE M AL FIES c EREEmEE
9,700 F oK c M AERDEBEEHME o &
MAEREANEAEBHEE  THENRZZZ
NERARBEE -

R XZEE (100%)

trEEETEBMURIERBAGRAG BT
fl - #AfEER - HAREEREL 42,100
FhHK - ZBEBCDHEN —F HIETE
HERE -

REBEKRKE (25%)

GRERRERSERARNABEREEREZ

— RREOEHE - A RA R E D
REFBEKT -

Nanjing Tian An International Building (100%)

The project is located at Xinjiekou, the most flourishing shopping
district in Nanjing City. The building links up to the subway station.
The shopping arcades with a GFA of 58,560 m? have been leased to
a department store. Of the GFA of office approximately 11,500 m?,
235 m? were sold, and the remaining GFA were 11,265 m? of which
the GFA of 5,940 m? have been transferred to property investment.

Changzhou Tian An City Plaza (100%)

This 14-storey building with a total GFA of 48,400 m? comprises a
large shopping arcade, first-class offices and a hotel. The total GFA
for rent of the properties are 24,400 m? of which 24,080 m? of
shopping arcade has been leased.

Dalian Tian An International Tower (100%)

This Grade A office building is situated in the Zhongshan Road central
business district and faces the Victory Square in Dalian City. The total
GFA is 67,200 m?2. This 52-storey building is the tallest landmark
building of Dalian. 14,550 m? were sold, 1,320 m? were self occupied
and the remaining GFA were 51,330 m?, of which the GFA of 49,960 m?
have been transferred to property investment.

Beijing Tian An Building (40%)

With a total GFA of 9,700 m?, this office building is located at a
prime site near the Beijing Hotel and Tian’anmen Square. The whole
building has been rented out to a lessee. The lessee has been
renovating the building as a business hotel, which will be commencing
business in May 2008.

Beijing Park Apartments (100%)

This premium residential project is located at the Beijing Chaoyang
District to the west of Chaoyang Park and adjacent to the Embassy
area. The project has a total GFA of approximately 42,100 m?.
Approximately half of the total number of units have been sold and
the remaining units kept for leasing purpose.

Tianjin International Building (25%)
Located in central business district and among the best office and

apartment buildings in Tianjin, the property has maintained rental
income and occupancy rate at a high level.



RINRZE R KE (50%)

ZIEEBRRABBARNE  UNRYITESE
ARBERESLER BARRITRREESE
MEHFIEKR RZEETRTE - H_ZT
T+HEESTERESHNEHEEXRDES 5
ZH96%M78% °

EMNEERZKE (48.75%)

MNRAEMNERLEBUAFRL - MABAF R
CRBEERE A0 P A ERAE - —
SEELFNFHAFERLT7.6% °

3. HitR#&E
BNEEBERRBREZ W (57.04%)

%78 B {h492,500,000°F 52K » B3 EK A
— &G H 47 1,718,400°F H K 1850 = Ak
NG MESFER - 8 THH49781,600
FAARKERABIERMEREMIREMLMR
MHESREELE - EFZ2ILHFE2ETK
B IR B S AT W IR R FRHL - AR B2 R &
BESEMAMALHER  fFER_ZZTh
FHEF —HAIE o

EESHRERN (87.97%)
ZHEECR - ZEZEF T -_A=ZHRILE

HEAD BB EEMEER  HENSR -F
ZENFEARK -

Shenzhen Tian An International Building (50%)

The building is located at the commercial centre of Renmin Nan Road
in Luohu District of Shenzhen. The increased competition in high-
class retail market in Shenzhen has affected the project. However,
the average occupancy rates of office and shopping centre still reached
96% and 78% respectively in 2007.

Guangzhou Parkview Square (48.75%)

Adjacent to Yuexiu Park, with a total of approximately 240 units of
offices and serviced apartments and situated at the heart of the
traditional economic and political centre in Guangzhou, the hotel
managed to achieve an average occupancy rate of about 77.6% in
2007.

3. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Fuzhou Summit Golf Country Club & Dengyun Resort (57.04%)

Built on a site of approximately 2,500,000 m?, of which site area of
approximately 1,718,400 m? was developed into an 18-hole golf
course, driving range and clubhouse, and the remaining site area of
approximately 781,600 m? will be developed into villas and other
deluxe living amenities. The revision of master planning of the Resort,
which would optimise the application of land resources, was completed
and submitted for approval. Development of a new phase of villas is
planned to be commenced in 2009.

Zhaoqing Resort & Golf Club (87.97%)
An agreement was entered on 3rd December, 2007 to dispose in

stages of this project, on which the profit should be recognised in
2008.



HE#B

Project Name

RNXZHES

AT BEE - REEH
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
Shennan West Road,

Futian District,

Shenzhen

RYIEE AR
AT R
Shenzhen Longgang
Cyber Park
Longgang District,
Shenzhen

RYBEBR

AT EEE HEE
gkl

Shenzhen Buji Site
Nanmendum, Buji Town,
Longgang District, Shenzhen

BNEBHENER

BMNT - EBE - Mg -
DEH

Guangzhou Panyu

Hi-Tech Ecological Park
Ying Bin Road,

Shi Qiao Town, Panyu District,
Guangzhou

BUBERZHEY
il BEE - HHE
A28

Foshan Nanhai Tian An
Cyber Park

Lot A2, Guicheng Road,
Nanhai District, Foshan

BEAZEELE
P pERE
DEE  BEXE

WEERE
Site Area
FHKm?

273,500

118,850

5241

517,153

103,100

529,700

Nanhai Tian An Hung Kai Garden

Hong Ji Main Road,

Songgang Town, Nanhai District, Foshan

ik

Use

BR
Factory
Es
Dormitory
Ak
Commercial
fi=
Residential

[E

Commercial

BEREE
Commercial &
Residential

B%
Commercial
=z
Residential

B%

Commercial

=z
Residential

TREEER

Buildable

Gross Floor

Area
FhRm
219,800
50,000

304,900

95,600

568,300

144,200

712,500

257,800

180,000

MEZEREHR

Particulars of Property Development

BRH HRIE £E i#
BEER BEER FEREE HAREH
BEEE Completed ~ Gross Floor Interest  Period of 4%
Project Gross  Areaunder  Heldby  Land Use Expiry
Progress Floor Area  Construction  the Group Rights Date
75 km? THAm FYears  FYear
AHBIER
Phased 219,800 - 50% 50 2038

Construction
Stage 50,000 - 50% 50 2038

304,900 - 50% 50 2038

104,000 109,000 50% 70 2058

678,700 109,000

7

IR - 51,800 50% 50 2055
Phased _
Construction
Stage

RER

RitBER - - 50% 50 2042
Planning &

Design Stage

IR E 154,000 54,400 49% 50 2052
Phased

Construction - 47,000 49% 50 2052
Stage

154,000 101,400

7

1B TR E - 60,500 45% 50 2056
Phased
Construction
Stage

7

HBIBE 91,600 - 30% 70 2063
Phased
Construction
Stage

KEZPRHIKER

% & B PR A7) Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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MEBREHR

Particulars of Property Development

BRH HEIE &8 1#

TREEER BEER BEER FEER EREFH
Buildable  BEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest  Period of 4
HRAR wEEE A% Gross Floor  Project Gross  Areaunder  Heldby LandUse  Expiry
Project Name Site Area Use Area Progress Floor Area  Construction  the Group Rights Date
TRk 77 Kkm? 77 Kkm? 77 km? FYears  FYear
BNk AEREE RER
Bl - BHE  AKE 392,000 Commercial 783000  RiER - - 100% 70 2074
Huizhou Dan Shui Site & Residential Planning &
Dan Shui Town, Huiyang District, Design Stage
Huizhou
IAXREE" fr= 8
Ifm - BIRE 42,388 Residential 111,900 BIRE - 38,600 60% 70 2063
Jiangmen Tian An Garden HER Phased
Peng Jiang District, [ Construction
Jiangmen Ancillary & Stage
Commercial 15,300 - 10,300 60% 70 2063
127,200 48,900
EEREARRAY fr= PERIRE
EF B0 EE# 1128500 Residential 500,000 Phased 11700 - 81.97% 70 2062
Zhaoqing Resort & Golf Club ? Construction
Huilong Town, Gaoyao City, Stage
Zhaoging
BNRELH i3 FHEIRE
BN BER388 % 781,600 Residential 604,500 Phased 10,200 - 57.04% 70 2062
Fuzhou Dengyun Resort HER Construction
No.388, Dengyun Road, Fuzhou A% Stage
Ancillary &
Commercial 143,600 - - 57.04% 70 2062
748,100 10,200
RERCHHR ff® RAR
HEM RCR - &BH 22,100 Residential 83500  RitkR - - 90% 70 2064
Wuhan Chongren Street Site N Planning &
Ji Xian Cun, Chongren Street, RER Design Stage
Wuhan Office &
Commercial 24,500 - - 90% 70 2044
108,000
Bzt - OEF KRG EREFEL - Notes: (Construction suspended for redesign.
DZBEERZZEZELFT_AETLE @Disposal Agreement was signed on December 2007.
EA

AEZHR & EFR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited



MEZEREHR

Particulars of Property Development

ExA ERIR &8 14

TEEEER BEER BEER FEER EREEH
Buildable  EHEE Completed ~ Gross Floor Interest  Period of 4%
RS WEER AR Gross Floor  Project Gross  Areaunder  Heldby landUse  Expiry
Project Name Site Area Use Area Progress Floor Area  Construction  the Group Rights Date
TR 75 Kkm? 75 Kkm? THAm FYears  FYear
LERZER iz FHEIRE
Lgm - BE EER 362320 Residential 405,800 Phased - 44500 75.05% 70 2073
HEEDT R HER Construction
Shanghai Tian An Place G Stage
Lot No. 52, Qibao Town, Ancillary &
(ao Bao Road, Commercial 64,200 - - 75.05% 70 2073
Minhang District, Shanghai
470,000 44,500
LBXRZRE(CR=H) fr=z HHEIER
L HMI654 $ip i 363200 Residential 308,700 Phased - 16,250 85% 70 2075
Shanghai Tian An Villa Construction
(Phase 2 & 3) Stage
Lot No. 654, Song Jiang, Shanghai
LEBERE (ZHB R=H) =z AEBIRR
LA ERK189 5 82,000  Residential 38,500 Phased 25,100 13,400 60% 70 2062
Shanghai Elegant Garden Construction
(Phase 2-3B & Phase 3) Stage
No.189, Long Xi Road, Shanghai
LERZBR¥E [ RAR
Ligm o ERE - BH 8,752  REE 194100  RirER - - 100% 70 2071
Shanghai Tian An Sunshine Commercial Planning &
Peninsula & Residential Design Stage
Chang Hua Road, Putuo District,
Shanghai
EBRZER (ZH6S) i RAR
L BAR10285% 3600 Residential 3600  FHER - - 80% 70 2068
Shanghai Central Garden Planning &
(Phase 3 GS) Design Stage
No. 1028, Jin Xiu Road
Shanghai
Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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MEBREHR

Particulars of Property Development

TREEER

Buildable

HRAR wEEE A% Gross Floor
Project Name Site Area Use Area
Tkt ke

E F=

BHm AMKBRNER 59,480 Residential 146,200
Wuxi The Manhattan

Taihu Main Road and Hubin Road,

B

S&

3t kim
ok

Sl

Wuxi
ENRZHES B
BT RERHE 28949  Commercial 173,300
RERE (i3
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park Residential 371,900
South Wuning Road,
Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone,
Changzhou
545,200
EMRRAE fr=
BN RER - RE 473335 Residential 134,400
Changzhou Tian An Villa
Ge Lake, Wu Jin District,
Changzhou
BRRZHEE A%
AR AT RAR 666,670  RfE 833,338
EXE fER Commercial — —
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park & Residential
Guanghua Road,
Baixia Hi-Technology
Industrial Development Area
Nanjing
HERREE %
mET IRE 203800 Residential 230,000

Nantong Tian An Garden
Gongnong Road, Nantong

RREE
Project
Progress

PEBIRE
Phased
Construction
Stage

RAR
Bitha
Planning &
Design Stage

PEBEIREE
Phased
Construction
Stage

RER

R ER
Planning &
Design Stage

AEBIRE
Phased
Construction
Stage

AEZHR & EFR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited

BRA
BEER
Completed
Gross
Floor Area

FFHAm

39,400

164,400

HERIRB £E
BEER fihRE
Gross Floor Interest
Area under Held by
Construction  the Group

T3 km?

70,100 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

10,900 100%

1

RREEH
Period of HRFH
Land Use Expiry
Rights Date
FYears  FYear

70 2074
50 2057
70 2077
70 2074
50 2057
70 207



TREEER
Buildable
FRER WEER AR Gross Floor
Project Name Site Area Use Area
TRARm? 7 Km?
RERRERTLE (i3
RER  BERRGAZE - 58650  Residential 122,100
EARE
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden
Liaohe West Road, Economic &
Technical Development Zone, Dalian
RERRE-H B
RERFBMERAER 389,200 Commercial 6,100
HEHE i3
Changchun Tian An City One Residential 455,900
High-Tech Industries Development
Zone, Changchun 462,000

Hret : ERBEBE-_TZLFT_A=+—HZE

Note:

MEZEREHR

Particulars of Property Development

BXA ERIR &0 1
REER BEER HEEE ERRER

BEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest  Period of 4

Project Gross  Area under Held by  Land Use Expiry

Progress Floor Area  Construction the Group Rights Date
THAm 77 km? FYears  FYear

PERIKER

Phased 84,100 - 60% 50 2043

Construction

Stage

PERIER

Phased 6,100 - 100% 70 2071

Construction

Stage 104,300 48,100 100% 70 2071

110,400 48,100

The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2007.

RLZFREIZEEAFBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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RERTFYEEHR

Particulars of Properties

BERER

Project Name

1. RIRZEER
AEBBEAEE (ZH)
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
Tian An Golf Garden (Phase 3)

2. RYEEBBHNE (—H)
Shenzhen Longgang Cyber Park (Phase 1)

3. REMEBEESENRE (mH)
REMBRERAR

under Construction

Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (Phase 4)

Hi-Tech Development Plaza

4. EMEBDEHRE (DS

EENE

Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (Phase 4)

Qing Hua Apartment

5. BILRZHEH (—H)
Foshan Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)

6. IMARZEE(—H)
Jiangmen Tian An Garden (Phase 1)

7. LBRZRE(—H)
Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1)

8.  LERZRHE(ZH)
Shanghai Tian An Villa (Phase 2)
Wuxi The Manhattan (Phase 1)

10. MBARER (M)
Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 4)

1. REXRRE-W(EH)
Changzhou Tian An City One (Phase 3)

B
Total:

Hrat
(1) REHHE -

(2) EHBE EHEL -

EEAE B E31/12/2007

BREER SEFEELER

Gross FiEIRBE  Total Attributable

BEHER KEMGESE Floor Area Estimated Gross Floor
Gross Interest Held Attributable Completion Area Sold up
Floor Area by the Group to the Group Date to 31/12/2007
FhoRm? T oRm? FhHAm
109,000 50% 54,500 4Q/08 -
51,800 50% 25,900 2Q/08 -
54,400 49% 26,600 2Q/08 9,400
47,000 49% 23,000 1Q/09 -
60,500 45% 27,200 2Q/08 8,100
48,900 60% 29,300 - -
44,500 75.05% 33,400 2Q/09 -
16,250 85% 13,800 4Q/09 =0
70,100 100% 70,100 2Q/09 -
10,900 100% 10,900 2Q/09 -
48,100 100% 48,100 3Q/08 =0
561,450 362,800 17,500

Notes:
(1) Not yet offered for sale.

(2) Construction suspended for redesign.

B) LtRBE-_ZZA+F+-_F=+—H2E#R (3) The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2007.

AEZHR & EFR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited



MERBIEREER

Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments

1. Y%
Property
KimEH
MEER Expiry
Property Name Date
F Year

RINIR 2 B
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
—RYRZ AR RS — H 2038
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science
and Technology Plaza, Phase 1

- AR ZEFRBEES 2038
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation
Science and Technology
Plaza, Phase 2

—RYI A 2051
Shenzhen Cyber Times Building

- AIBERLRBAERKRE 2038
Shenzhen Futian Tian An Hi-Tech
Venture Park

RYEBER26ELE 2051
Whole Floor of 26/F, Shenzhen Cyber

Times Building
RIRZERKE 2041

Shenzhen Tian An
International Building

RUINKRZEBERE20ELE 2041
Whole Floor of 20/F, Shenzhen Tian An
International Building

AIIEE — R AR 2033
Shenzhen Tian Bei Yi Road, shops
BMEBRLZREZAIZERDL 2052

Guangzhou Panyu Tian An
Hi-Tech Venture Centre

BMNEBRLRBEAFNAE 2052
Guangzhou Panyu Tian An
Hi-Tech Innovation Plaza

EMNEBRLHEZRS L 2052
Guangzhou Panyu Tian An
Hi-Tech Exchange Centre

FBXRZHL 2044
Shanghai Tian An Centre

LS
BREER
Property

GFA
FHkm?

10,540

4,400

20,525

13,760

1,975

31,800

850

1,460

60

4,280

2,640

22,350

EE
BEAR
Carparking
GFA
Fkm?

SEES
%8 BHER
PR GFA

Interest Held  Attributable B %

by the Group to the Group  Use
FHRm?
50% 5270 HERMRE
Commercial
and office
50% 2,200 HAE
Office
50% 10,260 FEERBLE
Commercial
and office
50% 6,880 HAiE
Office
100% 1,975  HRE
Office
50% 15,900 FEERNELE
Commercial
and office
100% 850  HAiE
Office
100% 1,460 EE
Commercial
49% 30 BE
Commercial
49% 2,100 EEREQE
Commercial
and office
49% 1,300 ®ERRLE
Commercial
and office
98% 21,900 FEERBAE
Commercial
and office

12 & B[R 2 A Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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MERBEREER (B)

Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments (continued)

VESY:

Property Name

EBRERLSEMI6ERE
Whole Floor of 5/F & 16/F,
Shanghai Tian An Centre

g ES
Shanghai Novel Plaza
LB ERE
Shanghai The Riverside

BHRZKE
Wuxi Tian An Building

EHALIFE

Wuxi Redhill Peninsula

HRRAZBERKE
Nanjing Tian An International
Building

BMRLHTES
Changzhou Tian An City Plaza

BINFH L

Changzhou New City Garden

HENERAEIERE

Whole Floor of 4/F, Nantong Sun Hoi
Tung Building

IHARRRBEE
Jiangsu Taicang Xingye Road,
Factory Building

REEBRAE

Tianjin International Building

ERXZKE
Beijing Tian An Building
IERE R R
Beijing Lakeside Garden

ERRLZ R
Beijing Park Apartments

RKEZH & EBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited

HREH
Expiry
Date
FYear

2044

2043

2036

2043

2041

2032

2043

2068

2043

2043

2044

2016

2064

2064

L/ES
BREER
Property

GFA
FHkRm?

3,384

1,420

1,480

64,500

24,400

7,140

3,730

52,730

9,700

3,240

B
BEAR
Carparking
GFA

T Km?

%8
PR
Interest Held
by the Group

100%

50%

99%

95%

95%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

25%

40%

100%

100%

SEERN
EEER
GFA
Attributable

to the Group
FhHAm?

3,384

12,650

1,500

1,350

1,410

64,500

24,400

3,730

3,880

3,240

12,910

ik

Use

N
Office

FiN
Office

[EES

Commercial

N
Office

[EES

Commercial

GEE VN
Commercial
and office

HERRNE
Commercial
and office

SRS

Commercial

iN
Office

Factory

RRER
RBEALE

Office and
service
apartment

/N
Office
F=E
Residential
F=E
Residential



VESY:

Property Name

ARERZBRILE

HREH
Expiry
Date
FYear

2043

Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden

RERZEBAE

2035

Dalian Tian An International Tower

RERZE

2051

Changchun Tian An City One

LRRZPL-EE

2044

Shanghai Tian An Centre, Carparking

TERZEE-%E

2067

Shanghai Central Garden, Carparking

2. BIE
Hotel
HE B

Project Name

BEMBERLKE

Guangzhou Parkview Square

REXZRBBERE

Wuhan Tian An Holiday Inn

BEMRLWTIEE9-12 18
9/F to 12/F, Changzhou Tian An City Hotel

Hret s ERBEBE-ZZLFFT_A=T-RZENRE

&l o

X % /1 R 3%

MERBEREER (F)

Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments (continued)

LES B
BEER BEAR
Property Carparking

GFA GFA by the Group
F 7 AKm? T Km?

640 -

49,960 -
1,496 -
378,900
- 7,770
- 6,160
13,930
WmEH KEFRGER
Expiry Interest Held
Date by the Group
F Year
2009 48.75%
2026 55%
2043 100%
Note:
2007.

Frib =
Interest Held

SEER
BHER
GFA
Attributable
to the Group

FHRm?
390

49,960

1,496

275,961

7,614

4,928

12,542

EEEE
Hotel
Gross Area
24,600

37,500

1,346

63,446

ik

Use

Tz
Residential

N
Office

[EES

Commercial

FE#E

No.

of

Rooms

240

407

26

The above table is based on information as of 31st December,
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that
good corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company
and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the light of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which came into effect on 1st
January, 2005, the Board has reviewed the corporate governance
practices of the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced
procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company has applied
the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code during the year ended 31st December, 2007, except
for certain deviations as specified, with considered reasons for such
deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current
practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.
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The Board currently comprises thirteen Directors in total, with six
Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of
the Board during the year and up to date of this report is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director)
(re-designated as Managing Director on 1st April, 2007)

Ng Qing Hai (Deputy Managing Director)
Ma Sun

Edwin Lo King Yau

Li Chi Kong

Yasushi Ichikawa

Non-Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chairman)
(appointed on 1st April, 2007)

Moses Cheng Mo Chi

Yuki Oshima

INEDs:
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Ngai Wah Sang
Xu Su Jing
Lisa Yang Lai Sum
(re-designated as INED on 1st July, 2007)

Goodwin Gaw
(resigned on 1st July, 2007)

The brief biographical details of the existing Directors are set out in
the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
in the Directors’ Report on pages 61 to 65. Other than that Mr. Lee
Seng Hui, the Chairman of the Company, is a cousin of Mr. Patrick
Lee Seng Wei, the Managing Director of the Company, there are no
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Group with a wide range of expertise and
experience. Their active participation in the Board and committee
meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of all shareholders.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has four INEDs representing nearly one-third of the Board. At least
one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each existing INED
an annual confirmation of his/her independence and considers that
all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the year,
four Board meetings were held and attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings is set out as follows:

HE/BEREE
EE22B2RY
Number of Board meetings
attended/eligible to attend

BITES:

FRE (EFHLEHE)
(R-_FBELFMA—HHER
BERKE)

HRB (BEFHKRE)

55

ot 52
7R

Z &Ml

Yasushi Ichikawa

FETES !

FRE (/)
(RZFEZELFMH—HZE)

B

Yuki Oshima

BYFHATES

EEE

REL

R

BB
(R-BZELFLH—HHER
BB ITEE)

RUERE
(R-—FEZELFLA—HFHT)

) % A

Executive Directors:
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director) 4/4
(re-designated as Managing Director on 1st April, 2007)

Ng Qing Hai (Deputy Managing Director) 0/4
Ma Sun 2/4
Edwin Lo King Yau 4/4
Li Chi Kong 4/4
Yasushi Ichikawa 3/4

Non-Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chairman) 2/2
(appointed on 1st April, 2007)

Moses Cheng Mo Chi 3/4
Yuki Oshima 1/4
INEDs:

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 4/4
Ngai Wah Sang 2/4
Xu Su Jing 3/4
Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/4

(re-designated as INED on 1st July, 2007)

Goodwin Gaw 1/3
(resigned on 1st July, 2007)
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating budget,
annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, material contracts and transactions
as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive
management under the instruction/supervision of the Executive
Committee which has its specific written terms of reference. The
respective functions of the Board and management of the Company
have been formalised and set out in writing which was approved by

the Board in June 2005. The Board will review the same once a year.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled to be held at
approximately quarterly intervals and as required by business needs.
At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so
far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of
each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment
before being tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The articles of association of the Company (the "Articles of
Association”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided
therein, a Director shall abstain from voting and not be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving any contract or arrangement
in which such Director or any of his/her associates have a material
interest.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005 to enable
the Directors, in the discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost
to be borne by the Company.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

In December 2005, Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei was re-designated from
Chairman to Chairman and Acting Managing Director whereas Mr.
Ng Qing Hai was re-designated from Managing Director to Deputy
Managing Director, and thus there was a deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Following the appointment of Mr. Lee Seng Hui as the Chairman and
a Non-Executive Director, and the re-designation of Mr. Patrick Lee
Seng Wei from Acting Managing Director to Managing Director both
with effect from 1st April, 2007, the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO") were separate and performed by different
individuals in compliance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. Under the current structure, Mr. Lee Seng Hui, being the
Chairman of the Company, is primarily responsible for the leadership
of the Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the
Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The functions
of a CEO are performed by Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the Managing
Director of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly
segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by the
Board in June 2005.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In June 2005, the Board has established and adopted a written
nomination procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the
process and criteria for the selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Executive Committee
shall, based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment
etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board
for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key applicable legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as
well as guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed
by a director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary
to give the new Directors more detailed information on the Group’s
businesses and activities.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby
the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office. The term of
appointment of the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) has
been renewed for further two years upon expiry on 31st December,
2006.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM"), one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company whilst for those appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following AGM and in both cases,
those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

KEZPRHIKER

% & B PR A7) Tian An China Investments Company Limited

45




46

TRERRE

Corporate Governance Report

NAEMERT - LIEH
EH$?’1\’E‘SE$/§5€E%5§ : ﬁ’ﬁkéé\@%
MEESERIRELEE (WKER) - &S

CEeRIERFRLRE (REXESFE]

Rl) BATER TN EE S & & MR
@ -
FHWzEg

YHNEEEER _EERAFAKL LB A
EE@%EXE% K BREEEELE(ZES
IR BRELALLE  RPKLELENBGER
Tt REGR/BUNFNTES - HFMZE
SRREHAMERABTHERBS  LAHRA
RARRAEERERZSRKBUEXER -

FHEZEe s ET2ZACRBER

(il BIBEFZFHBREFBEIANESS

RHER R(WES) REBEMATT
EEFMeRRFBHIER HEFE
KR

(i) iﬁiﬁﬁﬁ” EETHMEZRBBRR

DA AT I IR AR IR AR B Fr B

(i) WM ALRFANTES N REMESX

IRIEBBAZERBZIEE

(iv) Y EBRREFTTRREMEREX
RLEBESMARZBERE &

(v BEMEBEEE2HRBTEEAT 2HH -

) % A

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference.
Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board
members and the committees are required to report back to the
Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
“The Board”
committee meetings so far as practicable.

in the section above, have been adopted for the

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since June 2005
and currently consists of four members, including Mr. Francis J. Chang
Chu Fai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Ngai Wah Sang, Mr. Xu
Su Jing and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all of whom are INEDs. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
if considered necessary in accordance with the Company’s policy.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i)  to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policy
and packages of the Directors and, where appropriate, to consult
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director about the
Committee’s proposals relating to the remuneration of other
Executive Directors;

(i) to review and recommend performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives approved by the
Board from time to time;

(i) to review and recommend the compensation payable to Executive
Directors relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(iv) to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v) to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company were adopted in June 2005 to comply with the code
provision B.1.3 of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code
provision of the remuneration committee’s responsibilities to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management of a listed company. The Board considers that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company shall review (as opposed
to determine) and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors only and not senior
management for the following reasons:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not
properly in a position to evaluate the performance of senior
management and that this evaluation process is more effectively
carried out by the Executive Directors;

(i) the Remuneration Committee members only consist of INEDs
who may not be industry skilled and come from differing
professions and backgrounds and they are not involved in the
daily operation of the Company. They may have little direct
knowledge of industry practice and standard compensation
packages. The Remuneration Committee is thus not in a position
to properly determine the remuneration of the Executive Directors;

(iii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control
their compensation; and

(iv) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior
management more than industry standards and thus shareholders
will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation
packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the website of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. One

committee meeting was held in 2007 and the attendance of each
member is set out as follows:

HE/ RERERE

ZEESRZRE

Number of Committee meeting

ZEgRE Committee member attended/eligible to attend
BERE (L) Francis J. Chang Chu Fai (Chairman) 1/1
BES Ngai Wah Sang 1/1
PR Xu Su ling 1/1
5B Lisa Yang Lai Sum 0/0

(R-_FZE+FLtA—HZHF)

RETZEEEHRN FMEESTN -
ZLENEBRENXHIAREEE ° E’\_
ZELFANBEARSHY  FHZES
BETZ TEHSAMT

BEREREFTSHEE BB LY
TEFZREBIMNIRGEE RER FFH
TEF(BRBIFNATESR) 2EH
H-_ZETTELF A - HEFIWF:

—~
=

iif%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ilﬁﬂﬁ%%
(BRBIFNTES) 2FMEFE
(i) WAEFHZBR LR E
(ivy, RAMEZEFSHERE BT
BEE2RESN R

(v) R MEREFERHEAAIN A
%ﬂﬁéiz_yyﬂiiiﬁ EAL o

(appointed on 1st July, 2007)

In addition to the Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2007. In 2007
and up to date of this report, the Remuneration Committee performed
the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended the proposed service fees of those
INEDs and the renewal of the term of appointment of the
Non-Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for two years
commencing from 1st January, 2007 for the Board's approval,

(ii) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for the year ended
31st December, 2006;

(i) reviewed the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors;

(iv) reviewed and recommended the contract of employment of
an Executive Director for the Board's approval; and

(v) reviewed and recommended the payment of 2006 performance
bonus to an Executive Director for the Board’s approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTiINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’'s fee which is to be
proposed for the shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year. Further
remuneration payable to Directors (including any service fees of the
INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services will depend on
their respective contractual terms under their employment or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Details of
the remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the “Employee
and Training” section in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 17.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and key
employees of the Group, including the Executive Directors, the
Company has adopted a share option scheme in January 1999. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on
page 67 and note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 1999
and currently consists of six Non-Executive Directors, four of whom
are INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ngai Wah
Sang (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Dr.
Moses Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. Yuki Oshima, Mr. Xu Su Jing and Ms. Lisa
Yang Lai Sum. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice if considered necessary according to the Company'’s

policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Audit Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of those auditors;

to consider and discuss with the external auditors the nature
and scope of each year's audit;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity;

to review the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements before submission to the Board;

to discuss any problems and reservation arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the external auditors
may wish to discuss;

to review the external auditors’ management letters and
management'’s response;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to review the internal audit plan, promote co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and check whether
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group; and

to consider any findings of the major investigations from the
internal audit and management’s response.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Company
were revised in June 2005 (and further revised in June 2007) to
comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with the
deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors
to supply non-audit services;

(ii) ensure the management has discharged its duty to have an
effective internal control system; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee of the Company shall
recommend (as opposed to implement) the policy on the engagement
of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the following
reasons:

(i) it is proper, and appropriate for the Board and its committees
to develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of
such policy and recommendations is through the Executive
Directors and management; and

(iii) ~ INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and
follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee of the Company
only possesses the effective ability to scrutinize (as opposed to ensure)
whether management has discharged its duty to have an effective
internal control system. The Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure
that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision
and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit Committee is
not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the internal
and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit
Committee cannot ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced but it can check whether it is adequately resourced.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Three Committee
meetings were held in 2007 and the attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

HE/BERERE
ZEEEBZRY
Number of Committee meetings

Committee members attended/eligible to attend

BES (F7)
LI§EY
I

Yuki Oshima
R

15 B

RETREEERIN BREES J’J’E’\\_ z
ZEENEBENXHIAREEE - R =
ZTLFEARBEAREAY - %%Z%?E\%
EETZ TEBAMT

(i) FHRAEINSZBENZZ 2 AKEE
ECEERFTA=T-HLEFEZ
FREZ([ZZEZRFFRER] B
ECETEFRA=ZTHLEREARAZS
Hﬂ%ii%ﬁvﬁﬁ_yqtiqﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁj)&
BE_TTLF+-_A=1T—"HLFE
Ziikﬁﬁ?ﬁ_ggtiiﬁﬁﬁ%)z
ZBBENER

(i) BEIEZBEMREBE-_SEFFK
Bz _EELFHHENLR _ZTZ L
FEREGERIBERERE 20
FE

(i) BELEHAESTSEREHE _TTAF
TZA=1T-BLFE BE_ZZL
E'E/\H +E|JJ:/\{IH&@Z;|;_7 ?t
FT_A=+-"HLEFEZHBRER
Rz B T

) % A

Ngai Wah Sang (Chairman) 2/3
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 3/3
Moses Cheng Mo Chi 2/3
Yuki Oshima 1/3
Xu Su Jing 2/3
Lisa Yang Lai Sum 3/3

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2007. In 2007 and up
to date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the work
summarised as below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditors in respect of the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2006 (the “2006 Final Audit”), the interim
results review for the six months ended 30th June, 2007 (the
“2007 Interim Review”) and the final audit for the year ended
31st December, 2007 (the “2007 Final Audit”) of the Group;

(ii) reviewed the reports of findings from the external auditors and
the management’s response in relation to the 2006 Final Audit,
the 2007 Interim Review and the 2007 Final Audit;

(iii) reviewed and recommended the financial reports for the year
ended 31st December, 2006, for the six months ended 30th
June, 2007 and for the year ended 31st December, 2007 together
with the relevant management representation letters for the
Board's approval,
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Audit Committee (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

=

(viii

(ix)

reviewed the Report on Code on Corporate Governance Practices
— Internal Controls (Code Provision C.2) and the relevant internal
control documentation of the Group;

reviewed and approved the scope and fees proposed by an
external consultant to perform the review of certain internal
controls and procedures of a major property development project
of the Group in the PRC;

reviewed the Group Overall Risk Profile Analysis Report and the
Group Internal Audit Plan and Strategy Report prepared by the
group internal audit department (the “IAD");

reviewed the internal controls assessment report performed by
the external consultant and the IAD, and ensured that the issues
raised were addressed and managed promptly by the
management;

reviewed the internal audit review report/summary performed
by the IAD, and ensured that the issues raised would be addressed
and managed promptly by the management; and

reviewed and recommended the adoption of the Whistle Blower
Policy and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
for the Board's approval.

The “Whistle Blower Policy” outlines the communication
procedures through which employees can report in good faith
suspected departures from proper internal control procedures,
incorrect or improper financial or other reporting, or any alleged
unlawful or improper practices or wrongful conduct taking place
within the Group. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
was revised in March 2008 following the adoption of the Whistle
Blower Policy of the Company to comply with the recommended
best practice C.3.7(a) of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since February 2004
and currently consists of six Executive Directors, being Mr. Patrick Lee
Seng Wei (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Ng Qing Hai, Mr. Ma
Sun, Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, Mr. Li Chi Kong and Mr. Yasushi
Ichikawa. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general
powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as
are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved
for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms
of reference of the Executive Committee. The terms of reference of
the Executive Committee was revised in March 2008 following the
adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss
the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for
undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is
empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group
as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed,
following a specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

To comply with the code provision A.5.4 of the CG Code, the
Company has also adopted in June 2005 the Model Code, to regulate
dealings in the securities of the Company by certain employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries who are considered to be
likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company or its securities.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the finance department, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance were complied with. Appropriate accounting
policies have also been applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 81 and 82.

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems and ensure that the controls are
sound and effective to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and
the Group's assets at all times.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure;
and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives
and goals. It has a key role in the management of risks that are
significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to
safeguarding the Group’s assets, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper accounting records and assist in the compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Manager of the IAD reports to the Chairman and
the Audit Committee. The IAD plays an important role in providing
assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated by the management. This is part of the
Board'’s plan to enhance the standards of the Group’s overall corporate
governance and comply with the code provision C.2 of the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (conTiNUED)
Internal Audit (continued)

The Group Overall Risk Profile Analysis Report, and the Group Internal
Audit Plan and Strategy Report were prepared by the IAD and issued
to the Audit Committee and Board for review. A discussion of the
policies and procedures on the management of each of the major
types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The IAD performed an internal control assessment of the property
management group for the year ended 31st December, 2007. The
Internal Audit Report was distributed to the Audit Committee and
the Board for their review. The issues raised in the report would be
dealt with promptly by the management. In addition, the IAD also
followed up on the internal controls assessment report of the property
development project performed earlier by the external consultant and
the IAD, and ensured that the issues raised were addressed by the
management.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as

follows:
e EBNEA
mAEBERMZRE Services rendered for the Group Fee paid/payable
FE&TT
HK$'000
TR Audit services 3,300
FEZHRG (RIEEMRNEERE - Non-audit services (including review of
TR R RET R internal control, compliance of
EHPHEE  ARE Occupational Retirement Scheme
MEXSHMETZETRERF Ordinance, review of interim results,
FHFERGRARAZEEZ agreed-upon procedures for continuing
EEERARVISEERM) connected transactions, professional fee
for major transaction and open offer, and
preliminary announcement of results) 2,526
et Total: 5,826
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are also made available on the website of the
Company.

The Company’'s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman actively
participates in the AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer
any questions from the shareholders. The Chairmen of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective Committees, are also available to answer
questions at the AGM. A separate resolution is proposed by the
Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An
AGM circular is distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior
to the AGM, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures (including procedures for demanding and conducting a
poll) and other relevant information. The Chairman explains the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll again at the
beginning of the AGM, and (except where a poll is demanded) reveals
how many proxies for and against have been received in respect of
each resolution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes
and developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders
to promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

i
LoeCogiiin—
Lee S;ng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2008
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The Board is pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities as at 31st December, 2007 are set out in notes 52, 53 and
54 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
“PRC"). The
breakdown by principal activities of the Group’s turnover and the

carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the

contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities as at 31st December, 2007 are set out in notes 52,
53 and 54 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 83 and
84.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10 cents per
share of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2007, by
way of scrip with an option to elect cash, payable to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 23rd May, 2008.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management discussion and analysis is set out on pages 13 to
30.

KEZh BHEEFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately HK$15,795,000.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group and the Company during the year are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acquired investment properties totalling
approximately HK$221,097,000 and certain inventories of properties
under development upon completion and inventories of completed
properties of HK$23,291,000 and HK$319,540,000 respectively were
transferred to investment properties. The Group revalued all of its
investment properties as at the year end date. The surplus arising on
the revaluation amounted to HK$171,533,000 and has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST IN PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's interests in properties as at 31st December,
2007 are set out on pages 31 to 39.

SHARE CAPITAL, WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

Movements in share capital, warrants and options are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 89 and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 196.
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BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings which are repayable
within one year or on demand are classified as current liabilities.
Repayment analysis of interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings
are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. Interest capitalised by the Group during the year in respect
of properties under development amounted to HK$15,927,000, details
of which are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Ng Qing Hai

Ma Sun

Edwin Lo King Yau
Li Chi Kong

Yasushi Ichikawa

Non-Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui

(appointed on 1st April, 2007)
Moses Cheng Mo Chi
Yuki Oshima

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Ngai Wah Sang
Xu Su Jing
Lisa Yang Lai Sum
(re-designated as Independent Non-Executive Director
on 1st July, 2007)
Goodwin Gaw
(resigned on 1st July, 2007)
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ng Qing Hai, Mr. Li Chi Kong, Mr. Ngai Wah Sang,
Mr. Xu Su Jing and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 56, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in June 1996 and became the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and the Acting Managing Director of the Company
in February 2004 and December 2005 respectively. He relinquished
his role as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and was
re-designated from the Acting Managing Director to the Managing
Director of the Company in April 2007. Mr. Lee is an architect and
worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than twenty-two years
ago. He has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is also
the chief executive of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited and a non-
executive director of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited, both are substantial
shareholders of the Company. He is a cousin of Mr. Lee Seng Hui
(the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company).

Ng Qing Hai, aged 51, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in April 2003 and became the Managing Director of the
Company in October 2003. He was re-designated as the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company in December 2005. Mr. Ng
graduated from the Accounting Department of Shanghai Institute of
Building Materials in 1983 and became a member of the Association
of Registered Accountants of the PRC in 1994. He was admitted as
Management Consultant by Group ESSEC of France in 1988. He
became the vice chairman of China Building Materials Enterprises
Management Association in 2004 and a fellow of Asian Knowledge
Management Association in 2006. Mr. Ng has extensive experience
in managing enterprises. He is also the president and chief executive
officer of Shanghai Allied Cement Limited, a former non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited

61




62

EEEHS

Directors’ Report

ESNREREEAEBZBAER

HITES (&)

BH ANtTEtm R_ZETE=_FNOAEZFE
RARABZHTES - %ﬁ%ﬁé-h]\@i
MABEEFERAR] . —NWN\AFER
REH - ﬁ?%ﬁ%éalﬁéi%i{ﬁ?l\ e Fie
THRALERETIRERABE -+ -FK
TEHE  eRRERMEERER -

BRW N+t REFIFME IR
B M Macquarie UniversityZ JE A Bf 518 1+ -
R—ANNENREZTAEARRZHITE
EoRBERBEEZHRARBEZEHITEE
G BEELETRAEEARDNWE - IR
ARARZEFERRBEEBFRATR 5%/5\
EEARARAZHMENAHBHBIREBRA
ZHITESE o

ZEM A% ABREHESTE
ELERBEAGHMAGEREE KT
TNFE_ABZABARRZHITES 1
RUBREHTEEFLEELR  SEBR
ME AR B BRI RETZHELRE
ZEBEMARCEBENIEBE - BIAN
NEZ EBRREAHE (BE) BRARZ
WITESERARA S —TEREBEERE
RARZEENFRE - FHEEDARQA]
AIEEZEWB AR LEHBAIERNDEBRA
BB BB RAITESE -

Yasushi Ichikawa * i+ /X5 ' RZZEZE X
FRABZEARRRIZHITES - FEE
ORIX Corporation BFR % 7% &0 = #B PT 42 &
P ERAREMR I NBARIRNAESE
BBE FREBEEREBERTSE
FBFEAEEBB T /NFLH o Ichikawa 5t
EEERBARBRTILIAE  FBEHEEL
==Y v

) % A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ma Sun, aged 67, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in April 2003. Mr. Ma joined Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited
in 1984 and was then transferred to the Group in 1985. Besides
holding a Bachelor’s Degree of Electrical Engineering, he has extensive
experience in electrical engineering and over twenty-two years of
experience in China commercial business, financial investment and
property development.

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 47, a chartered company secretary and
holder of a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University, Australia, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in August 1999. He had served various executive roles in
several companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary for
publicly listed companies. He is also an executive director of Allied
Group Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Yu
Ming Investments Limited, an associate of Allied Group Limited.

Li Chi Kong, aged 54, a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, was appointed an Executive Director of
the Company in February 2004. He has broad experience in the finance
and accounting field, having worked in two major audit firms and as
group financial controller for several sizeable listed companies in Hong
Kong. He is also an executive director of Allied Properties (H.K.)
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and the group
financial controller of Allied Group Limited, another substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Li was previously the vice-president
and an executive director of Shanghai Allied Cement Limited, a former
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Yasushi Ichikawa, aged 56, was appointed an Executive Director of
the Company in May 2006. He was the managing director overseeing
the subsidiaries in the Greater China Region and the development of
new business at the International Business Department of ORIX
Corporation. He has over twenty-six years of experience in structuring
and marketing of structured asset finance. Mr. Ichikawa graduated
from Osaka City University in Japan with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Commerce.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors

Lee Seng Hui, aged 39, was appointed the Chairman of the Board
of Directors and a Non-Executive Director of the Company in April
2007. Mr. Lee graduated from the Law School of the University of
Sydney with Honours. Previously, he worked with Baker & McKenzie
and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. He is also the chief
executive and an executive director of Allied Group Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and an executive director of
Yu Ming Investments Limited, an associate of Allied Group Limited.
Mr. Lee is also a non-executive director Tanami Gold NL, the shares
of which are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. He is a cousin
of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (the Managing Director of the Company).

Moses Cheng Mo Chi, aged 58, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in May 1997 and was re-
designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. Dr. Cheng is the senior partner of P. C. Woo & Co., a firm of
solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong, and also one of the Company’s
solicitors. He is the Chairman of the Betting and Lotteries Commission.
He is also the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and Chairman
Emeritus. Dr. Cheng served as a member of the Legislative Council of
Hong Kong from 1991 to 1995 and Chairman of the Council and
Court of the Hong Kong Baptist University between 1997 and 2006.
He also serves on the boards of various listed companies both as
independent non-executive director and non-executive director.

Yuki Oshima, aged 60, was appointed a Non-Executive Director of
the Company in May 2006. He is a member of the Association of
Economics in Waseda, Japan and is currently the executive officer of
ORIX Corporation. He also serves on the boards of various overseas
listed companies namely ORIX Investment Bank Pakistan Limited, ORIX
Leasing Pakistan Limited and Lanka ORIX Leasing Company Limited.
He has over thirty-seven years of experience in leasing and finance.
Mr. Oshima graduated from Waseda University in Japan with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, aged 53, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Chang
is currently the deputy chairman and an independent non-executive
director of Quality HealthCare Asia Limited; and an independent
non-executive director of Royale Furniture Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Chitaly Holdings Limited) and APAC Resources Limited. He
was previously the chairman and an executive director of Trasy Gold
Ex Limited and an executive director of Golden 21 Investment Holdings
Limited (now known as China Financial Leasing Group Limited). Mr.
Chang is a registered person under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and since 2000 has been the managing director of Ceres
Capital Limited. He has over thirty years of experience in banking,
corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. Chang holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from Concordia University in Montreal,
Canada since 1976 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from York University in Toronto, Canada since 1977.

Ngai Wah Sang, aged 49, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He is
currently the deputy chairman of the board and the chief executive
officer of Earnest Investments Holdings Limited. He has broad
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and dealing
with business development and investments and previously worked
for international accounting firms and listed companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. Mr. Ngai holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from the
University of London in United Kingdom. He is a fellow of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and also a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong.

Xu Su Jing, aged 63, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. He was the director of
the Department of Enterprise Reform of Sinopec Group Company
and has retired since June 2005. He has extensive experience in the
macro-management of petrochemical enterprises. Mr. Xu graduated
from the Beijing Research Institute of Labor Safety in 1983 majoring
in safety technology engineering and holds a Master of Engineering
and the title of a senior economist of professor level.

iz & B[R~ a Tian An China Investments Company Limited



ESNREREEAEBZBAER

BYFBTES @)

BEBE Wt —m R—AhhF+—AK
RERARRRZBUIFFNTES YR _-F
TNFENARERARAZIFAITES - ®
R-FTLFLABRARRAZIERTESH
ERBIUFNTES - WARBERER
b MARTHEERMITZER BRI EX
REMNERAE BB ERREEELE
7 - FEERMN N REZ RZEER -

BREEAR

REKEE - M+E5% AEESOBALE -
R-FT=ZFF+_AMAREE - RELE
ERIUERBFERBIAIRR  BEIRE
Br8f - RAEBB-_TFIREENME
WEZERER -

HEE W+ =5 ARAAAEBRETEIK
SEMBRE  —NANAEFAAMALRSE
cHAEREEGHMASEERERE
AEEEHMASER  YHEATITHERRA
T8 -fHEEAEBEBTFMBERENLD

ER W+ am - ASEELREEE -
R—=AN—F+—AMAREE - EXLHE
EIREREELEM - RABEBTLFTP
BEMEZERIREELR -

BREE Wt R_STMF=-AEZ
ERARABZATIWE - RRBBRHFAA
WERAGNKEFHAMENRTHRABREE

g o

EEEHS

Directors’ Report

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 41, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in November 1999 and was
re-designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. She was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2007.
She is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and is a consultant of
Maurice Lee, Tsang, Ng-Quinn & Tang. Ms. Yang graduated from the
University of Sydney with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Law and Economics
and is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England.

Senior Management

Song Zhu Feng, aged 47, is the General Manager of the Contracts
Department of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2003.
Mr. Song graduated from The Civil Engineering Department of Tsing
Hua University in Beijing with a Bachelor’s Degree of Engineering. He
has over twenty years of experience in the fields of engineering and
property development.

Sunny Tao Tsan Sang, aged 43, is the Qualified Accountant of the
Company and Financial Controller of the Group. He joined the Group
in May 1994. Mr. Tao is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and holds a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration. Mr. Tao has over ten years of experience in financial
management and China business field.

Xia Qian, aged 45, is the General Manager of the Northern China
Region. He joined the Group in November 1991. Mr. Xia holds an
Executive Master’'s Degree of Business Administration. He has over
seventeen years of experience in property development and investment
in China.

Cindy Yung Yee Mei, aged 42, was appointed the Company
Secretary of the Company in March 2004. She is an associate of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

ML o

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited

65




EEEHS

Directors’ Report

EEzED

BRI EEN S RZFTLF+ A
=t—8" $E%$E$"TZ§$EJZE—%T?BU\
ERARAHEEMEREE (ERLE
KEIEGH ([REHERD]) EXVER) Z &
- HERDREEZTFEEREZESFNE
fFRBIF 35215 AT 7 2 Bt Arac ik » 3
TELHETAESTETESFR S ZFEST
ABNARBAREABARXSMABERLDA
([BEXP]) 2 EMEEIOAR -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31st December, 2007, none of the

Directors or chief executives of the Company has any interests or

short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the

SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers:

1. ZRELAEHEZPNELLREIRELERE A
2 #{Z5ELee and Lee Trust([LL Trust]) 2
BEFEA - WEFBLLTrustE KEEHAEE
ERAR([BEEE)EBRHTHRAY
42.60% M5 - MR GIEEHASEMEE
2R REERD 2 ERS - BRARRBER
ﬁ(i) 536,454 7228 M 0 ¢ K (i) 89,409,119

DRl RBEEE ([RREE]) MEEZ
Z'K F189,409, 119/ HE A% 10 2 2 ©

2. BHEmBEEAEG 62,550 BEKMD &
(i) 10,425 RAXHEF M EE 2 A2 710,425
BE AR AR (D 2 A o

3. REEEFETESAEARN ATR-_ZZTN
F-—RA-RAE-_ZE-TF-A= EI(@?%%
EMX) 2 HBEEAEEARNTSREES
MR 1078 7T (A 739 8) RE MR IR Z X

1/\ o

Pz AEEERER KRBT LF+ =

A=1t—8 REEFHERIF3526A
ThREZECMAE  TERABLK -

%z A

1.

2.

BEROR LB BT
HERGZHA BEZBEZ K
EEHE EEME Number of shares and Percentage to the
Name of Directors Nature of interests underlying shares held issued share capital
o R IR Hip#m 625,863,841 41.41%
Lee Seng Hui Other interests (Hfat13)
(Notes 1 & 3)
5 & (BN E 72,975 0.005%
Ma Sun Personal interests (H&E2kK3)
(EREREBAER) (Notes 2 & 3)
(held as beneficial owner)
Mt - Notes:

Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng
Huang are the trustees of the Lee and Lee Trust (“LL Trust”), being a
discretionary trust. They together, through the LL Trust, own
approximately 42.60% interest in the issued share capital of Allied Group
Limited (“AGL") and were therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares and underlying shares in which AGL was interested. The interest
includes the holding of (i) 536,454,722 shares; and (ii) 89,409,119 units
of warrants of the Company (the “Warrants”) giving rise to an interest
in 89,409,119 underlying shares of the Company.

The interest includes the holding of (i) 62,550 shares; and (ii) 10,425
units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 10,425 underlying shares
of the Company.

The Warrants entitle the holders thereof to subscribe at any time during
the period from 2nd January, 2008 to 2nd January, 2010 (both days
inclusive) for fully paid shares at an initial subscription price of HK$10
per share (subject to adjustments).

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2007, no short positions were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during the year ended 31st December, 2007, nor was there
any share option outstanding as at 31st December, 2006 and 31st
December, 2007.

Save as disclosed above, no rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company had been granted to or exercised by any
Directors or former Director or their spouses or children under the
age of 18 at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or former Director
or their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate with the exception of granting
of share options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
share option scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors or former Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 12% and 52% of
the Group's sales and purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

Set out below are the interests or short positions of persons in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31st December,
2007 as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

THRAT 336 of the SFO:
FEROREERG ZHA
Number of shares and underlying shares held
BAER EEEE ERBH
(B & (ZE%E LERS®T
BEAEHR) ZEF) BEzEH DL
Personal Corporate Percentage of
Interests Interests total interests
(held as (interest of HibfER BZEE to the
BREER beneficial controlled Other Total relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
FEEARAB([FIBE]) 625,863,841 - — 625,863,841 41.41%
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK") (BHiat1)
(Note 1)
amE (BB BERAR ([HamE]) - 625,863,841 — 625,863,841 41.41%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (Bf5t2) (B 5£3)
(Note 2) (Note 3)
e SBARAR ([MEEE]) - 625,863,841 — 625,863,841 41.41%
Allied Group Limited (“"AGL") (Kt at4) (Kt 3E3)
(Note 4) (Note 3)
Lee and Lee Trust (“LL Trust”) — 625,863,841 — 625,863,841 41.41%
(Hi5t5) (H5t3)
(Note 5) (Note 3)
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FERREREMA LT Z2#EEZ () INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

AND OTHER PERSONS (ConTINUED)

B
(g}

FEROREERG ZHA
Number of shares and underlying shares held
BAEE ZEE RS REREE
(B & (FE%E EERS®T
BEAEHR) ZEF) BEzE DL
Personal Corporate Percentage of
Interests Interests total interests
(held as (interest of Hit = A to the
BRERER beneficial controlled Other Total relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
Penta Investment Advisers Limited — — 349,396,800 349,396,800 23.12%
("Penta”) (fERKE
EREARE)
(held as
investment
manager)
John Zwaanstra — 349,396,800 — 349,396,800 23.12%
(Ki:te) (Hi3t7)
(Note 6) (Note 7)
Penta Asia Fund, Ltd. - 125,306,400 - 125,306,400 8.29%
("Penta Asia”) (ft7t8) (Ht7t9)
(Note 8) (Note 9)
Todd Zwaanstra — 125,306,400 — 125,306,400 8.29%
(K 3£8) (Kt&9)
(Note 8) (Note 9)
Mercurius GP LLC — — — 125,306,400 8.29%
("Mercurius”) (ftaz10)
(Note 10)
aEREEERAR ([RE]) - 157,959,800 — 157,959,800 10.45%
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (Biat11)
("Goldman Sachs”) (Note 11)
ORIX Corporation 122,500,000 — — 122,500,000 8.11%
(KraF12)
(Note 12)
UBS AG 5,790,845 188,110 91,339,360 97,318,315 6.44%
(Kt7£13)
(Note 13)
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS (ConTINUED)

B
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John Zwaanstrast 4 % i H 7 PentaZ 100%
MW RIERE ZERM RAAERD 27
7 © John Zwaanstradt & 713 8 1 4% Penta
Asia & Mercuriusil = 5 7 — 2 1 E R M H R
YE#E 5 Penta Asia X MercuriusFr#5 4 > B 1
REERG 2@ -

It A Penta X John Zwaanstrasc £ Ef D & 2
T ARG 107,794,200/ B 15 ¢ R (ii)
17,512,200 R AR B M &E &£ 2 &N 2 7
17,512,200 A8 B AR 1D < #E 2 o

The interest includes the holding of (i) 536,454,722 shares; and
(i) 89,409,119 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 89,409,119
underlying shares of the Company.

Through AP Jade Limited and AP Emerald Limited, direct and indirect
wholly owned subsidiaries of APL respectively, APL owned approximately
58.29% interest in the issued share capital of SHK and was therefore
deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares in which
SHK was interested.

The figure refers to the same interest of SHK in 536,454,722 shares and
89,409,119 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 89,409,119
underlying shares of the Company.

AGL owned approximately 73.85% interest in the issued share capital of
APL and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares in which APL was interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr.
Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of the LL Trust, being a discretionary
trust. They together owned approximately 42.60% interest in the issued
share capital of AGL and were therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares in which AGL was interested.

The figure refers to the same interest in 300,869,400 shares and
48,527,400 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 48,527,400
underlying shares held by Penta.

Mr. John Zwaanstra was deemed to have interests in the shares and
underlying shares through his 100% interest in Penta. Mr. John Zwaanstra
was also deemed to have interests in the shares and underlying shares in
which Penta Asia and Mercurius were interested through his control of
more than one-third of the voting power of Penta Asia and Mercurius.

These duplicated parts of the interests of Penta and Mr. John Zwaanstra
and include (i) an interest in 107,794,200 shares; and (ii) an interest in
17,512,200 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 17,512,200
underlying shares of the Company.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS (ConTINUED)

10.

11.

12.

13.

The interests were held by Penta Master Fund, Ltd. (“Penta Master”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Penta Asia. Mr. Todd Zwaanstra was deemed
to have interests in the shares and underlying shares in which Penta
Master was interested pursuant to his control of more than one-third of
the voting power of Penta Asia as trustee of the Mercurius Partners
Trust (“Mercurius Trust”), being a discretionary trust.

Mercurius was the founder of the Mercurius Trust and was therefore
deemed to have interests in the shares and underlying shares in which
Mr. Todd Zwaanstra and Mercurius Trust were interested.

Goldman Sachs (through various of its affiliates including Sky (Delaware)
LLC, Sky (Cayman) Ltd. and Elevatech Limited) was deemed to be
economically interested in (i) 104,208,400 shares; (i) unlisted cash settled
derivatives of the Company equivalent to 36,400,000 shares; and
(i) 17,351,400 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 17,351,400
underlying shares of the Company.

The interest includes the holding of (i) 105,000,000 shares; and
(ii) 17,500,000 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 17,500,000
underlying shares of the Company.

The interest includes the holding of (i) 84,399,835 shares; and
(i) 12,918,480 units of Warrants giving rise to an interest in 12,918,480
underlying shares of the Company.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2007, no short positions were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors (not being the Independent Non-Executive Directors) are
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as set out below:

1. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei is a director of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (“SHK") which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is
partly engaged in the businesses of money lending and property
investment in Mainland China.

2. Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Li Chi Kong are directors of
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") which, through certain
of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending, property investment and development in Hong Kong.

3. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Edwin Lo King Yau are directors of
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") which, through certain of its
subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the business of money lending,
Both Messrs. Edwin Lo King Yau and Li Chi Kong are directors
of AG Capital Limited, subsidiary of AGL, which is partly engaged
in the business of money lending.

4.  Mr. Lee Seng Hui is one of the trustees of the Lee and Lee Trust
("LL Trust”) which is a deemed substantial shareholder of each
of AGL, APL and SHK which, through their subsidiaries, are partly
engaged in the businesses of money lending and property
investment in Mainland China.

Although the businesses of APL also consist of property development
in Hong Kong, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui, Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Li Chi
Kong are not regarded in this respect as being interested in a
competing business to the Group, as the Group does not have property
development in locations other than in Mainland China.

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent from the
boards of the abovementioned companies, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

A leasing agreement was entered into between Shanghai Allied
Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai SAC"), a subsidiary of Shanghai
Allied Cement Limited (“SAC"), which was in turn a former
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shanghai
Cement Factory (“SCF"), a substantial shareholder of Shanghai
SAC, on 16th December, 1995, pursuant to which certain
equipments and facilities were leased from SCF for the use of
Shanghai SAC (the “Transaction”). The aggregate amount of
the Transaction for the period from 1st January, 2007 to 29th
June, 2007, being the date when SAC ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company, amounted to HK$2,863,000. The Transaction
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the Company.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
Transaction and confirmed that the Transaction was:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(ii) conducted on normal commercial terms;

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of the leasing
agreement governing the Transaction and was fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate amount of the Transaction for the period
from 1st January, 2007 to 29th June, 2007 was within the
relevant maximum amount as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

On 29th June, 2007, SAC ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company and the Transaction therefore ceased to constitute a
continuing connected transaction for the Company from 29th
June, 2007.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

2.

As disclosed in the press announcement of the Company dated
2nd March, 2005, Join View Development Limited (“Join View"),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Ranbridge
Finance Limited (“Ranbridge”) and the Company on 2nd March,
2005, pursuant to which Ranbridge agreed to make available to
Join View a revolving credit facility up to HK$100,000,000 (the
“Loan Facility”) for its general working capital and the Company
agreed to guarantee the repayment of the loan under the Loan
Facility. Ranbridge is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"), a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and therefore, a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the transaction
under the Loan Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and was
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Since
the consideration ratio (as defined in the Listing Rules) for such
transaction was more than 5% but less than 25%, it also
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. The ordinary resolution approving the Loan
Agreement was passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company by poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on
20th April, 2005.

Subsequently, as disclosed in another press announcement of
the Company dated 8th November, 2005, Join View entered
into a supplemental loan agreement (the “Supplemental Loan
Agreement”) with Ranbridge and the Company, Sky Full
Enterprises Limited (“Sky Full”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Tian An Real Estate Agency
(China) Limited (“Tian An Real Estate Agency”), another indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 7th November,
2005, pursuant to which Ranbridge agreed with Join View to
increase the Loan Facility under the Loan Agreement from
HK$100,000,000 to HK$280,000,000 (the “Supplemental Loan
Facility”) for its general working capital and the Company, Sky
Full and Tian An Real Estate Agency agreed to jointly and severally

Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

guarantee the repayment of the loan under the Supplemental
Loan Facility. In addition, as security for all moneys payable by
Join View under the Loan Agreement as supplemented by the
Supplemental Loan Agreement, Tian An China Hotel and Property
Investments Company Limited (“TACHP"”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Oxwell Holdings Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, agreed to
create a mortgage in favour of Ranbridge over their entire
shareholding in Sky Full (the “Sky Full Share Mortgage"”) whereas
Tian An Real Estate (Dalian) Company Limited, another indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, agreed to create
another mortgage in favour of Ranbridge over its entire
shareholding in Tian An Real Estate Agency (the “Tian An Share
Mortgage”). Accordingly, the transactions under the
Supplemental Loan Agreement, the Sky Full Share Mortgage and
the Tian An Share Mortgage constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules
and were subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. Since the consideration ratio (as defined in the
Listing Rules) for such transactions was more than 5% but less
than 25%, they also constituted discloseable transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules. The ordinary resolution
approving the Supplemental Loan Agreement, the Sky Full Share
Mortgage and the Tian An Share Mortgage was passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company by poll at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 6th December, 2005. The
Sky Full Share Mortgage was released on 6th November, 2006.
The Supplemental Loan Facility was not utilised during the year
ended 31st December, 2007 and there was no outstanding
balance as at 31st December, 2007.

ML o

Az BI&EEBR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited

75




EEERE
Directors’ Report

EEEERS &) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

TR

76

REHEAREERDR

BIUFATEZCEEHAEAER
WHERMEBBERTD

() RAKBZ-RMABRBHENR
EIvAR

(i T MAERGETET

(i) REREHTRBAER 2 ERIBH
(i 48 75 B 7R 195 % 48 72 ) R SKRT S
TEAFEERER LFTAAQT
BRZ M &

(v) ABRERR _TTLF2FZ
RBECEMIMAEZEERERE
BE2A -

HMARBDAMAS—_ZTTAF+=A
TARBZBEQMPTEE - AR A HEg
EEEBERAB(BMEKE) R _FF
A+ ATRBRMITBRSENRER
R0 #ipE ([RBEH=E]) - Bt - &
RAFABXNBASERERASEIRE
HZITBRSE (BEMERS - =HE
MM EEHA - KEMF-E  RIERX
EBERE(BRBEEREER) B
B RHREMRLIERERS) (17
BURH]) - URERBRY (REHE &
BeEBRABRARERHZER K
B N XM e AR ([EERB]) RE
EZEBRRA  AZZEERF—HA—H
Hat =4 -

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
Supplemental Loan Facility and confirmed that the Supplemental
Loan Facility was:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms;

(i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Loan
Agreement as supplemented by the Supplemental Loan
Agreement governing the Supplemental Loan Facility and
was fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate annual amount of the Supplemental Loan
Facility in 2007 was within the relevant maximum amount
as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

As disclosed in the press announcement of the Company dated
16th December, 2005, the Company entered into a sharing of
administrative services and management services agreement (the
“Services Agreement”) with Allied Group Limited (“AGL") on
15th December, 2005, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to reimburse AGL the actual costs incurred in respect of the
administrative services, which included the secretarial services,
provision of registered office address, utilities, courier and
delivery, telephone (including international telephone), internet,
photocopying and other ancillary office services provided by AGL
to the Group (the “Administrative Services”) and management
services, which included the management, strategic and business
advice provided by the management of AGL to the Group (the
“Management Services”) for a term of 3 years commencing from
1st January, 2005.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The Services Agreement had expired on 31st December, 2007.
As disclosed in another announcement of the Company dated
1st February, 2008, the Company entered into another sharing
of administrative services and management services agreement
(the "Renewed Agreement”) with AGL on 31st January, 2008,
pursuant to which the term of the Services Agreement was
renewed and extended for a period of 3 years commencing
from 1st January, 2008 to 31st December, 2010 (both days
inclusive).

Since AGL is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company through its interests in its subsidiaries,
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited and SHK, AGL is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the entering into of the
Services Agreement, the Renewed Agreement and the
transactions regarding the sharing of the Management Services
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing
Rules, which are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions
regarding the sharing of the Administrative Services between
the Company and AGL contemplated under the Services
Agreement and the Renewed Agreement are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.31(8) and 14A.33(2) of the Listing
Rules. The aggregate amount of the Management Services for
the year ended 31st December, 2007 amounted to
HK$3,600,000.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
transactions regarding the sharing of the Management Services
under the Services Agreement and confirmed that the transactions
were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Services
Agreement governing the transactions regarding the sharing
of the Management Services and was fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate annual amount of the Management Services
in 2007 was within the relevant maximum amount as agreed
by the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30th
August, 2007, Asia Coast Investments Limited (“Asia Coast”),
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “CBI Agreement”) with
Sinoford Limited (“Sinoford”), Jennex Investment Limited
("Jennex"”), Eastern Beauty Consultants Limited (“Eastern
Beauty”), Ming Shun Investments Limited (“Ming Shun”) and
Mr. Peter Fung Yiu Fai as vendors (collectively the “Vendors”)
on 24th August, 2007, pursuant to which the Vendors agreed
to sell and Asia Coast agreed to purchase an aggregate of
29,300,000 ordinary “A" shares of HK$1.00 each and
147,200,000 ordinary “B” shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of CBI Investment Limited (“CBI"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, representing approximately
29.15% of the issued share capital of CBI and representing
approximately 22.55% of the total voting power exercisable at
general meetings of CBI at which one share, regardless of class,
entitles a shareholder of CBI to one vote, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$10,045,531 (the “Acquisition”).

SEHBBR AR Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Since Mr. Andrew Chow On Kiu, a director of CBI, is also a
director and substantial shareholder of Jennex, Eastern Beauty
and Ming Shun, and Mr. Tony Fung Wing Cheung, also a director
of CBI, is the substantial shareholder of Sinoford, hence Jennex,
Eastern Beauty, Ming Shun and Sinoford are all associates of
connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the Acquisition
under the CBI Agreement constituted a connected transaction
for the Company. As each of the relevant percentage ratios (as
defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the Acquisition
was less than 2.5%, the Acquisition was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10th
December, 2007, TACHP as vendor, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Asia Coast Agreement”) with Lead
Step Holdings Limited (“Lead Step”) as purchaser, the Company
as vendor’s guarantor and Mr. Fong Ting (“Mr. Fong”) as
purchaser’s guarantor on 3rd December, 2007, pursuant to which
TACHP agreed to sell and Lead Step agreed to purchase
2,121,212 shares (the “Sale Shares”) and 11,878,788 shares
(the "Option Shares”) of US$1.00 each, representing
approximately 15.15% and 84.85% of the issued share capital
of Asia Coast at the considerations of HK$100,000,000 and
HK$560,000,000 (subject to adjustment) respectively (the
“Disposal”).

Since Mr. Fong is a beneficial owner of the entire share capital
of Lead Step and a director of CBI and Zhao Qing Golf and
Development Co., Ltd., both being the indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Fong is a connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the Disposal under the Asia Coast
Agreement constituted a connected transaction for the Company
and was subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Since
the consideration ratio (as defined in the Listing Rules) for the
Disposal was more than 5% but less than 25%, it also constituted
a discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. The ordinary resolution approving the Asia Coast
Agreement was passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company by poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on
30th January, 2008.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 40 to 57.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its
Directors.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Seng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2008

KZHRBEZEERR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited



Deloitte.
=g

B RRPERERRATERR
(REEZMALZBRLA)

EEEEZINHENFESIAETI5BERLHEH
JREBRAR([ERA]) REWB QA (5
BIERE]) 2REVBRE - HREMBR
REE—EELE T - A=1+—HB2Z&HEAM
NEIEERBER  URBEZALEFEZL
AEFMBER  BRAEZZHREKGERERE
RERTESBEBEREMMTRE -

EERMBHmRZEMR

BRBIZERARBHBA GRS RM
ZEBEWBHREER RE B R ARG AR B &
EEEN PN RALZFEAPBRE - LA
TEARN BERMEFERRIEEMA
Fi 5 M B HRREENAMEE - N
FHREMBRR I FEHNRFRERME
HOMBABRRL  BENERAEE 2S5
BE - RERERLTEHAEZ AR o

BRBET 28 E
EEEARBBES2EL  HZERE

141 ERNEERRBEATZER - K
BEIASN - REIE R BEEMARE - BEH
PR AREARFEMEMALAERE £
EAEME - EENREBFESHMIERM
ZEBEMNENETERITIE - ZERIEX
EEETERER®  URIIRBITER N
EEREZERAVBRRELS T FEMEM
EASERERA -

& 3 2 B AT R B
Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TIAN AN CHINA INVESTMENTS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian An
China Investments Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages
83 to 195, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 31st December, 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st December, 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Debatte Toshe o

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2008

AEZHR & EFR AT Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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NOTES
Continuing operations
Revenue 6

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains 7
Marketing and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Increase in fair value of held-for-trading
investments
Change in fair value of derivative
financial instrument
Fair value gain on transfer of inventories of
completed properties to
investment properties
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Write-down of properties for development
and inventories of completed properties
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Amortisation of properties for development
Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled entity 8

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 9
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries 10
Discount on acquisition of additional

interests in subsidiaries 11
Finance costs 12

Share of profit (loss) of associates
— Profit (loss) after tax before additional
PRC Land Appreciation Tax
("LAT")
— Additional LAT attributable to sales in
previous years
Share of profit of jointly controlled entities
— Profit after tax before
additional LAT
— Additional LAT attributable to sales in
previous years
— Additional LAT attributable to sales in
current year

Profit before taxation

2007 2006
FE T F%& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
670,706 503,740
(400,134) (319,842)
270,572 183,898
98,603 108,969
(15,864) (19,067)
(148,548) (137,503)
(54) (1,786)
30,540 659
(101,665) =
73,281 18,045
171,533 311,706
(106,168) (79,788)
(12,349) (3,317)
(38,205) (21,494)
- 150,390
197,099 =
28,415 =
98,261 1,147
(103,998) (101,903)
72,166 (4,081)
- (1,923)
176,114 71,617
- (101,639)

- (12,430)
689,733 361,500
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Taxation

— Tax expenses before
additional LAT

— Additional LAT attributable to sales in

previous years

— Additional LAT attributable to sales in

current year

Profit for the year from continuing

operations

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued

operations

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Dividend

Earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued

operations
— Basic

— Diluted

From continuing operations

— Basic

— Diluted

Pt 5
NOTES

13

14

14 & 17

14

18

19

2007 2006
FE T FA T
HK$’000 HK$'000
(162,550) (158,939)
- (158,074)

- (23,343)
(162,550) (340,356)
527,183 21,144
144,330 5,126
671,513 26,270
702,976 51,496
(31,463) (25,226)
671,513 26,270
151,112 28,232
AL AL
HK cents HK cents
54.55 4.39
54.55 4.36
43.85 4.64
43.85 4.60
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Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deposits for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties
Investment properties
Intangible asset
Properties for development
Deposits for acquisition of properties
for development
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights
Interests in associates
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Goodwill
Instalments receivable
Deferred tax assets

Current Assets
Inventories of properties in the PRC
— under development
— completed
Other inventories
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Amounts due from minority shareholders
Loans receivable
Instalments receivable
Trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights
Held-for-trading investments
Prepaid tax
Pledged Bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Pt 5
NOTES

20

21
22
23

24
26
27
28
29
30
44

31

32

33
30

34
24
35

50

2007 2006
FTER TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
263,796 590,812
1,970 76,860
3,985,200 3,042,800
- 7,142
2,592,037 1,415,251
1,730,890 1,791,745
67,392 34,138
242,703 540,550
982,250 631,102
40,345 3,306
640 39,386

- 50,340

5,975 4,039
9,913,198 8,227,471
592,573 324,553
544,230 880,258
3,041 38,566

- 12,369

193,056 67,370
23,504 24,601
80,048 62,131
74,642 32,965
190,480 479,177
1,437 1,036
42,131 11,579
24,424 26,319
89,912 306,878
3,073,336 369,625
4,932,814 2,637,427
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Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Pre-sale deposits

Tax liabilities

Dividends payable to minority shareholders
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-free borrowings

Derivative financial instrument

Net Current Assets
Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Minority interests

Total Equity

Non-current Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-free borrowings

Deferred rental income from a tenant
Rental deposits from tenants
Membership debentures

Deferred tax liabilities

Patrick Lee Seng Wei

2007 2006

B & FTER FTET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
36 891,678 881,796
117,387 135,994

459,816 344,732

186 8,109

39 605,492 712,841
40 168,705 156,978
41 803,516 =
3,046,780 2,240,450
1,886,034 396,977
11,799,232 8,624,448

37 302,225 225,854
38 8,570,334 5,718,150
8,872,559 5,944,004

390,549 407,173

9,263,108 6,351,177

39 1,092,944 1,264,777
40 36,999 60,143
42 107,574 107,882
18,076 14,332

43 34,995 32,591
44 1,245,536 793,546
2,536,124 2,273,271
11,799,232 8,624,448

Edwin Lo King Yau
BRH
Director

EF

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 195 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th
March, 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:



FRBEE

ME - BB KRR E
NN PN £
RERE S QR 2 s

RBEE

H A EWRRK ~ B RFAN K
B 188 1 =) R 3K
KRS QR KRR
RITEFERE

RBEE
H A &+ BR 3K
PMIAEAE
B B 5 5K
% BMER
TEEMI A

REBEEFE
REERRBAR
B A I A

&N

ff 18

if

g’F‘
B

BaE
S & 5K
f& 3K

&
=

I G

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Current Assets

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Other payables

Tax liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-free borrowings
Derivative financial instrument

Net Current Assets
Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Non-current Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-free borrowings

Patrick Lee Seng Wei

ZRE
Director

EF

2007 2006

B & FTER TAET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20 3,188 1,968
25 5,148,950 4,160,138
27 171,651 5,920
5,323,789 4,168,026

2,518 2,885

657,127 1,490,314

69,154 =

2,461,068 47,030
3,189,867 1,540,229

22,755 12,012

13,914 13,914

39 78,405 50,126
40 44,455 30,459
41 803,516 =
963,045 106,511

2,226,822 1,433,718
7,550,611 5,601,744

37 302,225 225,854
38 7,248,386 5,187,018
7,550,611 5,412,872

39 - 188,405
40 - 467
- 188,872

7,550,611 5,601,744

Edwin Lo King Yau

Director

EF
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

At st January, 2006

Exchange differences arising on
translation

Share of changes in equity of associates
and jointly controlled entities

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal
of a jointly controlled entity

Surplus on revaluation of properties
upon transfer to investment

properties (net of tax)

Net income and expense recognised
directly in equity

Reserves released upon disposal of
properties

Transfer to profit or loss on sale of
avalable-for-sale investments

Profit attributable to equity holders

Total recognised income and

expense for the year

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Transfer of warrant reserve to share
premium account upon the exercise
of warrants

Decrease in minority interests as a
result of acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries

Dividend recognised as distribution

At 31st December, 2006

B Ex EX
REEE ARk AR RORRE FIRE 28
BA& Share  Special  EEE®E  Capital  Exchange EfiEE  HblE  2iEd hRER

Share  premium capital  Warrant redemption translation Revaluation Other  Accumulated @5 Minority &3t
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total interests Total
TiExn TiEx TiEx TiEx TEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn TEn Tén TEn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
175094 357,164 1,417,669 7800 130,691 25111 767 4871 2536935 46561020 416,889 5,072,991
- - - - - 129557 - - - 129557 17407 146,964

- - - - - 27,938 - = - 27,938 - 27,938

- = - - - (1.258) - = - (1Y) - (129

- - - - - - 3519 - - 3519 - 3,519

= = = = = 156,237 3,519 = - 159,756 17407 177,163

- - - - - - - 412 - 412 - 412

- - - - - - (1,516) - - (1,516) - (1,516)

- - - - - - - - 5149  5149%  (25226) 26270

= = = = = 156,237 2,003 412 51,4% 210,148 (7,819 202,329
50,760 1,058,440 - - - - - = - 1,109,200 - 1,109,200
- (31,446) - - - - - - - (31,446) - (31,446)

= 7,800 - (7,800) - - - = - - - -

- - - - - - - - - - (1,765 (1,765)

- - - - - - - - - - (132) (132)
22585 1391,958 1,417,669 - 130691 181348 2,710 5283 2588431 5944004 407,173 6,351,177
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

B g% E%
RagEE E5RE 2R  EEHEE TEERE 2 |
RA Share  Special EREE  Capital Exchange EfifE  HibkE  2iEd kRES
Share  premium capital  Warrant redemption translation Revaluation Other  Accumulated @5t Minority &t
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  [eserves profits Total interests Total
TER TER TER TER TER TER AT TET TRn TEn TEn  TER
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
At st January, 2007 225854 1,391,958 1,417,669 - 130,691 181,348 2,770 5,283 2,588,431 5,944,004 407,173 6,351,177
Exchange differences arising on
translation - - - - - 266,799 - - - 266,799 20,982 287,781
Share of changes in equity of associates
and jointly controlled entities - - - - - 44,89 - - - 44,89 - 4489
Increase in fair value of
avalable-for-sale investments - - - - - - 36,813 - - 36813 - 36813
Effect of change in tax rate of
deferred tax iabilities arising on
revaluation of properties - - - - - - 95 - - 95 - 95
Surplus on revaluation on acquisition
of additional interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - (40,883) - (40,883) - (40,883)
Surplus on revaluation on acquisition
of subsidiaries (note 10) - - - - - - - 15,986 - 15986 - 15986
Net income and expense recognised
directly in equity - - - - - 311,69 36,908 (24,897) - 323,706 20,982 344,688
Realised on disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (13,527) - (8,178) - (21,705)  (262,226) (283,931)
Reserves released upon disposal of
properties - - - - - - - 1,401 - 1,401 - 1,401
Profit attributable to equity holders - - - - - - - - 702976 702,976 (31463) 671,513
Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - - 298,168 36,908 (31,674) 702,976 1,006,378  (272,707) 733,671
Issue of shares 76371 1,915,902 - - - - - - - 1992273 - 1992273
Share issue expenses - (41,864) - - - - - - - (41,864) - (41,864)
Decrease in minority interests as a
result of acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - (13181)  (1318))
Increase in minority interests s a result of
acquisition of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 332828 332828
Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - - - - (28,232) (28232) (3,558)  (31,790)
At 31st December, 2007 302,225 3,265996 1,417,669 - 130,691 479,516 39,678 (26391) 3,263,175 8,872,559 390,549 9,263,108
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Other income and gains
- Dividend income
— Interest income on bank deposits,
receivables and loan receivables
- Interest income from jointly controlled entities
- Imputed interest income on non-current
interest-free receivables

it
NOTES

- Increase in fair value of held-for-trading investments

- Loss (gain) arising from changes in fair value of
financial liabilities
Other operating expenses
- Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Fair value gain on transfer of properties held for
sale to investment properties
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Write-down of properties for development and
inventories of completed properties
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled entity
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries
Share of (profit) loss of associates
Share of (profit) loss of jointly controlled entities
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Change in fair value of derivative financial instrument
Loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment
Warrants issue expenses

Operating cash inflows before movements in
working capital
Decrease in inventories of properties in the PRC
Increase in properties for development and deposits for
acquisition of properties for development
Increase in other inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Decrease in instalments receivable
Increase in held-for-trading investments
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
(Decrease) increase in pre-sale deposits
Decrease in deferred rental income from a tenant
Increase (decrease) in rental deposits from tenants

Cash from (used in) operations
PRC income tax and LAT paid
PRC income tax refunded

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2007 2006
TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
831,870 374,380
(319) (185)
(34,383) (25,253)
(1,793) =
(4,897) (7,612)
(30,540) (659)
1,063 (3,416)
- 1,786
(73,281) (18,045)
(171,533) (311,706)
106,168 79,788
14,528 8313
- (150,390)
(334,837) =
(98,261) (1,147)
(28,415) =
(72,166) 6,004
(176,114) 42,452
111,690 117,346
61,201 54,189
101,665 =
1,164 339
7,510 =
210,320 166,184
60,003 9,135
(367,455) (413,465)
(4,826) (3,637)
14,667 41,473
11,591 10,786
- (980)
135,152 (151,616)
(29,417) 51,098
(308) (2,766)
3,744 (974)
33,471 (294,762)
(78,475) (135,533)
61 =
(44,943) (430,295)
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividends received from:
— associates
- jointly controlled entities
- available-for-sale investments
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds on disposal of investment properties
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries
Capital contribution to a jointly controlled entity
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries
Proceeds on disposal of a jointly controlled entity
Repayment from associates
Advances to jointly controlled entities
Advances to minority shareholders
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Loans advanced
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2007 2006

fiY & TER TET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
28,169 23,698

7,969 1,249

37,241 1,262

319 185
(13,070) (84,723)

1,681 3,603
(182,848) (293,781)

3,966 5,353

10 (33,084) =
11 (15,766) (618)
(149,289) (700)

98&17 645,560 =
- 136,893

12,368 3,551
(142,474) (2,410)

(2,713) (12,144)

- 59,390

(17,917) (416)

191,652 (238,608)

371,764 (398,216)
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid
Dividend paid

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Proceeds from issue of shares and warrants
Expenses on issue of shares and warrants
New bank and other loans raised
Repayment of bank and other loans
Advances from minority shareholders
Repayment to minority shareholders

Repayment of promissory note

Repayment to former minority shareholders

Advances from associates

Advances from jointly controlled entities
Advances of membership debentures

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

1ST JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

31ST DECEMBER

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

2007 2006
TER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(122,305) (128,611)
(28,232) =
(11,481) (4,358)
2,694,124 1,109,200
(49,374) (31,446)
553,142 1,476,146
(698,910) (1,786,752)
- 2,463

(6,920) =
(40,000) =

- (49,855)

9,336 3,282
21,057 41,706
756 1,003
2,321,193 632,778
2,648,014 (195,733)
353,620 499,339
71,702 50,014
3,073,336 353,620
3,073,336 369,625
- (16,005)
3,073,336 353,620
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The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
investment, golf course operation, provision of hotel and property
management and investment holding.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi as the
Group carries most of its operations in the PRC.

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a
number of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning 1st January, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

Capital Disclosures'

Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2006.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November, 2006.
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The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material effect on the
results or financial position of the Group for the current or prior
accounting years. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been
recognised. The adoption of the HKFRS 7 has affected in the changes
to the Group's disclosure of the financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new standards or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
Group is still not in the position to reasonably estimate the impact
that may arise from the application of these standards or
interpretations.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) ~ Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction*

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with others
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately within the Group’s equity. Minority interests in
the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date except for non-
current assets that are classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5
Operations”, which are recognised and measured at fair value less

“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If,
after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is before 1st January, 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the
date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1st January,
2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy
below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the
agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005 represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Goodwill (continued)
Impairment testing on capitalised goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised but not yet impaired is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already
controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on such acquisition
represents the difference between the cost of additional interest
acquired and the increase in the Group’s share of the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.
No revaluation surplus or deficit on revaluing all of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary is recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the
consideration paid and the aggregate of goodwill and the book value
of the assets attributable to the additional interest acquired is
recognised as a reserve movement. This difference represents the
portion of the revaluation difference that arose since the original
acquisition date that is attributable to the Group's increased interest
in the subsidiary.
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Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance
sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a jointly controlled
entity. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of net assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. From
1st January, 2005 onwards, the Group has discontinued amortisation
of goodwill and such goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the
investment.
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Interests in associates (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of

the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a

separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic
activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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Joint ventures (continued)
Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss
and of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a
jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. From 1st January, 2005 onwards, the Group has
discontinued amortisation of goodwill and such goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.
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Joint ventures (continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

Discount on acquisition arising on or after 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent
that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

The Company’s investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at
cost, as reduced by any identified impairment loss. Results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Other joint venture arrangements

Investments made by means of joint venture structures which do not
result in the Group having joint control with the other venturers are
accounted for as subsidiaries (where the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise), associates
(where the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence) or
other investments (where the Group exercises neither control nor
significant influence).
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are classified into
one of the four categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include held-for-
trading investments and derivatives that are not designated and
effective hedging instruments. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, instalments
receivable, loans receivable, amounts due from associates, amounts
due from jointly controlled entities, amounts due from minority
shareholders) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.



SRIA ®
EHEE(E)
AN EZEBEE

AL EZEMEERIITERR - HEAR
ERAHHESREERREE N REBE
SBARBERECEMEE  ERMERK
RESAFEEIHEZKRE - RERERR
ZEFEER  AHHESREERAAEE
B AABEZEINERER  HEX
TREERDEIREAMRE  ERFBE
REDERZRTRANEBGES B EE
B YRNBEHRER - AL EEREEZ
ERDREBERBERER - AIftHE 2R
BEREZBREEESTENURBMERRE
mEE e AL EEREEREMNS - HH
BUEREZAARBELR  YAEBMEE
ERERREEBRRELE 2EMHMEIZ - B
MEBESSHED -

HZELEEEMECMERE  REAAE
BERGEAEAENAHLERERE  R&E
ZERA G TABMEAVEEBRINER
BREREEGEE2ITETR - RERERE
Z & B % E B IR A ANME IR E 7] B 7 E R E &
BFE - MAGBEBEEREERE - BRE
BFEREREZAER - HEBERHBEREER
EEERBEUEMEE CRITM S LRI
RAEAARRREERECRERCZHTE -
ERRBEEBESTERARHARREE -

T

\|

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available for sales or are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
reverse in profit or loss in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses will subsequently be reversed if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit and
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Financial assets that are individually significant are assessed for
indicators of impairment individually. For certain types of financial
assets, such as trade receivables and assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for indicators of
impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recovery of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition

of the impairment loss.
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that include interest-bearing and interest-free
borrowings, trade and other payables, dividend payable to minority
shareholders and membership debentures are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and the Company
and not designed as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group and the Company
measure the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are transferred
and the Group or the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Inventories of properties

Inventory of completed properties and inventories of properties under
development are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises the cost of land, development expenditure, other
attributable costs and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions. Inventories of properties are transferred
to investment properties at fair value when there is a change in use,
evidenced by a commencement of an operating lease. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value at the date of transfer
is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Properties for development

Properties for development comprises the consideration for acquisition
of land use rights and other costs directly attributable to bringing the
leasehold land to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
development of the properties. The consideration for acquisition of
land use rights represent leasehold land held for future development
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any identified
impairment loss. The costs that are directly attributable to bringing
the leasehold land to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
development of the properties are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Amortisation of properties for development are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings on medium-term lease Over the unexpired lease term
Golf course on medium-term lease  Over the unexpired lease term
4% - 8%

20% - 30%

Plant and machinery
Others

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Owner-occupied property is transferred to investment property at fair
value when it is evidenced by end of owner-occupation. The difference
between the carrying amount and its fair value at the date of transfer
is recognised in reserve.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held for earning rentals
or for capital appreciations or both.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and from
business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.
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Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the leasee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rental income (payments) under operating leases are credited (charged)
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Leasehold land and buildings

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification. Leasehold
land of which the title is not expected to pass to the lessee by the
end of the lease term is classified as an operating lease unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is classified as a
finance lease.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. Liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised upon the
issuance of a completion certificate or the execution of a binding
sales agreement, whichever is the later. Profit or loss arising from the
outright sale of an entire development property prior to completion
is recognised when a binding sales contract becomes unconditional
and the risks and rewards of the ownership have been transferred to
the buyer. Deposits received from sales of properties are carried in
the balance sheet under current liabilities.

Sales of other goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Income from golf course operation and hotel and property
management is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into
the Group presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transaction
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the exchange translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st January,
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange equalisation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions of foreign
operations prior to 1st January, 2005 are treated as non-monetary
foreign currency items of the acquirer and reported using the historical
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the acquisition.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
and the Company is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer and borrower. If the
financial positions of customers and borrowers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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Valuation of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of the cost or net
realisable value. Cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The estimated net
realisable value is estimated selling price less estimated selling
expenses and estimated cost of completion (if any), which are
estimated based on best available information.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the balance sheet date, investment properties are stated at fair
value based on the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report, the management has exercised their judgment
and is satisfied that the assumption used in valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions.

Taxation

At 31st December, 2007, a deferred tax asset of HK$3,949,000 in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised as set out in note
44. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the remaining tax
losses of HK$334,245,000 due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in the income statement
for the period in which such a reversal takes place.
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Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including sales
charges, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in PRC. However, the
details of implementation have not yet been announced by local tax
bureaux in most of the major cities, and the Group has not finalised
its LAT calculation and payments with any local tax bureau in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant judgments are required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The extent,
magnitude and retrospection of LAT cannot be ascertained in the
absence of the detailed implementation rules and procedures. The
Group recognises these liabilities based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of the tax rules. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Ownership of properties

At 31st December, 2007, certain land use rights certificates of a golf
course and properties for development in the PRC have expired. In
order to renew the land use rights certificates, Permit of Land Usage
for Construction must be granted by the local land bureau. The Group
has submitted the necessary documents to the local land bureau
during the year and the renewal has not been granted yet. The final
outcome of the renewal application depends on the local land policies.
If the renewal was rejected, amendment to the development plan
may be required. Based on legal opinion, the management has
exercised their judgment and is satisfied that the Group still have the
ownership of the golf course and properties for development.
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Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include instalments receivable,
amounts due from associates, amounts due from jointly controlled
entities, amounts due from minority shareholders, loans receivable,
trade and other receivables, pledged deposits, bank balances, trade
and other payables, borrowings, membership debentures and a
derivative financial instrument. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Categories of financial instruments

2007 2006
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Available-for-sales investments 40,345 3,306
Held-for-trading investments 42,131 11,579
Loans and receivables
(including bank balances and cash,
and pledged bank deposits) 3,769,102 1,431,359
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 2,830,999 3,117,235
Derivative financial instrument 803,516 -

(a) Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial risks of changes
in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates (see below).

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(b) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on fixed-rate borrowings. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate borrowings.
The Group will continue to maintain a reasonable mix of floating rate
and fixed rate borrowings and take actions to hedge against any
foreseeable interest rate exposure, if necessary. The interest rates
and terms of repayment of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed
in note 39.

Interest rate sensitivity

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 200 basis points and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$4,239,000 and HK$5,771,000 for the year ended
31st December, 2007 and 31st December, 2006 respectively.

(c) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong Kong and
certain bank loans of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies
(see note 39). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors the related
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s currency other than Renminbi

("RMB") denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
respective balance sheet dates are as follow:

2007 2006
F&ET FB T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets

United States Dollars 495,483 288,679
Hong Kong Dollars 2,324,716 142,577

Liabilities
United States Dollars 20,816 26,789

Hong Kong Dollars 593,042 633,026
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of United States (“United
States Dollars”) and the currency of Hong Kong (“Hong Kong
Dollars”).

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings as well as bank
balance and cash. A positive number indicates an increase in profit
for the year where the RMB strengthens against the relevant currency.
If there is 5% increase in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies,
the decrease in the profit for the year is shown as below:

2007 2006
F&ET T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
United States Dollars
Decrease in profit for the year (23,733) (13,094)
Hong Kong Dollars
Decrease in profit for the year (86,584) (24,522)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security price risk arising from equity
investments. The management will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when it is required.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower:

—  other equity reserves would increase/decrease by HK$4,034,000
(2006: increase/decrease by HK$331,000) for the Group as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale shares.

— net profit would increase/decrease by HK$4,213,000 (2006:
increase/decrease by HK$1,158,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of Held-for-trading investments.

Derivative financial instrument price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to derivative financial instrument price risks at the reporting
date.

If derivative financial instrument price had been 10% higher/lower:
— net profit would increase/decrease by HK$80,352,000 (2006:

Nil) for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
derivative financial instrument.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(e) Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2007, the Company’s and the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties or
financial guarantees provided by the Group arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet and the amount of contingent liabilities
disclosed in note 47. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and other debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. With respect to financial guarantees
provided to subsidiaries by the Company, the directors consider the
credit risk is limited because the subsidiaries have strong financial
positions. The management considers the credit risk exposure to
financial guarantee provided to property purchasers is also limited
because the facilities are secured by the properties and the market
price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)

(f) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

i
=y:
ABBERE =t-82
KESE  REER
Total  Carrying
SMBA  123EA MERZIE undiscounted  amount
Less than 13 3 months 1256 SENE cash  at3fst
1month  months to1year 1-5years 5+ years flows December
TEr Thr  TEr  TEr  TiEr  TiEr TExn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
“BELE 2007

FTEEREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BAREMERER Trade and other payables 889,178 561 1,939 - - 891678 891,678
EROERERS Dividend payable to minority shareholders 186 - - - - 186 186
GEREE Interest bearing borrowing 201,753 18,001 418,095 1,086,404 65810 1,790,063 1,698,436
R EEH Interest-free borrowing 168,705 - - 85973 - 214,678 205704
efES Membership debentures - - - 26068 27566 53634 34,995
1,059,822 18562 420,034 1,158,445 93376 2,950,239 2,830,999

“EERE 2006

FTEEREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BAREMERER Trade and other payables 880,563 518 715 - - 881,79  881,7%
EROHRERS Dividend payable to minority shareholders 8,109 - - - - 8,109 8,109
GEREE Interest bearing borrowing 515,193 56,053 210,270 1,177,061 85349 2,043926 1,977,618
8 Interest-free borrowing 156,978 - - 20371 39987 217336 217,121
efES Membership debentures - - - - 52878 52878 32,591
1560843 56571 210985 1,197,432 178214 3,204,045 3,117,235
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2007

Non-derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Instalments receivable

Loans receivable

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Held-for-trading investments

QOther financial assets

2006

Non-derivative financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Instalments receivable

Loans receivable

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Held-for-trading investments

Other financial assets

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity for its non-
derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets
including interest that will be earned on those assets where the
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period.

I

t=A

AERRE =t-H

REER REE

Total  Carrying

SMBR  123BB MEAZIE undiscounted  amount
Less than 13 3months  1ZE58  S5EHNE cash  at3fst
1month  months to1year 1-5years 5+ years flows December
Thr Thr TEx  TExr Tz TEr TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
40,345 - - - - 40,345 40,345
13,453 - 61,189 - - 74,642 74,642
41,243 - 52,299 - - 93,542 80,048
189,295 622 563 - - 190,480 190,480
42,131 - - - - 42,131 42,131
130,740 72,820 13,000 3244 220,155 439,959 260,684
457,207 73442 127,051 3244 220,155 881,099 688,330
3,306 - - - - 3,306 3,306
32,965 - - 56,455 - 89,420 83,305
13415 10407 44,169 = - 61991 62,131
478,993 184 - - - 479177 479177
11,579 - - - - 11,579 11,579
104,340 - - 3,44 53,025 160,609 130,243
644,598 10,591 44,169 59,699 53,025 812,082 769,741
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(g) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 39 and 40, membership debenture
disclosed in note 43 and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As a part of this review, the directors of the Company considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2006.

(h) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

(a) the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

(b) the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities,
except for derivative financial instrument, are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions.

(c) the fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined
by The Black-Scholes pricing model disclosed in note 41.
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Categories of financial instruments (continued)
(h) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The Group has listed and unlisted investments which are measured at
fair value (notes 28 and 35). Fair value of listed investments is
determined based on the quoted market bid price available on the
relevant exchanges. Fair value of unlisted investments is estimated
using a discounted cash flow model, which included some assumptions
that are not supportable by observable market prices or rates.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue represents the aggregate of proceeds from the sale of
completed properties, rental income, sale of construction materials,
income from golf course operation, hotel and property management
during the year as follows:

2007 2006

THERT THTT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Sale of completed properties 478,089 345,975

Rental income 117,739 95,903

Sale of cement, clinker and

slag powder 192,482 385,562

Income from golf course operation 23,890 20,974
Income from hotel and property

management 50,988 40,888

863,188 889,302
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The Group's revenue and assets for the year was derived mainly from activities carried out and
located in the PRC other than Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment
results by business segment is as follows:

Income statement for the year
ended 31st December, 2007

REVENUE
External sales

RESULTS

Segment resuls

Unallocated corporate expenses

Other income and gains

Fair value gain on transfer of
inventories of completed
properties to investment properties

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Write-down of properties for
development and inventories
of completed properties

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Amortisation of properties for
development

Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries

Discount on acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Finance costs

Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

REGEXR BALEEXH
Continuing operations Discontinued operations

LER#E

X~ A

RBER

Manufacture

and sale

NE%R  NEXRE  HpeE of cement,
Property Property Other A% dlinker and ait aff
development investment  operations Total ~slag powder Total  Consolidated
TR TR TR ThR THx Téx THRT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
478,089 17,739 74,878 670,706 192,482 192,482 863,188
94,578 69,740 18,130 182,448 1,237 1231 183,685
(147,467) - (147,467)
2714 501 95,388 98,603 13,033 13,033 111,636
73,281 - - 13,281 - - 73,281
- 171,533 - 171,533 - - 171,533
(106,168) - - (106,168) - - (106,168)
(12,349) - - (12,349) 2179 (2.179) (14,528)
(38,205) = = (38,205) = = (38,205)
28,415 - - 28,415 - - 28,415
98,261 - - 98,261 - - 98,261
197,099 - - 197,099 137,738 137,738 334,837
(103,998) (7,692) (111,690)
30,574 41,078 514 72,166 - - 72,166
100,104 73,562 2,448 176,114 - - 176,114
689,733 142,137 831,870
(162,550) 2,193 (160,357)
527,183 144,330 671,513
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Balance sheet as at
31st December, 2007

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

LtEREE

K » FhRt

REEH

Manufacture

and sale

NERR NERE of cement, HitgE

Property Property clinker and Other &
development investment  slag powder operations  Consolidated
THER TER TER TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,679,757 4,118,298 - 194,005 9,992,060
16,766 225,926 - 1 242,703
337,222 812,574 - 25,510 1,175,306
3,435,943
14,846,012
806,838 163,218 - 47,373 1,017,429
4,565,475
5,582,904
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Other information for the year
ended 31st December, 2007

Additions of property,
plant and equipment
Additions of properties for
development and deposits for
acquisition of properties for
development
Additions of investment properties
and deposits for acquisition of
investment properties
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal and
write off of property,
plant and equipment

EREEEER

FELEXY Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
TEREE

K~ AR

RBEH

Manufacture

and sale

MEERE NERE Hih&®E  of cement,
Property Property Other clinker and
development  investment operations  slag powder
TER TERT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
2,244 2,410 9,967 1,174
650,887 - - -
- 221,097 - -

40,535 3,397 7,316 9,922
37 6 301 820
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Income statement for the year
ended 31st December, 2006

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

RESULTS

Seqment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Other income and gains

Fair value gain on transfer of
inventories of completed
properties to investment
properties

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Wite-down of properties for
development and inventories
of completed properties

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Amortisation of properties for
development
(Gain on disposal of a Jointly
controlled entity
Discount on acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries
Finance coss
Share of (loss) profit of associates
- (Loss) profit after tax before
additional LAT
- Additional LAT attributable to
sales in previous years
Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities
- Profit fter tax hefore
additional LAT
- Additional LAT attributable to
sales in previous years
- Additional LAT attributable to
sales in current year

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

RREERY BRLEEEER
Continuing operations Discontinued operations

EERAE

K> A

kg

Manufacture

‘ \ and sale

NEER  NERE  HppEE . of cement, .

Property  Property Other g A dinkerand g aif At
development  investment ~ operations - Eliminations Total  slag powder Eliminations Total Consolidated
Thn  TEn  TEr  TEr  TiEn Tér  TEx  TEn  TEn
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
345,975 95,903 61,862 - 503,740 385,562 - 35 88930
= = 1,384 (7,384) = 24 (2,714) - -
345,975 95,903 69,246 (7384) 503,740 388,276 @74 385582 889,302
30,867 63,087 (10,842) = 83112 14471 = 14471 97,583
(56,911) = (56,911)
27314 64 81,591 - 108,969 18,848 - 18848 127817
18,045 = = = 18,045 = = = 18,045
- 311,706 - - 311,706 - - - 311706
(79,788) = = - (19789 - - - (19789)
(3317) - - - (331 (4,9%) = (4,996) (8313
(21,494) - - - (21494 - - - (21,494)
150,390 - - - 1503% - - - 1503%
1147 = = = 1,147 = = = 1147
(101,903) (15443)  (117,34)
(8,805) 4159 565 = (4,081) = = = (4,081)
(1923) = = = (1923) = = = (1923)
16,453 54,429 735 = 1617 = - - 617
(101,639 - - - (101,639 - - - (101,639
(12,430) - - - (12830) - - - (1280
361,500 12,880 374,380
(340,356) (7,754)  (348,110)
2,144 5,126 26,210
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Balance sheet as at
31st December, 2006

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

LtEREE

K » FhRt

REEH

Manufacture

and sale

NERR NERE of cement, HitgE

Property Property clinker and Other &
development investment  slag powder operations  Consolidated
THET THT THT THT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,678,652 3,175,353 782,063 145,771 8,781,839
360,736 192,686 - (503) 552,919
197,976 477,388 - 23,108 698,472
831,668
10,864,898
792,222 149,429 118,782 36,768 1,097,201
3,416,520
4,513,721
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Other information for the year
ended 31st December, 2006

Additions of property,
plant and equipment
Additions of properties for
development and deposits
for acquisition of
properties for development
Additions of investment
properties and deposits for
acquisition of investment properties
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss (gain) on disposal and
write off of property,
plant and equipment

EREEEER

BEREXK Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
EERHE

Kk~ BB

REEH

Manufacture

and sale

MERR MERE Hitt2E&  of cement,
Property Property Other clinker and
development  investment operations  slag powder
THEL THET THT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,105 3,935 4,840 9,307
426,554 - - -
- 293,781 - -

22,738 2,115 5,221 23,157
106 95 (774) 225

Substantially all the assets are located in the PRC.
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BESEXY BRIEREXH At
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TERT THL TR TER TER THER
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Dividend income

- unlisted shares 6 684 - - 6 684

- listed shares 698 - - - 698 -
Interest income on bank deposits

and receivables 22,491 14,484 442 823 22,933 15,307
Interest income from jointly

controlled entities 1,793 - - - 1,793 -
Interest income from

loan receivable 11,450 9,946 - - 11,450 9,946

Imputed interest income on
non-current interest-free

receivables 4,897 7,612 - - 4,897 7,612
Refund of PRC value-added tax - - 9,341 14,589 9,341 14,589
Income from a property

development project (note 30) - 23,068 - - - 23,068
Gain arising from changes in fair

value of financial liabilities - 3,416 - - - 3,416
Tax refund for reinvestment of

profits in the PRC 16,105 14,438 - - 16,105 14,438
Net foreign exchange gains 17,274 16,869 - - 17,274 16,869
Other income 23,889 18,452 3,250 3,436 27,139 21,888

98,603 108,969 13,033 18,848 111,636 127,817

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the Group disposed of its entire 50%
interest in and shareholder’s loan to a jointly controlled entity which is established in
the PRC and engaged in property development for a cash consideration of
HK$272,470,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$150,390,000.
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During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group disposed of
its entire interests in and shareholder’s loan to subsidiaries which are
established in the PRC and engaged in property development. Details
of the disposal are as follows:

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as
follows:

FAT
HK$'000

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 49
Properties for development 66,934
Deposits for acquisition of properties for development 183,618
Trade and other receivables 3,824
Bank balances and cash 35
Trade and other payables (26,648)
227,812
Exchange translation reserve released (1,480)
Minority interests (4,175)
222,157
Gain on disposal 197,099
419,256

Total consideration, satisfied by cash 419,256

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration 419,256
Bank balances and cash disposed of (35)
419,221
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On 2nd May, 2007, the Group acquired approximately 8% of the issued share
capital of Jack Rock Development Limited (“Jack Rock”) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$36,000,000, including repayment of shareholders’ loans
immediately after the acquisition. The principal business of Jack Rock is golf course
operation and property development. After such acquisition, the Group’s interest
in Jack Rock increased from approximately 49% to approximately 57%. The amount
of discount on acquisition arising as a result of the acquisition was HK$28,415,000.

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments of

land use rights

Property for development
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Minority interests
Interest acquired in previous years
as interests in associates

Fair value adjustment related to Group's

previously held interests in
the subsidiaries acquired
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries

Total consideration, satisfied by:
Cash
Repayment of shareholders’ loans

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid
Repayment of shareholders’ loan
Bank balances and cash acquired

ROATR BB
RAZKREAER
Acquiree’s
carrying AAFERE
amount before Fair value AREE
combination  adjustment Fair value
Tt Tt 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
61,041 = 61,041
6,915 - 6,915
962,175 387,999 1,350,174
7917 951 8,868
2,925 - 2,925
(70,109) - (70,109)
(13,000) - (13,000)
(216,146) (355,274) (571,420
741,718 33,676 775,394
(332,828)
(362,156)
(15,986)
(28,415)
36,009

7,579
28,430

36,009

(7,579)
(28,430)
2,925
(33,084)
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If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January, 2007, total
group revenue (including continuing and discontinued operations)
for the year would have been HK$863,000,000 and profit (including
continuing and discontinued operations) for the year would have
been HK$704,000,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st January, 2007,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the Group acquired an
additional 5% interest in a subsidiary for a cash consideration of
HK$594,000, after which it becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. The subsidiary is established in the PRC and engaged
in property development. This acquisition results in a discount on
acquisition of HK$1,147,000.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group acquired an
additional 35.39% interest in a subsidiary for a cash consideration of
HK$15,766,000. The subsidiary is established in the PRC and engaged
in property development and golf course operation. This acquisition
results in a discount on acquisition of HK$98,261,000.
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Interest on:
Bank loans and overdrafts
Loan notes (note 39 (b))
Other loans
Other borrowing costs

Imputed interest expenses on

non-current interest-free
borrowings

Less: amount capitalised on

properties under development

BESEXY BRIEREXH At
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TERT THL TR TER TER THT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
108,973 101,290 6,734 12,498 115,707 113,788
1,959 1,961 - - 1,959 1,961
3,017 9,147 - = 3,017 9,147
- = - 2,920 - 2,920
5,976 8,575 958 25 6,934 8,600
119,925 120,973 7,692 15,443 127,617 136,416
(15.927)  (19,070) - - (15,927)  (19,070)
103,998 101,903 7,692 15,443 111,690 117,346

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general borrowing pool and

are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 6.11% (2006: 6.3%) to expenditure

on qualifying assets.



X (BE) Bk

PRECEREHR
THRER
-AEERE
-DEFRHEMELL

B L ER
~AEEHERELZ
BN ER
—HIEETE (B8)

i3

BERE (Hit)
R
-HESBHIVE

AEBREBLEZRERN
N 4F 2 P 3 S A ] B SR A
Mo F LB REBNE
BIELEE - ARRE TR
TREEZHBARZAR
BRRESR - PEIREME
PR % B 2 BB A A R 5T

B -

R-FTLF=H A -
EEARREAREG RMFTL
—EMBHRAER ([FH
A AR RSN E SR -
ZZEN\F-—HA—BREK-
HBUEHRRH RN EE
AEBUEHAGHENTE
HIBABEBRE - At - &
ETREMRSH SRR
B ZRIEREEREMD
RXBENTE  EFEY
ISR RLBILRT
2ENGHEREMEHEE
FETS ©

BERERY BRLERBEXY &t
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
TR THL THER THER TER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

The charge (credit) comprises:

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

and LAT
- current year provision 148,992 171,829 615 16 149,607 171,845
- Additional LAT attributable to

sales in previous years - 158,074 - - - 158,074
- Additional LAT attributable to

sales in current year - 23,343 - - - 23,343
- under (over) provision in

prior years 24,776 (1,495) - - 24,776 (1,495)

173,768 351,751 615 16 174,383 351,767
Deferred tax (note 44)

- Deferred tax 46,267 (11,395) (423) 7,738 45,844 (3,657)
- Effect of change in tax rate (57,485) - (2,385) - (59,870) -

162,550 340,356 (2,193) 7,754 160,357 348,110

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the group companies operating in
Hong Kong do not have any assessable profit for both years. Certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible for tax exemptions and concessions. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rates applicable to respective subsidiaries.

The National People’s Congress passed the new unified enterprise income tax law
(“New Law”) on 16th March, 2007, which took effect on 1st January, 2008. The
effects of the New Law on future tax rates cause the Group’s prior expectation of
future tax rates to change significantly. As a result, the Group has recalculated the
deferred tax asset and liability accounts by taking into account the effect of any
changes to the expected tax rates at the time the temporary differences will reverse.
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Prior to 2006, the Group recognised provisional LAT paid and calculated
according to certain rates (varying from 0.5% to 3%) over sales amounts
assessed by local tax bureau and full provisions for LAT had not been made
in the financial statements. Starting from the audited results for the year
ended 31st December, 2006, the Group has provided for LAT in full in
accordance with the requirements of The State Administration of Taxation.

In prior year, the Group included the provision for LAT under deferred tax
and deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. During
the year, the Group considered that it is more appropriate to include the
provision for LAT as income tax and tax liabilities. Accordingly, comparative
figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2007 2006
FH& T TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 831,870 374,380
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 33%
(2006: 33%) 274,517 123,545
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of
associates and jointly controlled entities (81,932) 15,990
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 65,409 47,163
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose (139,293) (20,275)
Tax effect of tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences not
recognised 87,489 62,428
Tax effect of utilisation of taxes losses
and other deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised (27,626) (18,395)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
in the PRC (28,023) (49,292)
Effect of change in tax rate (59,870) —
Land appreciation tax 46,331 188,089
Under (over) provision in prior years 24,776 (1,495)
Others (1,421) 352
Tax charge for the year 160,357 348,110

Note:

The domestic tax rate (which is PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate) in the jurisdiction
where the operation of the Group is substantially based is used.



AEREMN
Bk (MA) :

nE - BER

RENE
HEEE
BREEERBLEE

W BRERB RS
NEER

B3

EWEE
GELRES

T ERERR
HEHNE

hENGHER

TS
FEZHAE

ERRE
HERIHEDE  BER
REER
HEAMHEHERE
BB

EEHE

ER:

-tHhEF

— R F 28
EHELER
STER (BfEEZHE)
(iE3)
EhEBEAAHE(BREE
BB S AT

B (BB R)

EEARZHNARARE(ERE

R AE AR
RANEMA)

ERENEIER

ZBEWA

W RERELEEMA
ZERENF
MEREE
2R

Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging
(crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Owned assets
Assets held under finance leases
Less: amount capitalised on properties
under development

Amortisation of:
Intangible asset
Properties for development
Prepaid lease payments on land
use rights

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditors' remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
an expenses

Loss on disposal and write-off
property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Operating lease charges
in respect of:

- land and buildings
- plant and machinery

Other rental expenses

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) (note)

Share of tax of associates (included
in share of profit (loss) of
associates)

Share of tax of jointly controlled
entities (included in share of
profit of jointly controlled entities)

Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: direct operating expenses
from investment properties
that generated rental income
during the year

RAKERE

Continuing operations

BRIEEEREH

Discontinued operations

i

Consolidated

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
THERL THL TER THL TAT TAT
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
12,838 9,588 9648 22631 2248 32219
- - - 5 - 5
(967) (697) - - (967) (697)
11,871 8,891 9648 22636 21519 31527
- - 78 147 78 147
38205 2149 - - 38205 2149%
1,202 647 197 374 1,399 1,021
512718 31,032 9923 23157 61201 54,189
3,687 3,889 660 1,130 4,347 5,019
208334 225360 172565 337,961 470,899 563321
344 114 820 225 1,164 339

- 1,786 - - - 1,786
3312 7,155 249 661 3,621 7816
- - 71 1,346 m 1,346

- - - 585 - 585
63335 57505 13240 29024 76575 86549
(35,325) 1,478 - - (35325 1,478
184566 134,413 - - 184566 134413
(117,739 (95,903) - - (17,739 (95,903)
293 14309 - - 093 14309
(94,786)  (81,594) - - (94786)  (81594)
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Note:

BIERTTBIENLLAMB  The staff costs have excluded the apportionment of management fee as disclosed in note 15 and
HEMTE1SRMEA9(ETHEE  note 49(ii) to the consolidated financial statements for certain directors as well as management
MWEBEESETETEERE  personnel who are not directors of the Company.

fhIFERAAEZTZEERRE A

g .

BffsEN T+ (==  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen (2006: thirteen) directors
TRE: +=6)EFZM  were as follows:

M
2007

HEEHER RARA

N ZRE  HEMR

HBH  Performance Retirement

EExHe Salaries related benefits
Directors'  and other incentive scheme @t
fee benefits payments contributions Total
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£y Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 932 - 23 965
EEB Ng Qing Hai 10 736 276 36 1,058
51 Ma Sun 10 2,500 324 217 3,051
BR] Edwin Lo King Yau 10 603 430 28 1,121
FER Li Chi Kong 10 653 320 30 1,013
Yasushi Ichikawa Yasushi Ichikawa 10 341 - - 351
TR E Lee Seng Hui 7 592 - - 599
gRE Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10
Yuki Oshima Yuki Oshima 10 - - - 10
L= Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 10 70 - - 80
RER Goodwin Gaw 5 - - - 5
REL Ngai Wah Sang 10 90 - - 100
HHE Xu Su Jing 10 70 - - 80
BEBER Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 35 - - 45

132 6,622 1,400 334 8,488
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2006
HEERH EET
R ZRE SRR
E#F] Performance  Retirement
EZWE  Salaries related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme @5

fee  benefits ~ payments contributions Total
TEL TER TET TEL TARX
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 453 - - 463
Ng Qing Hai 10 1,603 - 72 1,685
Ma Sun 10 1,548 = 130 1,688
Edwin Lo King Yau 10 614 455 28 1,107
Li Chi Kong 10 720 525 33 1,288
Yasushi Ichikawa 6 - - - 6
Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10
Yuki Oshima 6 - - - 6
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 40 20 = - 60
Goodwin Gaw 10 - - - 10
Ngai Wah Sang 60 20 - - 80
Xu Su Jing 40 20 = - 60
Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 — — - 10

232 4,998 980 263 6,473

Certain directors of the Company received remuneration from a
company, or a wholly owned subsidiary of such company which has
significant beneficial interests in the Company. Such company provided
management services to the Group and charged the Group a fee,
which has been included in management fee as disclosed in note
49(ii), for services provided by those directors as well as other
management personnel who were not directors of the Company.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference to
the time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the
Group and can be apportioned to the directors mentioned above.
The total of such apportioned amounts, which has been included in
the above table, is HK$2,109,000 (2006: HK$2,365,000).
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Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four

(2006: three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are

included in note 15 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2006:

two) individuals were as follows:

2007 2006
THET TH T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Salaries and other benefits 1,001 1,530
Performance related incentive payments 216 590
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 55 77
Compensation for loss of office paid - 575
1,272 2,772

Their emoluments were within the following bands:
2007 2006
EEHE EBE#HAE
Number of Number of
employees employees
Nil to HK$1,000,000 - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 2

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing

remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective

group companies and individual employees. During both years, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
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During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group disposed of its entire

54.77% interest in a company established in Bermuda, which together with its

subsidiaries, principally engaged in manufacturing and distribution of cement, clinker

and slag power (“manufacture and sale of cement, clinker and slag powder

operations”). The disposal was completed on 29th June, 2007, on which date

control of the subsidiaries passed to the acquirer.

The profit for the year from the discontinued operations is analysed as follows:

2007 2006
THERT FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit of manufacture and sale of cement,
clinker and slag powder operations (Note A) 6,592 5,126
Gain on disposal of manufacture and sale of cement,
clinker and slag powder operations (Note B) 137,738 -
144,330 5,126
Note A
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
(other than gain on disposal of such operations)
Revenue 192,482 385,562
Other income and gains 13,033 18,848
Expenses (201,116) (391,530)
Profit before taxation 4,399 12,880
Taxation 2,193 (7,754)
Profit for the year 6,592 5,126
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Note B

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

FET
HK$'000

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 404,612
Intangible asset 7,210
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights 15,811
Other inventories 40,366
Trade and other receivables 233,626
Pledged bank deposit 25,314
Bank balances and cash 51,199
Other assets 2,032
Trade and other payables (156,273)
Bank borrowings (226,858)
Deferred tax liabilities (14,924)
Other liabilities (2,785)
379,330
Exchange translation reserve released (12,047)
Other reserves released (8,178)
Minority interests (258,051)
Attributable goodwill 38,746
139,800
Gain on disposal 137,738
Total consideration satisfied by cash 277,538

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration 277,538
Bank balances and cash disposed of (51,199)
226,339

RNEBE-_ZZE+F+-_A=+—HEE ' &
EREEKE ARREEMNEBALIEE
KRB 2 FR MBI ERN15,530,000% 7T
(ZZZ/NF : BEB35,721,00087m) « &
X% EEBN1,115,0008 T (ZEZRF « T
4,249,000/ 7T) R @& #1532 11 8,467,000%
T (ZTTRNF © ¥ 129,892,000 7T) °

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the manufacture and
sale of cement, clinker and slag powder operations contributed
HK$15,530,000 (2006: contributed HK$35,721,000) to the Group's
net operation cash flows, contributed HK$1,115,000 (2006: paid
HK$4,249,000) in respect of investing activities and paid
HK$8,467,000 (2006: paid HK$29,892,000) in respect of financing
activities.



EEIRARHBE K108
(ZZTRF - FR2.581)

EEeEBRRERARETR
1081 (ZEZRF - k2.5
BAL) o REARBAFBRRERN
R A @B ER - FAHE
o RHABREKURKETR
EE - RERAI B D K2 A
BEEWMRS -

R F % R R A 2 R
B R B TR T RS
5

REFERCRILEEE
B BA

AU ESRELRE T
2 A (AR A IR
FE AR AN 0 )

BEEEEBRR TR
RIZ BB E 27 R &
EIEM B RRIEEA

AR &SR EE & 7
Z it 7

2007 2006

FH& T TBT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Proposed final dividend of HK10 cents per share
(2006: HK2.5 cents per share) 151,112 28,232

The final dividend of HK10 cents per share (2006: HK2.5 cents per share) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in general
meeting. The final dividend will be paid in the form of scrip, with the shareholders
being given an option to elect cash in respect of part or all of such dividend.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

2007 2006
THERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Earnings from continuing and
discontinued operations
Earnings for the purposes of basic
earnings per share (profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company) 702,976 51,496
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Adjustment to the share of result of a subsidiary
based on dilution of its earnings per share (1) -

Earnings for the purposes of dilutive earnings
per share 702,975 51,496
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2007 2006

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

the purpose of basic earnings per share 1,288,725,235 1,171,698,023
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

— Warrants

10,201,999

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

the purpose of diluted earnings per share 1,288,725,235 1,181,900,022

Earnings from continuing operations

Earnings for the purposes of basic
earnings per share (profit for the year

attributable to equity holders of the Company) 565,136 54,414
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Adjustment to the share of result of a subsidiary
based on dilution of its earnings per share (1) -
Earnings for the purposes of dilutive earnings
per share 565,135 54,414

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is HK10.70 cents per share
(2006: basic loss per share of HK0.25 cents) and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK10.70 cents per share (2006: diluted loss per share of
HKO0.24 cents), based on the profit for the year from the discontinued operations
of HK$137,840,000 (2006: loss for the year of HK$2,918,000) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculation of
basic earnings per share has been adjusted for the open offer to qualifying
shareholders on the basis of one offer share for every five shares held and issue of
one warrant for every one offer share (“Open Offer”) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share have not taken into account the exercise of warrants
to ordinary shares as it would result in increase in earnings per share.



KEE
HAE
R-ZE~5-fA-H
Eifz

BE

BRERENE

P/

BiHA%

HEEnE

EYN

BHNE

& REH

ERERE

nE

RZEE E+_A=1—H
ERAR

BE

HRERBA RS

A

& Rt #
RIEERBARE

ik
R-EZtE+-F=1-H
e
RZEExE-A-H
ERAR

EEHE

REBEHE
Ny 5

ik

RZEE E+-A=1-H
ERAE

RERHHE

I E Rk b

ik

REERBA A&

ik
R-2BtE+-A=1-H

&EE
R-2RtF+-A=t-H

R-EE E+-A=1-H

THE GROUP

cosT

At 1st January, 2006

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Surplus on valuation of
properties upon transfer
to investment properties

Transferred from properties
held for sale

Reclassifications

Disposals and write-off

Transferred to investment
properties

At 31st December, 2006

Exchange adjustments
Additions
Acquired on acquisition of
subsidiaries
Disposals and write-off
Eliminated on disposal
of subsidiaries

At 31st December, 2007

DEPRECIATION

At 1st January, 2006

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on revaluation

Eliminated on disposals
and write-off

At 31st December, 2006

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals
and write-off

Eliminated on disposals
of subsidiaries

At 31st December, 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2007

At 31st December, 2006

HER  ETE &6
FE2PH BEZTH HHENZ BRRRSE
BORT HART BEARS Leasehold
Buildings in  Buildings Golf improvements,
HongKong inthePRC courseon #EIR BERME fumiture, RE

on medium- on medium-  medium- Construction  Plant and fixtures and Motor @t

term lease  term lease term lease in progress machinery equipment  vehicles Total

TEx Tz TEx  TEx  TEr  TEx  TExT  TER

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

413 265873 94,540 7011 386,203 42,072 28560 824,672

- 11,739 3,781 56 17,311 885 921 34,693

= 1,502 3,590 4,423 1,817 5746 7,99 25,074

- 1,786 - - - - - 1,786

= 15,509 = = = = = 15,509

- 6,229 - (11,210) 4,981 - - -

- (2,104) - (5) (52) (3,057) (4,307) (9,525)

- (6,800) - - - - - (6,800)

413 293734 101,911 275 410,260 45,646 33170 885,409

- 10,141 12,044 6 9,217 1,827 1,606 34,841

- 6,386 - 400 236 5,385 3,388 15,795

= = 60,290 = - 254 497 61,041

- (524) - - (1,275) (1,707) (4,536) (8,042)

(413)  (229,704) - (681)  (418,438) (4,076) (8,101)  (661,413)

- 80,033 174,245 - - 47,329 26,024 327,631

164 55,186 3,762 - 153,657 21,344 19,507 259,620

- 2,580 210 - 6,995 425 480 10,690

9 8,367 2,991 - 14,532 3,224 3,101 32,224

- (2,354) - = - = - (2,354)

- (399) - = (17) (1,811) (3,356) (5,583)

173 63,380 6,963 - 175,167 29,182 19,732 294,597

- 1,630 1,572 - 3,768 885 845 8,700

9 4,618 4,283 - 6,443 4,046 3,087 22,486

- (16) - - (311) (1,337) (3,532) (5.196)

(182)  (64,239) - - (185,067) (2,999) (4,265 (256,752)

- 5,373 12,818 - - 29,777 15,867 63,835

- 74,660 161,427 - - 17,552 10,157 263,796

240 230,354 94,948 275 235,093 16,464 13,438 590,812
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THE COMPANY

COST

At 1st January, 2006
Additions

Disposals and write-off

At 31st December, 2006
Additions
Disposals and write-off

At 31st December, 2007

DEPRECIATION

At 1st January, 2006

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals and
write-off

At 31st December, 2006
Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals and
write-off

At 31st December, 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2007

At 31st December, 2006

£ &AM

KRG
Leasehold
improvements, AE
furniture, fixtures Motor Azt
and equipment vehicles Total
TET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
16,820 6,373 23,193
775 877 1,652
(2,031) (1,826) (3,857)
15,564 5,424 20,988
1,128 711 1,839
(3) (800) (803)
16,689 5,335 22,024
14,916 6,319 21,235
546 112 658
(1,047) (1,826) (2,873)
14,415 4,605 19,020
340 279 619
3) (800) (803)
14,752 4,084 18,836
1,937 1,251 3,188
1,149 819 1,968




M REE

R—A—H

R

BE
RETREERRPYE
FEEA
RERTYEFEEA
YW= - BELRRBEA
&
RRANBERZANEE
YN AR

Rt+-—A=+—8H

AEEREMER _TTLF
R_ZBEZXF+_A=+—H
ZARBETIAENEEEE
AIRR R B XA — &
HERFEERARARNE BE
IfEE - EHERFHERA
AEAREMNER - ZEET
ETEBREMBEBME
MEGEER(F—HR) - T2
ENREE  tARTHEHZR
BRNEERREAESD - 5t
BRIZENWEME - HET
BR—REOERIERZLR
- ERREREMBSHEEH
miE -

FAIR VALUE
At 1st January
Exchange adjustments
Additions
Transferred from inventories of properties
under development upon completion
Transferred from inventories of completed properties
Transferred from property, plant and equipment
Disposals
Net increase in fair value recognised
in the income statement

At 31st December

A K

THE GROUP
2007 2006
FERT THET
HKS$’000 HK$'000
3,042,800 2,305,922
210,905 101,103
221,097 259,781
23,291 -
319,540 62,841
- 6,800
(3,966) (5,353)
171,533 311,706
3,985,200 3,042,800

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December, 2007 and

31st December, 2006 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out

on that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and qualified

professional valuers not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited have

appropriate qualifications. The valuation, which conforms to The Hong Kong Institute

of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties (1st Edition) published by the Hong

Kong Institute of Surveyors, was principally based on investment approach by

taking into account the current rents passing and the reversionary income potential

of tenancies. For the properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was

based on capitalisation of the hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a

typical lease term or direct comparison approach.
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Investment properties are all located in the PRC and comprise properties

held under:

Long lease
Medium-term lease

THE GROUP
COST

Additions and at 31st December, 2005

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2006
Exchange adjustments

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries

At 31st December, 2007

AMORTISATION
Charge for the year and

at 31st December, 2005

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

At 31st December, 2006
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries

At 31st December, 2007

CARRYING VALUE
At 31st December, 2007

At 31st December, 2006

The mining right has a definite

line basis over 50 years.

A%
THE GROUP
2007

Fi#

HK$'000

2006
TAET
HK$'000

1,118,400
2,866,800

633,400
2,409,400

3,985,200 3,042,800

iR
Mining right
TET
HK$'000

7,099
284

7,383

152
(7,535)

86
147
241

78
(325)

7,142

useful life and is amortised on a straight-
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PROPERTIES IN THE PRC, AT COST

Balance at 1st January

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries

Transferred from inventories of
properties under development

Transferred to inventories of properties
under development

Charge to income statement

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 31st December

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT

Balance at 1st January

Exchange adjustments

Amortisation for the year

Impairment loss recognised for the year
(note a)

Transferred from inventories of properties
under development

Transferred to inventories of properties
under development

Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries

Balance at 31st December

CARRYING VALUES

The Group's properties for development comprise:

Leasehold land in the PRC
Long lease
Medium-term lease

Note:

A%

THE GROUP

2007 2006
FTERT THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
1,511,779 1,221,379
70,193 34,006
259,975 167,193
1,350,174 =
- 102,290
(283,947) =
- (13,089)
(83,096) =
2,825,078 1,511,779
96,528 59,656
5,284 2,287
38,205 21,494
118,044 11,479

- 1,612

(8,858) =
(16,162) =
233,041 96,528
2,592,037 1,415,251
2,283,010 1,176,763
309,027 238,488
2,592,037 1,415,251

(a) During the year, the directors conducted an impairment review of a property for
development and determined that the property were fully impaired. This was because of
severe delay in the development progress of the land site. Accordingly, an impairment

loss of HK$118,044,000 has been recognised.
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The Group's prepaid lease payments on land use

rights comprise:

Leasehold land in the PRC
Long lease
Medium-term lease

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current asset
Current asset

Unlisted investments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: accumulated impairment

FEME

THE GROUP
2007 2006
FER THET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
48,743 =
20,086 35,174
68,829 35,174
67,392 34,138
1,437 1,036
68,829 35,174
ENNS|

THE COMPANY
2007 2006
FERT TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
3,211,442 2,354,556
2,020,721 1,893,282
(83,213) (87,700)
5,148,950 4,160,138

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2007 are set out in note 52.

The subsidiaries are not expected to repay the advances within twelve months from

the balance sheet date and the balances are classified as non-current. The amounts

are unsecured and interest-free.
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Cost of investment in unlisted associates
Share of post-acquisition profits and losses
and reserves, net of dividends received
Amounts due from associates
Less: Accumulated impairment

Notes:

A K

THE GROUP

2007 2006
FERT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
27,169 431,183
209,952 103,915
5,781 5,651
(199) (199)
242,703 540,550

(a) Details of the principal associates at 31st December, 2007 are set out in note 53. The
associates are not expected to repay the advances within twelve months from the
balance sheet date and the balances are classified as non-current. The amounts are

unsecured and interest-free.

(b) Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of HK$674,000 (2006:
HK$874,000) arising on acquisitions of associates in prior years.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set

out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities
Minority interests
Net assets

Revenue

Profit (loss) for the year

2007 2006
TER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,102,202 2,066,860
(158,376)  (604,510)
(150,232)  (119,643)
793,594 1,342,707
81,196 71,238
126,192 (7,689)
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THE GROUP
2007 2006
THET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of investment in unlisted jointly
controlled entities (note b) 623,626 474,337
Share of post-acquisition profits and losses and
reserves, net of dividends received 320,082 136,314
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities (note a) 77,149 59,058
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (38,607) (38,607)
982,250 631,102
¥ NN
THE COMPANY
2007 2006
THET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of investment in unlisted jointly
controlled entities 153,122 4,333
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities (note a) 18,529 1,587
171,651 5,920

Notes:

(a) Details of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31st December, 2007 are set out in
note 54. The jointly controlled entities are not expected to repay the advances within
twelve months from the balance sheet date and the balances are classified as non-
current. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

(b) Included in the cost of investment of jointly controlled entities is goodwill of HK$409,000
(2006: HK$409,000) arising on acquisitions of jointly controlled entities in prior years.

() Amounts due from jointly controlled entities classified as current assets are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly
controlled entities is set out below:

2007 2006
FET TH T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Total assets 4,970,112 2,825,215
Total liabilities (3,174,173) (1,696,688)
Minority interests (10,761) (6,182)
Net assets 1,785,178 1,122,345
Revenue 839,367 371,995
Profit (loss) for the year 230,107 (82,681)
AEE

THE GROUP
2007 2006
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity securities listed outside

Hong Kong 40,156 -
Unlisted equity securities 189 3,306
40,345 3,306

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value
which is determined based on the quoted market bid price available
on the relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC. The fair value
of the Group’s unlisted equity securities at the balance sheet date,
determined based on the present value of the estimated dividend
recovered discounted using the prevailing market rate at the balance
sheet date, approximates the carrying amount of the investments.
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As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segment as its primary
segment for reporting segment information. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to two individual
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), including one subsidiary in property
development segment and one subsidiary in manufacture and sale of
cement, clinker and slag powder segment. During the year, the Group
disposed of its entire interest of subsidiary in manufacture and sale
of cement, clinker and slag powder segment. The carrying amount of
goodwill as at 31st December, 2007 allocated is as follows:

ARE
THE GROUP

2007 2006

TET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Property development 640 640

Manufacture and sale of cement,
clinker and slag powder - 38,746
640 39,386

The basis of the recoverable amount of the relevant business unit in
the manufacture and sale of cement, clinker and slag powder segment
and its major underlying assumptions for the year ended 31st
December, 2006 are summarised below:

The recoverable amounts of the business unit in the manufacture and
sale of cement, clinker and slag powder segment are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
forecasted period. Management estimates discount rates of 8.56%,
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the business unit.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period
and extrapolates cash flows of the business unit for the following
nine years using zero growth rate.
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During the year ended 31st December, 2007, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs
containing goodwill.

Instalments receivable arising from sale of property for development
in prior years to the extent of HK$74,642,000 (2006: HK$81,274,000)
is interest free and repayable based on the progress of development
and sale of a property project. In addition to the consideration, the
Group is entitled to share part of the profit from this project.

At 31st December, 2006, included in inventories of properties were
completed properties of HK$2,252,000 transferred from trade debtors
in lieu of cash settlement.

AEE

THE GROUP
2007 2006
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Raw materials - 22,884
Work in progress - 3,266
Finished goods 3,041 12,416
3,041 38,566

At 31st December, 2007, loans receivable of HK$40,650,000 (2006:
HK$40,650,000) bear interests at 20% (2006: 20%) per annum, are
secured and repayable in July 2008. Loans receivable of
HK$12,689,000 (2006: 12,689,000) bear interest at prime rate plus
1% per annum, are unsecured and repayable in January 2008. Loans
receivable of HK$26,709,000 bear interest at 2.5% per month, are
unsecured and repayable in January 2008. At 31st December, 2006,
loans receivable of HK$8,792,000 bore interest at prime rate, was
secured and repaid in 2007.



EREPz2HEINELERFINMIA -
AEE-RETOXERREMEFPZER
HRA=tHBEZE—B_-1tH -RN&EEH &
FRWER (BREEE S R EMEEIRR - %
ERENRA) ZBREDTHT

LR
BH=EAR
A= NEA
BHtE+T_—@EA
BHEET @A

REERIINETZ
P AN 58 55

IE b T AR AN RS 2
FLEMERE

RBEBAII LT ZBABHFAR A BER
B -REREZAABEIREBEARSMHM
FiheMZEAREEE -

FELEMEAEFERENP BN Z AR
BT ETRAZS - AEBZIFLETE
SREERZARBERRGEERRTTZT
BRI EAEE AR E 2 A B S mET
BHRzBE AR BEEREZEREAE
EE e

FELEMEREFERENP BN ZRITH
BITZELEMEBRES -

Rental receivable from tenants are payable on presentation of invoices.
The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 to 120 days to
property purchasers and other customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, which are included in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, at the balance sheet date:

rEH

THE GROUP
2007 2006
THET TH& T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Not yet due 46,831 59,187
Overdue within 3 months 16,663 150,743
Overdue between 4 and 6 months 5,722 28,623
Overdue between 7 and 12 months 3,198 19,697
Overdue over 12 months 241 34,107
72,655 292,357

rEE

THE GROUP
2007 2006
FE T FA T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Equity securities listed outside

Hong Kong 34,857 1,659
Unlisted equity securities 2,403 4,940
Unlisted debt securities 4,871 4,980
42,131 11,579

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value
which is determined based on the quoted market bid price available
on the relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC. The fair value
of the Group’s unlisted securities at the balance sheet date is
determined based on the present value of the estimated interest or
dividend recovered discounted using the prevailing market rate at the
balance sheet date, approximates the carrying amount of the
investments.

Unlisted debt securities represent investments in unlisted debt securities
issued by the bank in the PRC.
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Ef’f%&/ﬁ;ﬁﬂr&“ﬁ'ﬁﬁ 7 5) 7B  and other payables, at the balance sheet date:
oM :

AEH
THE GROUP
2007 2006
FET TBT
HK$'000 HK$’000
7 5 £ Not yet due 273,318 295,011
ME = AR Overdue within 3 months 5,295 116,265
180 HA 7O 2= /< (E A Overdue between 4 and 6 months 215 44,360
=+ A Overdue between 7 and 12 months 15,514 80,760
wmEEB+ @A Overdue over 12 months 224,668 77,646
519,010 614,042
AEBRADT
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
ZERKRMER HE
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
FAT
HK$'000
AT Authorised:
RZBEZARF+=-A=+—HK Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each at
—EEt+F+-_A=1+—8H 31st December, 2006 and
BREE0208 T2 LM’  31st December, 2007 2,000,000,000 400,000
EZFTRHE Issued and fully paid:
EA: TERF—HF—H At 1st January, 2006 875,469,918 175,094
ETREERERRESE Shares issued under the placing and
i 217 2 IR subscription 175,000,000 35,000
TERREEMET 2D Shares issued on exercise of warrants 78,800,000 15,760
RZZEERF+_A=1+—H At 31st December, 2006 1,129,269,918 225,854
ﬁﬁ ESERRBEEEM Shares issued under the placing
172 I’ and subscription 130,000,000 26,000
ﬁ PRBEEMEITZRNG Shares issued under Open Offer 251,853,983 50,371
R=-ZZB+tHF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 1,511,123,901 302,225
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EERBMOIOBTZER  REARA
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SLERAARAIEER T2 —REBEMEST
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2% o

BE_ZEZZ+F+ - A NBARARRITZR
RESASEMBBCEBAZRR  NAFE
HEZEBREERBRRZERH6.00%5 T

REEBEITAME S 251,853,983/ ¥k
B BEAR_ZTZ+F+-_AHEAR
A AR D A ERE —RRG - RRE
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FEAMNEA c FIRMES T HEEAE 2
TROHZERESEZ R_ZZ+F+-4
“+tH - AHEBENAEKREMARRE
776 $£251,853,983 % B AR E(H0.20/%8 JT 1 I
7 % 251,853,98310 #T iR I #E 7% o

Ordinary shares

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 6th April, 2006 made between
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and the placing agent, SHK placed 175,000,000 existing
shares of HK$0.20 each in the Company to independent investors at
a price of HK$5.10 per share, representing a discount of approximately
6% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares on 4th
April, 2006.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same date made between
SHK and the Company, SHK subscribed for 175,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.20 each in the Company at a price of HK$5.10 per share.
The proceeds were used to fund a property development project, to
reduce overall borrowings and to provide general working capital for
the Group. These new shares were issued under the general mandate
granted to the directors of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 12th May, 2005 and rank pari passu with
other shares in issue in all respects.

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, 78,800,000 shares of
HK$0.20 each were issued at HK$2.75 per share for cash as a result
of the exercise of warrants by the warrantholder. The new shares
rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 26th October, 2007 made
between independent corporate investors and the Company,
independent corporate investors subscribed for 130,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.20 each in the Company at a price of HK$9.10 per
share. The proceeds were used to expand the landbank in PRC and
to provide general working capital for the Group. These new shares
were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
18th May, 2007 and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 6th December, 2007, the Company
was approved to issue 251,853,983 new shares by way of the Open
Offer to the qualifying shareholders at the subscription price of
HK$6.00 per share, on the basis of one new share for every five
shares held on 6th December, 2007 together with new warrants of
the Company in the proportion of one new warrant for every one
new share successfully subscribed, as detailed in note 41. The new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.
The Open Offer became unconditional on 27th December, 2007 and
a total of 251,853,983 new shares of HK$0.20 each together with
251,853,983 new warrants were issued by the Company.
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Warrants

Upon completion of the warrants instrument entered into between
the Company and a subscriber on 24th December, 2004, the Company
issued 5 new unlisted warrants conferring rights to subscribe for up
to 78,800,000 new shares at the following subscription prices:

(a) at the price of HK$2.25 (subject to adjustments) in respect of
each share if exercised during the first six-month period
commencing from the issue date of 24th December, 2004;

(b) at the price of HK$2.50 (subject to adjustments) in respect of
each share if exercised during the second six-month period
commencing from the issue date of 24th December, 2004; and

(c) at the price of HK$2.75 (subject to adjustments) in respect of
each share if exercised during the third six-month period
commencing from the issue date of 24th December, 2004, with
such period to end on the expiry date of 23rd June, 2006.

The Company has received a sum of US$1,000,000 (which is equivalent
to approximately HK$7,800,000) as consideration for the issue of
warrants. The Company had made application to the Stock Exchange
for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares to be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of the subscription rights attached to
the warrants. Under the terms and conditions of warrants instrument,
should the approval for the listing of such shares not be obtained by
the Company on or before 31st March, 2005, the warrants will be
returned to the Company for cancellation and will cease to be of any
effect and the Company will refund the sum of US$1,000,000 (without
interest) to the subscriber. During the year ended 31st December,
2005, the Company has obtained the approval for the listing of and
permission to deal in such shares.

As above mentioned, during the year ended 31st December, 2006,
the warrantholder exercised its rights attached to the warrants. As a
result, at 31st December, 2006, the Company had no outstanding
warrants.
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Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on
27th January, 1999 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to eligible employees (including executive directors), and will expire
on 26th January, 2009. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant excluding any
shares issued pursuant to the Scheme. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any eligible employee is not
permitted to exceed 25% of the total number of shares of the
Company issued and issuable under the Scheme.

A consideration of HK$10 is payable on the grant of an option.
Options granted must be held for a minimum period of six months
before they can be exercised. A maximum of 50% of the options
may be exercised during the first to sixth month of the 2-year
exercisable period (commencing on the expiry of six months after the
date of grant) and the remaining 50% are exercisable during the
thirteenth to twenty-fourth month of the 2-year period. If no option
or less than 50% of the options are exercised during the first to sixth
month, these unexercised options can be carried forward to the
thirteenth to twenty-fourth month.
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Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the nominal value of the
Company’s share or 80% of the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant.

No options were granted nor were exercised during the year ended
31st December, 2007 and 2006.

THE GROUP

Other reserves comprise the fair value adjustment on properties arising
from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries.

The remittance outside of the PRC of accumulated profits of the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures established in the PRC is
subject to approval of the local authorities and the availability of
foreign currencies generated and retained by these companies.
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Revaluation reserves

At 1st January, 2006

Surplus on revaluation of properties
upon transfer to investment
properties (net of tax)

Transfer to profit or loss on sale of
available-for-sale investments

At 31st December, 2006

Increase in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Effect of change in tax rate of deferred
tax liabilities arising on
revaluation of properties

At 31st December, 2007

IS RE
EftHRE EftRE
Property  Investment
revaluation  revaluation Azt
reserve reserve Total
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= 767 767
3,519 = 3,519
= (1,516) (1,516)
3,519 (749) 2,770
= 36,813 36,813
95 = 95
3,614 36,064 39,678
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THE COMPANY

At 1st January, 2006

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Transfer of warrant reserve to
share premium account upon
the exercise of warrants

Profit attributable to equity holders

At 31st December, 2006
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Profit attributable to equity holders
Dividend recognised as
distribution

At 31st December, 2007

Bk EARA
kxaE ErRRE AR 8
Share Special ~ ERHE Capital ~ Rit&A

premium capital  Warrant redemption Accumulated @t
account reserve reserve reserve profits Total
THER THER TER TER TR THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
357,164 1,417,669 7,800 130,691 1,820,994 3,734,318
1,058,440 = = = - 1,058,440
(31,446) - — = = (31,446)
7,800 = (7,800) = = =
- - - - 425,706 425,706
1,391,958 1,417,669 - 130,691 2,246,700 5,187,018
1,915,902 - - - - 1,915,902
(41,864) = = = = (41,864)
= = — — 215,562 215,562
- - - - (28,232) (28,232)
3,265,996 1,417,669 - 130,691 2,434,030 7,248,386

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December,
2007 represent the accumulated profits of HK$2,434,030,000 (2006: HK$2,246,700,000).
When sanctioning a reduction in nominal value of the Company’s shares in 2004, the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region stipulated that the credit
arising on the reduction be transferred to a special capital reserve, and that reserve was
not to be regarded as distributable until all of the liabilities of the Company as at the
date of the order, 9th March, 2004, were settled. At 31st December, 2007, liabilities of
the Company included HK$94,605,000 (2006: HK$95,511,000) in respect of liabilities
in existence at 9th March, 2004.
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Bank overdrafts
Bank loans (note a)

Loan notes (note b)
Other loans (note c)

Secured
Unsecured

Carrying amount repayable:
On demand or within one year
More than one year, but not
exceeding two years
More than two years, but not
exceeding five years
More than five years

Less: Amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities

3 1)

AQH

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
TAET FAT TERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 16,005 - 126
1,577,900 1,861,362 - 160,000
1,577,900 1,877,367 - 160,126
78,405 78,405 78,405 78,405
42,131 21,846 - _
1,698,436 1,977,618 78,405 238,531
1,497,687 1,614,584 - 150,000
200,749 363,034 78,405 88,531
1,698,436 1,977,618 78,405 238,531
605,492 712,841 78,405 50,126
186,404 519,127 - 118,405
841,352 656,988 - 70,000
65,188 88,662 - -
1,698,436 1,977,618 78,405 238,531
(605,492) (712,841 (78,405) (50,126)
1,092,944 1,264,777 - 188,405
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Notes:

(a) At 31st December, 2007, a bank loan of approximately HK$13,889,000 carried interest
at a default rate of approximately 10.35% per annum was secured and repayable on
28th April, 2006. This bank loan was acquired though the acquisition of a subsidiary
during the year and the Group is planned to provide adequate funds for that subsidiary

to meet in full its financial obligations.

(b) Loan notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$78,405,000, which were issued
by the Company as part of the consideration of the repurchase of shares of the Company
during the year ended 31st December, 2003, carry interest at 2.5% per annum and are

repayable on 29th August, 2008.

(c) At 31st December, 2007, other loans of HK$30,600,000 carried interest at 0.81% per
month were unsecured and repayable on 10th January, 2008. The remaining other loans
carried interest at market rate, were unsecured and repayable within twelve months

from the balance sheet date.

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the contractual maturity

dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

Fixed-rate borrowings:

Within one year

In more than one year but not more than
two years

In more than two years but not more than
three years

In more than three years but not more than
four years

In more than four years but not more than
five years

In more than five years

2007 2006
FER TAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
583,674 561,519
98,771 433,405
406,412 60,000
267,094 =
- 250,000

5,376 5,376
1,361,327 1,310,300

In addition, the Group has variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR.

Interest is repriced every three months.
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The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows:

2007 2006

Effective interest rate:
2.50% to 11.23%
4.71% to 8.61%

2.50% to 10.50%
5.02% to 9.25%

Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

AR B
Renminbi  Hong Kong EpH B
dollars dollars US dollars Total
T FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2007
Bank and other loans 1,437,340 251,960 9,136 1,698,436
2006
Bank overdrafts - 16,005 - 16,005
Bank and other loans 1,463,446 472,341 25,826 1,961,613
1,463,446 488,346 25,826 1,977,618

During the year, the Group obtained new loans in the amount of HK$553,142,000.
The loans bear interest at market rates and will be repayable in or before 2010. The
proceeds were used to finance operating activities of the Group.
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THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
TAET FAT FTAERT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Promissory note (note a) - 40,000 - -
Advances from minority shareholders 62,201 64,156 - -
Amounts due to jointly controlled
entities 126,118 104,458 - -
Amounts due to associates 17,385 8,507 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 44,455 30,926
205,704 217,121 44,455 30,926
Carrying amount repayable:
On demand or within one year 168,705 156,978 44,455 30,459
More than one year (note b) 36,999 60,143 - 467
205,704 217,121 44,455 30,926
Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities (168,705) (156,978) (44,455) (30,459)
36,999 60,143 - 467

Notes:

(@) A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$40,000,000, which was issued by the
Group during the year ended 31st December, 2001, carried interest at 7% per annum
and was repayable on 20th December, 2004. During the year ended 31st December,
2004, the noteholder agreed to waive the interest accrued but not yet paid and the
promissory note became interest free since then. The promissory note was repaid in
2007.

(b) The amounts are unsecured and not repayable within twelve months from the balance
sheet date.
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Pursuant to the Open Offer as detailed in note 37, 251,853,983 new
warrants to subscribe for 251,853,983 new shares at a subscription
price of HK$10.00 per share were issued on 28th December, 2007.
At 31st December, 2007, the Company had outstanding 251,853,983
warrants with an aggregate subscription price of HK$2,518,539,830
and exercisable at any time in the period commencing on 2nd January,
2008 and ending 2nd January, 2010.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, registered holders of 408 new
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 408 ordinary shares of
the Company at HK$10.00 per share for cash.

The estimated fair values of the warrants granted on 28th December,
2007 is HK$701,851,000. The estimated fair values of the warrants
are HK$803,516,000 on 31st December, 2007.

These fair values were calculated using The Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

—ETLEF —ETHEF

+ZAZ+N\B +=ZRA=+—H

28.12.2007 31.12.2007

Closing share price HK$10.30 HK$10.96
10.30/%8 7T 10.96/8 7T

Exercise price HK$10.00 HK$10.00
10.00%& 7T 10.00/% 7T

Expected volatility 52.51% 52.74%
Expected life 2 years 2 years
2% 24

Risk-free rate 2.595% 2.577%
Expected dividend yield 0.23% 0.23%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the last two years.

On 26th May, 2002, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement
with a tenant in respect of leasing of an investment property for a
period of 20 years. Pursuant to the agreement, the tenant agreed to
bear the costs of fitting out works of the investment property at an
agreed amount of HK$197,933,000 payable on behalf of the Group
in lieu of paying operating lease rental to the Group for a period of 6
years, and paying a monthly operating lease rental over the remaining
lease period. During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group
revised the terms of the lease and determined with the tenant that
the costs of fitting out works of the investment property to be borne
by the Group would be revised to HK$67,308,000 and the annual
operating rental payable by the tenant for the remaining period would
be reduced. Taking consideration of the substance of the
arrangements, the reduction of costs of fitting out works to be borne
by the Group of HK$130,625,000 was reclassified as deferred rental
income from a tenant and is released to the profit or loss as rental
income on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term of 17
years. At 31st December, 2007, deferred rental income from a tenant
to be released within one year of HK$7,684,000 (2006: HK$7,192,000)
has been included in trade and other payables.
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MEZRERIBEEM
BEREZHWT :
K%M THE GROUP
N22%75-A-A At 1st January, 2006
/@Mﬁ% Bichange adjustments
RERBRATR Charge (credit) to

(&m) income for the year
NEREERNE Charge to equity for the year
RZFEAFTA=T—H At 31st December, 2006
E%ﬂ% Bxchange adjustments
RERBRATR Charge (credit) to

(&m) income for the year
RNEEREMEL ZBIERE Effect of change in tax rate of deferred

AEHHERS tax liabiltes arising on revaluation

L¥E of properties
BENEARE Addition on deemed

ZEN acquisition of assets
DERE-RHEATZ  Reversal on cancellation of

() acquisition of a subsidiary (v)
WENBLT Acquisition of subsidiaries
HERBRR L Elimination on disposal

il of subsidiaries

Z“@JZ% Fffect of change in tax

#13) rate (note 13)

WZBRLETZA=T-B At31st December, 2007

thereon during the current and prior years:

Membership debentures represent golf guaranty fees which are refundable to members
twenty years after joining the golf club or can be used by members to set off against the
cost of purchasing villas at the golf course.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised and movements

RRASE BHBHA

EHHR ELAA

] AHHER

Adjustments Elimination

to conform to of inter-

EHaft & theGroup's REHREE  company

Business ~ EffM1%  HERE accounting  Allowance  charges in

combinations  Revaluation  Accelerated policies for  properties  HEKE

(W) of tx (i) doubtful (i) Tax 2y it
(Note ) properties depreciation (Note ii) debts (Note i) losses Others Total
Tin TEn TAL Tin TEn TER TR TEn TER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 Hk$'000
517,078 153,384 16,361 139,734 (9,285) (35,311) (3,840) 624 719,245
1,214 8,560 1,351 2,529 (195) - (171) - 13,298
(4,0%) 117,698 2408 (124,141) 5,336 - (868) 6 (3,657)
- 621 - - - - - - 621
514,206 280,263 20,620 18,122 (4,144) (35,311) (4879 630 789,507
1,847 18,013 13 (359) (85) - (289) - 19,850
241) 73,535 (2.78)  (22,669) 18 - - (107) 45,844
- 9% - - - - - - 9
= 4,248 = = = = = = 4,248
(116,609) - - - - - - - (116,609
571,420 - - - - - - - 571,420
- - (18,561) - 3,951 - - (314) (14,924)
(1,635) (62,658) - (5,336) - 8,560 1,219 (20 (59,870)
966,818 313,496 - (10,242) - (26,751) (3,949) 189 1,239,561
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MOBRERAEERABEREEABRTD
TEHEE  UTRELEMIBGERZ DN

EERIARE
BT IRE E

REER  NEBHERJEERR N 2R
F)) /75 73 /5 18 338,468,000 7T (ZEE /X
£ : 340,051,000 70) - WM IEEEFR 2
15,796,000 7T (ZZEZ /<N 4F © 14,784,000/
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b= 437,269,000,% T (ZZEZFE X ¢ :
315,437,000 7T) © R ARR T KAIRER fE
AR EE T SAZ IR ERER - i)
AEEWEFL AT HNRE N EERRRELEH
HEE °

Notes:

(i)  This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from
the fair value adjustments to properties for and under development
upon acquisition of property holding subsidiaries.

(i) This mainly represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising
from the adjustments to management accounts of certain subsidiaries to
conform to the Group's policies of revenue recognition and capitalisation
of property development cost.

(iii)  This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from
the elimination of inter-company charges originally capitalised as cost of
properties under development, properties for sale and investment
properties of subsidiaries.

(iv)  Since acquisition of a subsidiary, there were many changes in laws, rules
and regulations as imposed by the relevant government land authority
affecting the land investment and development in Beijing. Owing to the
change of the government land policy, the vendor is not able and had
failed to fulfill certain conditions stipulated in the relevant sale and
purchase agreement. During the year, the Group entered into a
cancellation agreement with the Vendor to cancel the previous acquisition
agreements and accordingly the transaction is reversed in current year.

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2007 2006

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deferred tax liabilities 1,245,536 793,546
Deferred tax assets (5,975) (4,039)
1,239,561 789,507

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$338,468,000 (2006: HK$340,051,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$15,796,000 (2006: HK$14,784,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$322,672,000 (2006: HK$325,267,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$289,857,000 (2006: HK$148,150,000) that will gradually expire
until 2012. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has other deductible temporary
differences of HK$437,269,000 (2006: HK$315,437,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, certain investment properties are leased out
for a period of 20 years from the date of commencement of operation
of a lessee that occupies the properties, with a renewal option at the
end of the lease. The rentals are calculated at a certain percentage of
the revenue (net of value added tax) of the lessee, with a minimum
annual rental. Other investment properties were leased out for periods
ranging from 1 to 10 years and the majority of the leases did not have
any renewal options given to the lessees. The Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

ARE
THE GROUP

2007 2006

FH& T FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within one year 125,567 91,835

In the second to fifth years inclusive 131,322 156,152

After five years 186,875 193,798

443,764 441,785

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises, plant and equipment which fall due
as follows:

i | b

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
THET THT TER FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 1,634 4,080 - 67

In the second to fifth

years inclusive - 2,508 - -
QOver five years - 76 - -
1,634 6,664 - 67
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The Group as lessee (continued)

Other operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of

its office properties. Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years

at fixed rentals.

Capital expenditure in respect of
contracted commitments for:
- acquisition of land use

rights in the PRC
— acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
— acquisition of investment
properties
— acquisition of a property
investment subsidiary
— capital contribution to
a subsidiary
— loans to associates

i | PN

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
TET THT TER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,312,670 1,316,534 - -
1,466 630 - -
- 46,000 - -
49,245 - - -
- - 78,394 -
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(@) At 31st December, 2007, the Company and the Group had guarantees as follows:

Guarantees given to banks in
respect of banking facilities
utilised by:

— subsidiaries
- a jointly controlled entity
- related companies

Guarantee given in respect of
an other loan facility granted
to a subsidiary

Guarantees given to banks
in respect of mortgage loans
granted to property purchasers

Guarantee given to a bank
in respect of a banking
facility granted to a vendor
of land use rights to a property
development subsidiary

Guarantee in respect of a
promissory note issued
by a subsidiary

ARE AL

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
FE7 T FE7 T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- = 1,017,552 912,018
139,133 30,000 139,133 =
98,500 = 98,500 =
- = 30,600 =
225,324 252,986 175 616
- 13,797 - =
- = - 40,000
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(b)

During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the PRC government
has reinforced the compliance of regulations on idle land
confiscation which was issued by the Ministry of Land Resources
of the PRC on 26th April, 1999. As at 31st December, 2007, a
property for development with carrying value of HK$115,055,000
was identified as idle land, which delayed development was due
to the legal action taken by a minority shareholder against the
subsidiary. This legal case had been settled and the Group intends
to continue the development of this property. Another property
for development with carrying value of HK$179,161,000 may be
potentially classified as idle land. The Group is currently working
diligently to prevent the possible classification, including
negotiating the feasibility of development plans with local
authorities. Based on legal advice, the Directors have assessed
the issue and consider that the idle land confiscation may not
materialise.

A property purchaser who previously purchased a property in
Shenzhen initiated legal proceedings against a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company to rescind the sale contract and claim
for sales proceeds paid of approximately HK$55,908,000 together
with compensation. Inventories of completed properties with
carrying value of HK$40,063,000 are held in the custody of the
court. The Group had appealed and the Supreme Court had
ordered rehearing to the case. This property purchaser initiated
another legal proceeding claiming for sales proceeds of another
storey of the same shopping arcade and the underground
carparks with the compensation amounting to approximately
HK$66,985,000. Both cases are still pending trial. In December
2007, a conditional settlement agreement was reached between
the parties. In the event that the conditional settlement
agreement shall fail to complete, the management of the
Company, having obtained the legal advice from the practicing
lawyers in the PRC, considers that it has a strong defence against
both claims and thus no provision is required to be made.
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(d)

Certain contractors have sued subsidiaries for outstanding
construction costs and compensations of totally approximately
HK$35,075,000 which are in dispute. Properties for development
with carrying value of HK$115,055,000 are held in the custody
of the court. The cases are under trial by the courts in the PRC.
The Group has assessed the claims and obtained legal advices,
and considers that the final outcome of the claims will not have
material effect on the financial position of the Group.

A sub-contractor has applied for arbitration against a subsidiary
claiming for outstanding construction costs of approximately
HK$27,062,000 which are being disputed. Based on legal opinion,
the Group has assessed the claim and considers that the final
outcome of the claim will not have material effect on the financial
position of the Group.

In 1998, the Company acquired a subsidiary that held a land site
in the PRC with the consideration partially satisfied by disposing
of its interest in a jointly controlled entity to the vendor. A
person who was the beneficial owner of the vendor has initiated
legal proceeding against the Company, for which proceedings a
writ was received by the company in March 2008, claiming the
transfer of the interest in the jointly controlled entity and losses
in Renminbi of HK$20,342,000 equivalent plus interest and other
costs on the grounds that the Company had not effectively
transferred the legal title to the interest in that jointly controlled
entity to the vendor. The Company will investigate the matter
and intends to defend the case vigorously. At this stage, the
Company does not consider that it is appropriate to make any
provision in the circumstances.

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which

is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held

separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,

whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after
1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.
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For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$20,000, and the Group will
make 5% top-up contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary
exceeds HK$20,000.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the
employees at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group at
rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. During the year ended 31st
December, 2007, the amount of forfeited contributions used to set
off contributions was HK$59,000 (2006: HK$22,000). At the balance
sheet date, no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees
leaving the ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$13,440,000
(2006: HK$13,580,000).
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The Group had material transactions and balances with related parties as follows:

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

SHK
- Outstanding loan note, as detailed in
note 39(b)
— Interest on loan note
— Interest on other loan payable
— Insurance paid
— Rental income
- Amounts payable

Controlling shareholders of SHK (and which

have common directors with the Company)

- Rent, property management and
air-conditioning fees paid

- Management fee

— Interest expenses

— Other loans payable

— Amounts payable

Minority shareholders
- Rental expenses for cement
production facilities

A company of which a non-executive
director of the Company is a partner
- Legal and professional fees

Key management personnel compensation
— Salaries and other short-term benefits
— Post-employment costs
— Compensation for loss of office paid

A company of which has common director
— Interest income
— Guarantee fee income
— Other receivable

2007 2006
TR THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
78,000 78,000
1,950 1,950
- 6,620

882 895
196 =
3,105 1,371
3,007 2,568
4,095 4,335
591 1,139

- 5,000
1,541 4,924
2,863 5,769
3,170 1,893
9,540 8,662
395 350

- 575

387 =
905 =

21,673
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Certain key management personnel of the Group received
remuneration from a company, or a wholly owned subsidiary of such
company, which has significant beneficial interests in the Company.
Such company provided management services to the Group and
charged the Group a fee, which has been included in management
fee as disclosed in part (ii) of this note, for services provided by those
personnel as well as others who were not key management personnel
of the Group.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference to
the time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the
Group and can be apportioned to the above key management
personnel. The total of such apportioned amounts, which has been
included in the key management personnel compensation above, is
HK$2,284,000 (2006: HK$2,699,000).

At 31st December, 2007,

(a) The Group’s 100% (2006: 100%) interest in Tian An Real Estate
Agency (China) Company Limited (“Tian An Real Estate”) with
carrying value of HK$402,236,000 (2006: HK$374,723,000) was
pledged against an other loan facility granted to the Group.
Inventories of completed properties and investment properties
held by a subsidiary of Tian An Real Estate with carrying values
of HK$16,780,000 (2006: nil) and HK$631,494,000 (2006: nil)
respectively were pledged against a banking facility granted to
that subsidiary.

(b) Bank deposits, property, plant and equipment, properties for
development, properties under development, inventories of
completed properties and investment properties of certain
subsidiaries with carrying values of HK$86,638,000 (2006:
HK$302,952,000), HK$47,893,000 (2006: HK$22,083,000),
HK$705,631,000 (2006: HK$618,962,000), HK$102,182,000
(2006: HK$147,440,000), HK$271,706,000 (2006:
HK$355,542,000) and HK$1,461,163,000 (2006:
HK$802,372,000) respectively were pledged to banks for banking
facilities granted to the Group.



() ANEEBERME?822,0008T(—EE
JNEE 12,824,000 7T) ZIFBEMEE
AEMERZEMT -

(d) ANEEBER®EES115,055,0008 7T (=
TEN4E ¢ 96,531,000 7T) 2 FERE
MEEBESHENRRZIER  ZEN
BRAREEE  BEAER -

(e) AEEBIEITIFN3,274,0008 7T (=F
TN 1 3,926,00058 7T) AR IRITIEAY
XEREREKBERZEM -

() AEBEZETEE  RWFEA7(QR()F
o RAERERERE °

R-BERET-A=+—R

(9) AEEBR EEBEKERNDERA A
& B EF{E 154,038,000 T Z
54.7%BmEAAEBERRITELE
EZER -

(h) AL E#& M Tian An Land (Shanghai)
Limited ([ Tian An Land]) Bk @ &
481,669,000/ 7T 2 100%#E 5 1E B AN A
RIERRITEE 2 ° Tian An Land
22— HMBRARASABEREEME
938,524,000 T2 EY ¥ - BREME
13,479,000 T 2 A E WX K KHE A
24,243,000 T2 W% ~ BB R EEIE
BEZMBARERIBITEE 2K -

Properties for development with carrying value of HK$2,822,000
(2006: HK$2,824,000) were pledged against other loans.

Pledges of properties for development with carrying values of
HK$115,055,000 (2006: HK$96,531,000) against a trade payable
which has been settled, have not been released.

Bank deposits with carrying value of HK$3,274,000 (2006:
HK$3,926,000) were pledged against mortgage loans granted
to property purchasers.

Certain assets of the Group are under the custody of courts, as
described in notes 47(c) and (d).

At 31st December, 2006,

(9)

The Group’s 54.7% interest in Shanghai Allied Cement Limited
with consolidated net assets of HK$154,038,000 was pledged
against a bank overdraft facility granted to the Group.

The Group's 100% interest in Tian An Land (Shanghai) Limited
(“Tian An Land”) with carrying value of HK$481,669,000 was
pledged against a banking facility granted to the Company.
Investment properties, inventories of completed properties and
property, plant and equipment held by a subsidiary of Tian An
Land with carrying values of HK$938,524,000, HK$13,479,000
and HK$24,243,000 respectively were pledged against a banking
facility granted to that subsidiary.
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ETTHRREERS

the following connected transactions:

(a) AEEE—NBRARIZLHEBRETIZHK ()
e - AR 2/ (E 414,989,000/ 7T
WEEZ B A TZ%MMO%TZE/\ o %I
WBER=-EENF-_AMHZK °

(b) XRARR_ZTENF-—A=+—HEHF (b
WEZERIRREI L BT TBIRG R E

2 IR 0 #

R BRT RERR

K< FH A-_FTEN\F—H—H
EE_T-—TF+_A=1t—BL(E

REEMB) REI=F -

BREAHBEIN MBEXTERBAR
MK WEEFBEFBELE

AHEERE

Subsequent to 31st December, 2007, the Company has entered into

The Group has entered into an acquisition agreement with a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary in relation to the acquisition
of an additional 40% interest in that subsidiary at the cash
consideration of approximately HK$14,989,000. The acquisition
was completed on 4th February, 2008.

The Company entered into the renewed sharing of administrative
services and management services agreement with controlling
shareholder of SHK on 31st January, 2008, pursuant to which
the term of the services agreement was renewed and extended
for a period of 3 years commencing from 1st January, 2008 to
31st December, 2010 (both days inclusive).

Particulars of principal subsidiaries which are incorporated and are
E{E - F16  operating principally in Hong Kong except where otherwise indicated are

wmr as follows:
EERTEBRRAEE
TEMEER LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
ERTHREER share capital/
BRA/ZHEAR registered capital
Paid up issued b NN
ordinary share WEBARRKSE AEEER
capital/ held by the attributable
i) PNEIEE registered Company*/ to the TEER
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Allied Resort (Hangzhou) US$1 100 100 REER
Company Limited® Investment holding
TREREEAEERAAO US$15,600,000 100 100 NEERRRE
Beijing Nanhu Huayuan Apartment Property development and
Co., Ltd.™ investment
CBIREAR LA HK$151,031,629 99.97 99.97 REER
CBI Investment Limited Investment holding
RERZEHERERBRAFY RMB50,000,000 100 100 NEER

Changchun Tian An Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd."

Property development



ERTHZEER
BRE/ZRER
Paid up issued
ordinary share

ERTEERKRAHEE
AME A2 LBl
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
KRR/

WEBARAES FREES

capital/ held by the attributable
HEARBR registered Company*/ to the TEEK
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
BMRLZEHERERAAY US$2,650,000 100 100 NMEER
Changzhou Tian An City Development Property development
Co., Ltd."
BMNARLZEGEXRERRAY US$8,000,000 100 100 NEZRRRE
Changzhou Tian An Landmark Property development and
Co., Ltd.® investment
BMNRZTHEHEERER AR US$14,778,131 100 100 NEER
Changzhou Tian An Yuan Cheng Property development
Real Estate Development Company Limited"
ERERERAA HK$200 100* 100 RELZKR
Chinaland Management Limited Investment holding
Commander Ventures Limited(” US$1 100 100 REER
Investment holding
BNNEER (LB)BRARO US$620,000 100 100 NEZRNRE
Cornell Property Services (Shanghai) Property management and
Co., Ltd.™ investment holding
ARERZEHEREBERAAD US$6,800,000 60 60 NEER
Dalian Tian An Property Development Property development
Co., Ltd.®
ABRLZEARAEERAAY US$10,000,000 100 100 NEERRRE
Dalian Tian An Tower Co., Ltd." Property development and
investment
BEIEBERQA0 HK$2 100 100 NERE
Grandview Square Limited” Property investment
BEISAEBERARO HK$2 100 100 NERE
Grand Kings Limited® Property investment
Grand Rise Investments Limited” Us$1 100 100 REAER
Investment holding
EMNTABEHEREZRBERRAD US$12,000,000 90 90 NEER
Guangzhou Tian Sui Realty Property development
Development Co., Ltd.®
BEMAKHERERERRAY HK$50,000,000 100 100 NERE

Huiyang Danshui Xinyangcheng
Construction Company Limited"

Property investment



ERTEERRAHEE
AME A2 LAl
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

ERTHREER share capital/
BRA/ZHEAR registered capital
Paid up issued KAF*/
ordinary share WEBARRKSE AEEER
capital/ held by the attributable
il PN registered Company*/ to the TEER
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
BEERAERAA HK$230,644,800 57.04 57.04 REZK
Jack Rock Development Limited Investment holding
IPm AL EHER % RMB20,000,000 60 60 NEZR
BREBERAAO Property development
Jiangmen City Tian An Property
Development Co., Ltd.®
ERERARARA HK$2 100 100 R
Join View Development Limited Money lending
Kylie Nominees Limited HK$2 100 100 REREARS
Provision of nominee
services
BEEERRAF HK$1,000 100 100 REER
Max Target Holdings Limited Investment holding
HARABERERRAY US$7,500,000 100 100 NEERERE
Nanjing Tiandu Industry Co., Ltd." Property development and
Investment
AT (BR) BHEREERARY US$12,000,000 57.04 57.04 NEER
Pacific (Fujian) Real Estate Development Property development
Co., Ltd.¥
AFEGEM GRRELBERAF US$3,000,000 57.04 57.04 gERARNS
Pacific (Fuzhou) Golf Club Ltd." Golf course operation
EEREERAA HK$100 85 85 REER
Regal Asset Investment Limited Investment holding
LERUBHELEFRAFY US$15,000,000 100 85 NEER
Shanghai Sheshan Country Club Property development
Company Limited®
LEBRRBOAREERRAD US$28,000,000 98 98 NEERERE
Shanghai Tian An Centre Building Property development and
Co., Ltd.® investment
LBRZAEEEERAF RMB65,000,000 99 99 NEERRRE

Shanghai Tianan Riverview Co., Ltd.

Property development and
investment



ERAEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

ERTHARERR share capital/
BRA/ &R registered capital
Paid up issued b N
ordinary share WEAREE AEEEN
capital/ held by the attributable
WEBARBRE registered Company*/ to the TEEH
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
LERFRHERR AR RMB50,000,000 80 80 NEERRKE
Shanghai Tianyang Real Estate Property development and
Co., Ltd. @ investment
AmEERRRAA HK$10 100 100 RELER
Sky Full Enterprises Limited Investment holding
Strait Investments (Shanghai) Limited US$10,000 73.74 73.74 REER
Investment holding
HEBRERAFY US$30,000,000 100 100 NEBERRREER
Sunhaitung Co., Ltd. @ Property development and
investment holding
HRE (FE)ERAA0 HK$2,000,000 100* 100 NERE
Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited @ Property investment
TABERKERAA HK$2 100 100 REWERS
T.A. Secretarial Services Limited Provision of secretarial
services
Tanya Nominees Limited HK$2 100 100 REREARS
Provision of nominee services
ARTPEAEXERAA HK$2 100* 100 REEREEFEE
Tian An China Enterprise Limited Investment holding, and
securities dealing
ARPEEERMEREERAF HK$2 100* 100 REER
Tian An China Hotel and Property Investment holding
Investments Company Limited
AR (BM)REBRAA HK$10,000 65 65 REEKR
Tian An (Guangzhou) Investment Investment holding
Company Limited
AL (BMBREBRARY US$10,000,000 100* 100 NRER
Tian An (Guang Zhou) Investments Property development
Co., Ltd. ©
AR (KI)BERBERAA HK$2 100* 100 REER

Tian An Pearl River Company Limited

Investment holding



ERAEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

ERTHARERR share capital/
BRA/ &R registered capital
Paid up issued b N
ordinary share WEAREE AEEEN
capital/ held by the attributable
WEBARBRE registered Company*/ to the TEEH
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
AR (L8) HRABRAT US$30,000,000 100% 100 NRERRBRERBERR
([Rz L& Property development and
Tian An (Shanghai) Investments investment and
Co., Ltd. ("TASH")® investment holding
AZ(RI)EXERERAAY HK$150,000,000 100 100 NEER
Tian An (Shenzhen) Enterprise Property development
Development Ltd. ¥
A% (BB REBRAA HK$2 100 100 RERK
Tian An (Shou Du) Investment Investment holding
Company Limited
AR (BZ)REBRAA HK$2 100 100 REERENERE
Tian An (Sui An) Investment Investment holding and
Company Limited property investment
AR (RR)REBER AT HK$2 100 100 RERR
Tian An (Tianjin) Investment Investment holding
Company Limited
A& (RE)REBERDA HK$2 100 100 REZKR
Tian An (Wuhan) Investment Investment holding
Company Limited
AR (EF) HEREBRAFY US$1,500,000 100 100 NEER
Tian An (Xiamen) Property Property development
Investments Co., Ltd. @
BHEX(LB)BRARAY US$16,000,000 100 100 NERR
Value Harvest Real Estate (Shanghai) Property development
Co., Ltd. ®
REEEFRAFM0 US$1 100 100 NERE
Winshine Group Limited (& Property investment
RERBEMEMZERAF RMB10,000,000 90 90 NEER
Wuhan Changfu Property Development Property development
Co., Ltd. @
EHMLLERBERRA US$5,000,000 95 95 NEZR

Wuxi Redhill Properties Co., Ltd. @

Property development



ERAEERRAHEE
HEMERZ LA
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

ERTHARERR share capital/
BRA/ &R registered capital
Paid up issued b N
ordinary share WEAREE AEEEN
capital/ held by the attributable
WEBARBRE registered Company*/ to the TEEH
Name of subsidiary capital subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
BHRLEHEREFRAFO US$3,000,000 95 95 NERE
Wuxi Tianan Real Estate Exploring Property investment
Co., Ltd. @
BHREEXRBRRAY US$18,400,000 100 100 NEER
Wuxi Tianxin Properties Co., Ltd. @ Property development
EERBRERARDAY US$12,000,000 88 87.97 NEERREERBRINS
Zhao Qing Golf and Development Property development and
Co., Ltd. @ golf course operation
LRI EFERAERAR W RMB50,000,000 100 100 NEER
Property development
LRBREREHERRAR O US$36,650,000 100 75.05 NERR
Property development
BMNALZBEBREXRERAAY US$49,980,000 100 100 NEER
Property development
ERREEXARAAY US$29,900,000 100 100 NERR
Property development
Bt & Notes:

i) ET2EHEEEEE-

(i)  Operating principally in the PRC.

]

(i)  Established as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures and operating

(i) ?EFEFEEH}ERI%EP e BEEREE

(iii)

ERBEZHFESEMAKIL -
ARBEEFERL LBA0%Es - MERT

{%EP BEMK LRI EEECERKELE

(iv)

260% AR —HEHBARIFE -
(v)
(vi)

;{’{EEP BEMRISEREETARRKEEE

(iii)
(iv)

(vi)

principally in the PRC.
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The 60% interest in TASH is held directly by the Company and the
remaining 40% is held by a subsidiary.

Established as wholly foreign owned enterprises and operating principally
in the PRC.

Established as limited liability companies and operating principally in the
PRC.
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RZZBEZ+FE+_A=+—8 A&ERT
JIMENREERD  BREBHAN  BLE
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year.

At 31st December, 2007, the Group had interests in the following
associates, all of which are incorporated and are operating principally
in Hong Kong except as otherwise indicated:

AEEFRBFERITEER
IR AT B & 8 E& A L f
Proportion of nominal
value of issued
ordinary share capital/

BENTEE registered capital FTEEK

Name of associate held by the Group Principal activities
%

CREXERADF 30 REZER

Bonson Properties Limited

Consco Investment Company Limited

X2 B A E A R A T i

Tianjin International Building Co., Ltd.M&qi

BERZEBFR QA0

Investment holding

31.25 REZEK
Investment holding

25 YK E

Property investment

50 Y EER

Yue Xiu Tian An Management Company Limited® Property management



Hrat

(i) HEHBHEEEEE-

(i) EHBEEMRLREEERE -

(i) AAEEBEARFAEZHBAR -

Notes:

(i)  Operating in the PRC.

(ii)  Established and operating in the PRC.

(iii) Subsidiaries held by the associates of the Group.

R-ZTZ+F+-_A=+—H AEEBERT At 31st December, 2007, the Group had interests in the following
PIXEIZEGIATHEE#EZ BB AP - % jointly controlled entities which are corporate joint ventures established
ZERNAHRERBEKI2EEEEEL : in the PRC except where otherwise indicated:
7 £ 8 P 45 &£ iR
FE B AL B
AR i 2 Proportion
Principal of registered
HE S DT BB place of capital held FEEK
Name of jointly controlled entity operation by the Group Principal activities
%
ERREREBR QA k= 40 MERE
Beijing Tian An Building Company Limited Beijing Property investment
BMmEBSMENMKREZERARLQAO w®H 49 MR ER
Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park Panyu Property development
Development Co., Ltd.®
K FT &% A R A~ &0 o 50 BREZER
Novel Plaza Company Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
FERAKEWEERAGR A A = @m0 MEER
Shanghai Min Hoong Real Estate Shanghai N/AD Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
EBXKEEMERERRAF finpic} 50 MERE
Shanghai Yong Tai Real Estate Development Shanghai Property investment

Co., Ltd.



95 B 7 4 B

FE B LA
AR i 2 Proportion
Principal of registered
HEEZEFHATEE place of capital held FEEK
Name of jointly controlled entity operation by the Group Principal activities
%
RYBEBERLZMERR A A el 50 MEKRE
Shenzhen ITC Tian An Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Property investment
RYNIR L BT A R QA 7l 50 MEHERNKE
Shenzhen Tian An Cyberpark Co., Ltd. Shenzhen R EER
Property development and
investment and
investment holding
RERZKBEBRAD A HE 55 OB IS
Wuhan Tian An Hotel Co., Ltd. Wuhan Hotel operation
BERLZANEBRRA] & M 48.75 R
Yuexiu Tian An Building Company Limited Guangzhou Hotel operation
RINREMEEBRBRRAE 2l 50 MEEERREER
Shenzhen Property management and
investment holding
ARINTRMLZERERARAFO 2l 50 MEER
Shenzhen Property development
RINTREEM AL BBEHABR AT el 50 MEER
Shenzhen Property development
LT RLZEEW AR QA 8 1L 45 MEERE
Foshan Property development
Btat - Notes:

(i) AEEERALOEZETHERDESH

D Z60% 2 i F o
(i) BREMLAF -
(i) EEBIEMAL -

(i)  The Group is entitled to a 60% share of profit in certain phases of the
development properties of the joint venture.

(i) Limited liability companies.

(iii) Incorporated in Hong Kong.
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RESULTS

Revenue

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

PER SHARE BASIS (note 2)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividend per share (HK cents)

Net assets per share (HK$)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
TAL TAL TAL TAL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,904,212 1,973,098 1,397,100 889,302 863,188
102,420 183,737 202,540 51,49 702,976
8,605,839 9,358,663 9,900,964 10,864,898 14,846,012
4,225,156 4,551,149 4,827,973 4,513,721 5,582,904
433,139 451,110 416,889 407,173 390,549
3,947,544 4,356,404 4,656,102 5,944,004 8,872,559
124 231 231 4.39 54.55

= = = 2.5 10

5.0 5.0 53 53 6.1

Notes:

(1) FRESHEERNR _SZEME=AaHEK (1)
RAZEBRIEHFE -

2 —EPTNFTESELFEI URBRR Q)
SEEREMEZRHERS

() "EEAEEEZEREARFERA= G
TTLEZAMBE(ELEE -

Amounts disclosed have been adjusted for the consolidation of the
Company’s ordinary shares in March 2004.

Amounts for the year 2004 have been adjusted to reflect the change in
accounting policies in 2005.

Basic earnings per share for the year 2006 have been adjusted to reflect

the Open Offer in 2007.






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Managing Director's Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Operations Review
	Financial Review
	Project Review
	Major Property Development
	Major Property Investments
	Other Investments


	Particulars of Property Development
	Particulars of Properties under Construction
	Particulars of Property and Hotel Investments
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditors' Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Company Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-year Financial Summary
	Back Cover



